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Glenview

July 2, 2003

Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Trustees
Citizens of the Village of Glenview

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Village of Glenview (the “Village”) for the year
ended December 31, 2002 is submitted herewith. This report represents a comprehensive picture of
the Village's financial activities during 2002 and the financial condition of its various funds at
December 31, 2002. Although formally addressed to the elected officials and citizens of Glenview,
this financial report has numerous other users. Foremost among the other users are the bondholders
of the Village, financial institutions, educational institutions and other governmental entities.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data presented as well as the completeness and faimess of
the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Village. We believe the data, as presented,
is accurate in all material respects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the
financial position of the Village and the results of its operations as measured by the financial activity
of its various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum
understanding of the Village's financial affairs have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in three sections: introductory, financial and
statistical. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the Village's organizational chart
and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general purpose financial
statements, and the combining, individual fund and account group financial statements and
schedules, as well as the independent auditor's report on the financial statements and schedules. The
statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a
multi-year basis, as well as all continuing disclosures required by Securities Exchange Commission
Rule 15¢2-12.

The Reporting Entity and its Services

The Village of Glenview was incorporated in 1899 and operates under the council/manager form of
government. It is a home rule municipality as defined by the Illinois Constitution. Located
approximately 20 miles north of the City of Chicago, in Cook County, the Village occupies a land
area of 13.27 square miles and has a certified 2000 Census of 41,847. This figure represents an
increase of 3,410 or 8.87% from the 1990 Census.
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The Village provides a full range of general governmental services. Specifically, the Village
provides police and fire protection, health services, water and sewer utilities, construction and
maintenance of streets, code enforcement, planning and zoning and general administrative services.

The financial reporting entity of the Village of Glenview is comprised of all funds and account
groups of the primary government (i.c., the Village of Glenview as legally defined) and its pension
trust funds: the Glenview Police Pension Fund and the Glenview Firefighters' Pension Fund. These
funds were determined to be pension trust funds due to their fiduciary and fiscal relationships with
the Village as their sole purpose is to provide retirement benefits to the Village's sworn police
officers and firefighters. The Glenview Public Library is included as a discrete presentation since a
separately elected board of trustees governs it. No other legally separate entity qualifies as a
component unit of the Village.

Economic Condition and Qutlook

There are several measures of economic health for local governments. Perhaps four of the more
objective measures or indicators are local employment levels, retail sales activity, family income
levels and construction activity.

Employment levels in the Village have always surpassed that of Cook County and the State of
Illinois as awhole. As of December 31, 2002 the Village's unemployment rate was 4,4%, compared
to 7.1% for Cook County, 6.3% for the State of Illinois and 5.7% for the United States.

_ Retail sales within the Village totaled $876 million for 2002. This represents an increase of $158

million, or 22.0%, from 2001. The Village expects retails sales to continue to grow as significant
additional retail space, currently under construction, comes on line.

Median family income figures from the 2000 Census show that the average income of Glenview
residents far exceeds county and state averages. According to the Census Bureau, Glenview's 2000
median family income was $96,552, compared to $53,784 for Cook County, $55,545 for the State of
Illinois and $50,046 for the United States. This ranked Glenview as the fifth wealthiest community
in the State of lllinois amongst communities with populations over 25,000. The Village also ranked
fifth in terms of median household income.

For a number of years, there was no substantial new commercial or residential construction activity
within the Village as little vacant land was available for development. However, construction
activity has increased dramatically as the 1,100 acre former Glenview Naval Air Station (“The
Glen”) had developed. Throughout the whole Village during 2002, there were 24 new commercial
developments constructed, with a total value of $42 million and 376 new residential housing permits
1ssued.




Major Initiatives
For the Year

2002 was another year of significant advances in the Village’s efforts to redevelop The Glen. The
Navy and the Village came to agreement on the Economic Development Conveyance of the Navy
base in 1998. As aresult of the land use plan and the massive infrastructure improvements needed to
achieve that plan, the Village has acquired the 1,100 acre base property for approximately $2.1
million. As of December 31, 2002, more than 1,075 acres had been deeded to the Village. The
remainder of the property will be transferred to the Village once the Navy completes all required
environmental clean up, which is anticipated to occur by the end of 2003. Construction began in
1998 on the initial infrastructure improvements and is expected to continue into 2004. In addition, in
1998, the Village established a Tax Increment Fmancing District (“TTF” or “District™), which
encompasses The Glen. The TIF was created as a risk management tool to facilitate the
redevelopment of the District. It is the Village’s intent to close the District when the costs associated
with the redevelopment have been fully addressed.

As a result of the extensive work to develop a database of 1,200 marketing contacts, RFP’s were
received from 57 developer groups in 1998 on the parcels offered for development. Following
analysis of the bids received, it was determined that all parcels received multiple bids from qualified
developers. Negotiations were concluded with developers resulting in the receipts of $85 million in
land sales in 1999, $42 million during 2000 and $33 million in 2001 and $ 2 million in 2002. During
1999 the Village established the Village Permanent Fund. The Village transfers 20% of the Land
Sales proceeds into this fund for Village wide improvements as well as providing liquidity to the TIF
project in the near term.

For the Future

2003 is expected to be another active year relative to the redevelopment of The Glen with
approximately $44 million of infrastructure construction scheduled. The Redevelopment staff has
been negotiating with developers on the remaining parcels and it is anticipated that the balance of the
parcels will be sold in 2003, The focus during the year will be on the activities surrounding the
October opening of the Mixed Use Retail Center (“MURC™)} and working with developers to secure
the optimal business mix.

During 2002 the Village began the process to update its Comprehensive Plan. It is anticipated that
this process will take 15 to 18 months and will provide the Village with a context for future
development throughout the Village. Other notable projects for 2003 include: the completion of a
space utilization study to determine the most efficient means to address the needs of the Police
Department; the construction of two additional fire stations to ensure appropriate response times
throughout the Village; and the implementation of new enterprise wide software to assist the
Administration and all Departments in collecting and managing data.
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Financial Information

Management of the Village is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal controls designed
to ensure that the assets of the Village are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and to ensure that
adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the timely preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives
are met, The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of the costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgements by management.

Budgetary Control

The objective of budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the
annual budget adopted by the Village's governing body. The budget covers activities of the general,
special revenue, debt service, enterprise, internal service and certain capital and fiduciary fund types.

The level of budgetary control, that is, the level at which expenditures cannot exceed the budgeted
amount, is established at the fund level.

General Government Functions

The following table presents a summary of revenues available for general governmental functions
(the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service Funds and component unit - Library Funds) for the year
ended December 31, 2002 with comparisons to the previous year.

Increase Percent
2002 Percent (Decrease) Increase
Revenues Amount of Total From 2001 (Decrease)
Property Taxes $14,361,014 33.89% $ 2,589,745 22.00%
Other Taxes 4,792,905 11.31 { 160,971) { 3.25)
Total Taxes 19,153,919 4520 2,428,774 14.52
Licenses and Permits 2,415,483 5.70 { 394,517) {14.04)
Intergevernmental 16,161,326 38.14 1,590,805 10.92
Charges for Services 2,843 608 6.71 13,650 48
Fines and Forfeits 274,961 0.65 ( 4,125) {1.48)
Interest Earnings 601,513 1.42 ( 551,607) (47.84)
Miscellaneous 919,207 2,18 { 794,532 ~ (46.36)
Total Revenues $42,370,017 100.00% $2,288,448 5.71%

Total general governmental revenues for the year amounted to $42,370,017. This represents an
increase of $2,288,448 or 5.71% over 2001.
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Property tax revenues for general governmental purposes reflect an_ increase of $2,589,745, or
22.00%. Of this amount, $2,384,569 or 92.08% of the increase is the result of property tax
increment received in the Special Tax Allocation Fund.

Other Taxes totaled $4,792,905, representing a decrease of $160,971 or 3.25%. The most significant
components of Other Taxes are the Utility Tax, which amounted to $4,119,522, a decrease of 0.67%,
and the Hotel Tax, which generated $615,083, a decrease of 17.79%.

Revenue from the sale of licenses and permits totaled $2,415,483, a decrease 0f $394,517, or 14.04%
compared to 2001. Of the total, Building permit revenue totaled $1,990,966 a decrease of
$417,5628, a decrease of 17.34% from the record high $2,408,528 of Building permits sold in 2001.
While a majority of the permit revenue is associated with development at The Glen, a significant
portion is also attnbutable to building activity throughout the Village and an indicator of the area’s
strong economy.

Intergovernmental revenues increased $1,590,805to $16,161,326, an increase of 10.92% over 2001.
The largest single component of increase in this revenue category is Sales Tax, which totaled
58,765,038, an increase of $1,581,032 or 22.00% over 2001, State shared tevenues 1n general were
down, with the most noticeable decrease reflected in the Village’s share of State Income Tax that
totaled $2,745,035, a decrease of $218,451 or 7.37%.

Charges for Services were flat as receipts increased $13,650 to $2,843,608. The largest component
of this revenue category is Engineering fees, which decreased from $501,406 in 2001 to $297,0851n
/2002, The primary cause for this reduction is that a significant portion of the Engineering work
regarding The Glen has been completed.

Interest earnings in those funds providing general governmental functions totaled $601,513, a
decrease of $551,607 or 47.84%:

2002 2001
Interest Interest Increase
Fund Type Earnings Earnings | (Decrease)
General $401,213 $769,833 | ($368,620)
Special Revenue 63,583 100,629 (37,046)
Debt Service 96,682 179,191 (82,509)
Library Component Unit 40,035 103,467 (63,432)
TOTAL $601,513 1,153,120 | ($551,607)

The decrease in interest earnings for all Fund Types is reflective of the drop in short term interest
rates in addition a portion of the decrease for the debt service funds can be attributed to the fact that
capitalized interest which generated interest earnings in prior years has been expended, leaving fewer
dollars available for investment.
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Miscellaneous revenues totaled $919,207 for 2002, a decrease of $794,532 or 46.36% from 2001.
Included in the 2001 amount was $956,654 attributable to land sales (unrelated to The Glen).

Following is a table showing expenditures by service area with comparisons to the previous year for
the general, special revenue, debt service and component unit (Library) funds:

Increase Percent
2002 Percent (Decrease) Increase
Expenditures Amount of Total from 2001 {Decrease)

General Government $10,999,766 23.83% $726,439 7.07%
Public Safety 16,314,336 35.35 435,000 2.74
Highways and Streets 6,133,143 13.29 237,623 4.03
Miscellaneous 717,910 1.56 ( 88,272) (10.95)
Culture and Recreation 3,900,090 8.45 161,407 432
Debt Service 8,085,655 17.52 2,607,289 47.59
Total Expenditures $46,151,100 100.00% $ 4,079,486 3.70%

Total expenditures for general governmental functions in 2002 were $46,151,100, an increase of
$4,079,486 or 9.70% over 2001.

General governmental expenditures totaled $10,999,766, an increase of $726,439 or 7,07%. This
increase is primarily due to the progression of employees on the step-plan, and increased insurance
Costs.

Expenditures in the Public Safety category totaled $16,314,536, an increase of $435,000, or 2.74%,
and is primarily due to the addition of personnel, the progression of employees on the step-plan, and
increased pension costs.

Expenditures in the highways and streets category totaled $6,133,143 in 2002, an increase of
$237,623, or 4.03% compared to 2001.

Debt service expenditures amounted to $8,085,655, compared to $5,478,366 in 2001, an increase of
$2,607,289 or 47.59%. This increase is the result of the Village issuing bonds to refinance
outstanding debt and realize net present value saving of approximately $250,000, or 3.75%.

General Fund Balance

The General Fund ended 2002 with an excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses of $1,960,129. Revenues exceeded the Budget by $144,833,
or 0.005%, and expenditures were $1,897,183 or 6.28% less than budgeted. The result brought the
undesignated fund balance to $14,553,994 at December 31, 2002, the equivalent 0of 48.80% of actual
2002 expenditures and transfers.
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Enterprise Operations

The Village has five enterprise operations accounted for in its financial statements: the Waterworks
Fund; the Wholesale Water Fund; the Sewerage Fund; the North Maine Water and Sewer Fund; and
the Commuter Parking Lot Fund.

The Waterworks Fund recorded net income of $800,107 for the year ended December 31,2002. The
financial condition of the fund remains strong, with cash and investments totaling $3,691,445.

The Wholesale Water Fund recorded a net loss of $112,728 for the year, resulting in retained
earnings of $451,575. The net loss has occurred as the Village has been transferring funds from the
Wholesale Water Fund to Capital Improvements. The amount transferred will be reduced in the
future.

The North Maine Water and Sewer Fund recorded net income of $38,368 for 2002. The Fund ended
the year with cash and investments of $989,238.

The Sewerage Fund recorded a net income of $249,194 for 2002 and ended the year with cash and
investments of $331,568. :

Finally, the Commuter Parking Lot Fund recorded net income of $59,989 for 2002 and ended the
year with cash and investments of $846,826. Of the cash and investment total, $534,944 is a grant
from DCCA to be used for the construction of the new train station at The Glen.

Emplovee Pensions

The Police Pension Fund covers police swem personnel and the Firefighters’ Pension Fund covers
sworn firefighters. Both of these plans are defined benefit, single-employer plans administered by
local boards of trustees, State statutes govern the benefits and employer and employee contribution
levels.

During 2002, the Village retained the services of independent actuary to perform an actuarial
valuation on the police and firefighter pension plans as of December 31, 2001. Following is
summary information for the two funds:

Police Firefighters'
Pension Fund Pension Fund
Actuarial Accrued Liability - 12/31/01 $31,728,241 $40,548,063
Value of Plan Assets - 12/31/01 $29,380,377 $41,979,483
Percent Funded - 12/31/01 92.60% 103.53%
Value of Net Assets - 12/31/02 $31,060,435 $44,326.852
Change in Net Assets FYE 12/31/02 $1,680,058 $2,347,369 |




In 1993 the State of Illinois increased the benefits provided to police and firefighter pension fund
beneficiaries. The changes increased the pension benefit obligation of both funds, but especially that
of the police pension fund where a provision was made to compound annual increases in pension
benefits. Municipalities have until the year 2033 to fully fund their police and firefighter pension
plans. The purpose of “marking to market” is to show the value of a fund at a given point in time.
Practically however, as these funds do not have cash flow problems which would require liquidating
positions, these losses are only for reporting purposes.

All other employees of the Village who work at least 1,000 hours per year are covered by the Illinois
Municipal Retirement Fund, (“IMRF”) a statewide pension plan. IMRF acts as the administrative
agent for local governments in Illinois. Benefit provisions and funding requirements are established
by state statute. At December 31, 2002 the Village was 100.67% funded in IMRF'.

Debt Administration

In February 2002 the Village issued $6,855,000 of general obligation debt to refund various
outstanding issues. At that time, Moody's Investors Service affirmed the Village's Aaa general
obligation bond rating initially assigned in 1993.

AtDecember 31, 2002 the Village had $97,340,000 of general obligation bonds outstanding. Of this
amount, $90,195,000 is reflected in the general long-term debt account group and $7,145,000 is
recorded directly in three enterprise funds. There was also $2,438,674 of general obligation notes
outstanding at December 31, 2002.

At December 31, 2002 there was $1,048,523 available in the various debt service funds for the
payment of principal and interest, resulting in a net bonded debt of $89,141,008. The ratio of net
bonded debt to assessed value and the amount of net bonded debt per capita are useful indicators ofa
municipality’s debt position. This data as of December 31, 2002 is as follows:

Net General Obligation Debt $89,146,077
Ratio of Net Debt to Assessed Value 5.75%
Ratio of Net Debt to Actual Value 1.92%
Net Debt Per Capita $2,130.29

Of the $2,130.16 net debt per capita, $207.48 is payable from property taxes while the balance,
$1,922.68, is self supporting debt which results in the abatement of property taxes from Enterprise
Funds and the Glen Redevelopment Funds. Additional information about the Village's outstanding
debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements and the statistical section of this report.

Property Tax Information

The county assessors' offices are responsible for determining the assessed value of real property
utilizing market values and established assessment ratios in Illinois. The Stats of Illinois then
assigns an equalization factor to each county in an attempt to get all properties in the state assessed at
approximately 33% of market value. Property taxes are based upon the equalized assessed value
(EAV) of all taxable properties. A government's tax rate is determined by dividing its tax levy into
its total EAV, adjusting for any rate limitations which might be applicable.
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At the time this report was prepared, information regarding the tax rates and assessed values for the
2002 tax levy year were not yet available. The Village’s 2001 total equalized assessed valuation was
$1,511,642,699 2 23.1% increase from the 2000 levy year. The Village’s and the Library-component
unit’s combined tax rate decreased from $0.940 for 2000 to $0.771 for 2001. The primary reason for
the significant increase in equalized assessed valuation and the associated decrease in tax rate, (while
both the Village and Library levied essentially the same amounts in both years), is the effect of the
State’s Equalization factor for Cook County. One-third of Cook County is reassessed each year and
in the year in which the City of Chicago is reassessed, the effect has been a reduction in the State
Equalizer (as, theoretically, the assessed valuation in closer to market). The City of Chicago was
reassessed m 2000 and Village’s reassessment in 2001 resulted in the above noted increase.

Following 1s a summary of the Village's tax rates for the past three years:

Fund 2001 2000 1599
General Fund $.322 § .426 $.430
Special Revenue Funds 033 .042 042
Debt Service Funds 117 152 146
Pension Trust Funds 072 051 034

Subtotal - Village 544 671 632
Library 227 259 251
Total Combined Tax Rate $.771 $.940 $.903

Additional information regarding the Village's tax rates, assessed values and tax collections can be
found in the statistical section of this report.

Cash Management

The Village's policy regarding cash manageinent is based upon the realization that there is a time
value to money. A high priority is placed on procedures to ensure that monies due the Village are
collected and deposited as promptly as possible. Disbursements are closely controlled.

Of equal importance is the emphasis on the management of the Village's investment portfolio. All
idle cash is invested in accordance with an established investment policy. The investment policy
establishes safety of principal as the foremost objective. The policy provides for full collateralization
of all deposits in excess of FDIC limits. The Village is not permitted to leverage

its portfolio or invest in risky derivatives. All of the Village’s Deposits and Investments are
ACategory 1" meaning that all Deposits are covered by federal depository insurance, or by collateral
held by the Village, or its agent, in the Village’s name and all Investments are insured or registered
or are held by the Village, or its agent, in the Village’s name.

- il -




Following is a summary of total investment eamnings and weighted average yields for each of the
various fund types:

Investment Income
Year Ended
Fund Type 12/31/02 Average Yield
General Fund $ 401,213 3.13%
Special Revenue Funds 63,583 2.31
Debt Service Funds 96,682 2.58
Capital Project Funds 3,870,267 2.54
Enterprise Funds 137,943 2.39
Internal Service Funds 72,539 2.29
Expendable Trust Funds 118,588 233
Totals $4,760,815 2.61%

Risk Management

The Village maintains a protected risk retention program for property, casualty, and workers
compensation claims. Health insurance for employees and retirees is provided through a public
entity risk pool. Aggregate umbrella liability coverage is provided through the Village's membership
in the High-level Excess Liability Pool, another public entity risk pool.

The Village's insurance activity is accounted for in an internal service fund. For the year ended
December 31, 2002 the Insurance Fund reported a net loss of $14,413. Retained eamings at

December 31, 2002 amounted to $3,538,071.

Other Information

Indegend_ent Andit

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The accounting
firm of Sikich Gardner & Co, LLP performed the audit on the Village’s 2002 financial statements.
The independent auditors’ report is included in the financial section of this report. The auditors have
given this report an unqualified opinion, meaning that the financial statements fairly present the
Village's financial position at December 31, 2002, and the results of operations for the year then
ended.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Village of Glenview for its
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001. The
Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest
standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.
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In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program
standards. The CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The Village of Glenview has
received a Certificate of Achievement for twenty consecutive years (fiscal years ended 1982-2001).
We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program
requirements, and will be submitting it to GFOA.
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The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report on a timely basis was made possible by
the dedicated service of the entire staff of the Finance Department. Each member of the Department
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complete this report.
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Respectfully submitted,

Daniel P. Wiersma
Director of Finance
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF

Sikich Gardner & Co, LLP CERTIFIED PUBLIC-ACCOUNTANTS
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Accountants & Consultants fLLINOIS CPA SOGIETY

998 Corporate Boulevard
Aurora, 1L 60504

A Member of Sikich Group, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Village President
Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Glenview

Glenview, Illinots

We have audited the general purpose financial statements and the combining, individual fund and
account group financial statements of the Village of Glenview, Illinois, as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2002, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These financial
statcrnents are the responsibility of the Village of Glenview, [llinois” management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of matenal misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opimion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Village of Glenview, Illinois, as of December 31,
2002, and the results of\its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year
then ended i conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, the combiming, individual fund and account group financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of each
of the individual funds and account groups of the Village of Glenview, Illinois, as of

December 31, 2002, and the results of operations of such funds and the cash flows of individual
proprietary funds for the year then ended in confonmity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also 1ssued our report dated May 9,
2003 on our consideration of the Village of Glenview, Illinois’ internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government

Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results
of our audit.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole and on the combining, individual fund and account group financial
statements, The accompanying schedules and the supplemental data listed in the accompanying
table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements of the Village of Glenview, Illinois. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audir of the general purpose, combining, individual fund,
and account group financial statements and, in our opinion, 1s fairly presented in all material
respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements and each of the combining,
individual fund, and account group financial statements taken as a whole.

The required supplementary information listed in the table of contents is not a required part of
the general purpose financial statements but is supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and

presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opion on it.

The introductory and statistical information listed in the table of contents was not audited by us,
and accordingly, we do not express an opinton thereon,

Ao Yo St lo L

Aurora, Illinois
May 9, 2003
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINQIS

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUFPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

December 31, 2002
(with comparative totals for 2001)

Governmenta] Fund Types
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Setviee Projects

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

ASSETS
Cash - § 2152023 § 1,057,162 § 48285 § 30,794,556
Investments . 12,879,980 2,901,596 1,005,707 102,427,483
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles) ‘
Property 1axes 5,731,379 500,000 1,726,271 -
‘Other taxes 3,688,800 - - -
Accounts . 94,575 - - 6,719,991
Grant - - - 1,357
Interest - - - 38,360
Other 192,573 115,868 - -
Advances 1o other funds - . - 11,182,129
Due from other governments - 100,555 - -
Due from other funds 185,501 31,000 - 397,299
Inventory - - - -
Prepaid iterns/expenses - - - -
Deposits - - - -
Deferred bond issuance costs - - - -
Deferred acquisition cosls - - - -
Fixed assets (net of accumulated ’
depreciation) - - - -
OTHER DEBITS
Amouni available for debt service - - - -
Amount to be provided for retirement
of general long-term debt _ - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS $ 24924831 % 4706181 § 2780263 3 151,561.175




Totals

Fiduciary Account Groups Primary Totals
Proprietary Fund Types Fund Types General General Government Reporting Entity

Internal Trust and Fixed Long-Tenm {Memorandum Component ~ {(Memomandurn Only)

Enterprise Service Agency Assets Debt Only) Unit 2002 2001
$ 2,753,269 $ 792,587 $§ 2408364 § - - % 40,006,246 $ 829433 § 40835679 $ 6525201
3,576,268 2,170,000 77,934,169 - - 202,895,203 340,000 203,235,203 268,448,213
- - 125,436 - - 8,083,086 4,205,717 12,288,803 11,424 457
. - - - - 3,688,800 - 3,688,800 2,312,908
2,638,153 9,967 - - - 9,462,686 - 9,462,686 9,068,901
. . . . - 1,357 52,309 53,666 323,118
. . - . 38,360 - 38,360 -
- - - - 308,441 - 308,441 264,472
2,659,290 - - - - 13,841,419 - 13,841,419 2,659,290
- - 4,700 - - 105,255 - 105,255 395,395
71,759 54,902 - - - 740,461 - 740,461 887,912
61,788 - - - 61,788 - 61,788 48,023
- - - - - - - - 143,763
- 933,320 - - - 933,320 - 933,320 890,372
36,623 - - - - 36,623 - 36,623 38,200
- - - - - - 29,784
34,682,775 43,567 - 27,214,537 - 61,941,279 5,524,598 67,465,877 61,479,358
- - - - 1,048,923 1,048,923 - 1,048,923 2,811,524
- - - - 89,146,077 89,146,077 - 89,146,077 91,488,476
5 46479925 $ 4004743 $ 80472669 § 27,214537 § 90195000 § 432339324 S 10952,057 $ 443,291,381 $ 459,239,367

(This statement is continued on the following pages.)

_4-




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

December 31, 2002
(with comparative totals for 200])

Governmental Fund Types
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projecis
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable § 349836 § 303399 § - $ 17,890,210
Claims payable - - - -
Accrued payroll 100,507 - - -
Interest payable - - 5,009 -
Compensated absences payable 1,671,823 - - -
Infrastructure maintenance fee 974,017 - - -
Other payables 28,341 119,801 - -
Bank overdraft - - - -
Deferred revenues 129,664 - - 6,673,355
Due to other funds 40,022 18,202 - 318,078
Advance from other governments - - - -
Advance from other funds - - - - 13,341,419
Deferred property taxes 5,731,379 500,000 1,726,271 -
Arbitrage payable - - - -
Due to bondholders - - - -
Refundable deposits - - - -
Noies payable - - - -
General obligation bonds payable - - - -
Unarnortized bond discount - - - -

Total liabilities 9,025,989 941,402 1,731,340 38,723,062

EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
Contributed capital - - . -
Investment in general fixed assets - - - -
Retained eamings - unreserved - - - -
Fund balances

Reserved for advances to other funds - - - 11,182,129
Reserved for prepaid items - . - .

Reserved for employees' retirement system . - -
Reserved for debt service - - 1,048,923 -

Reserved for capital improvemenis - - - 105,209,110
Reserved for Patton House 10,000 - - -
Unreserved.
Designated for income tax surcharge receipts 1,334,848 - - -
Undesignated 14,553,994 3,764,779 - (3,553,126)
Total equity and other credits ) 15,898,842 3,764,779 1,048,923 112,838,113
TOQTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
AND OTHER CREDITS § 24924831 § 4706181 § 2780263 % 151,561,175




Totals

Fiduciary Account Groups Primary Totals
Proprielary Fund Types Fund Types General General Govemment Reporting Entity
Internal Trust and Fixed Long-Term  (Memormndum  Component (Memorandurn Only)
Enterprise Service Agency Assets Deht Only) Unit 2002 2001
$ 1026468 $ 93,770 § 25,348 § - S - 5 19689031 § 73,831 § 19,762,862 $ 9,809,834
- 176,585 - - - 176,585 - 176,585 - 372,99
- - - - - 100,907 37,929 138,836 111,762
63,201 - - - - 68,270 - 68,270 75,123
81,229 - - - - 1,753,052 76,415 1,829,467 1,664,928
- - - - - 974,017 - 974,017 808,295
26,567 81,447 - - - 256,156 - 256,156 214,124
- . - - - - - - 20,505
515,299 6,680 - - - 7,324,998 49,026 7.374,024 7,271,913
236,468 19,383 108,308 - - 740.461 - 740,461 887.912
- - - - - - - - 297,174
- - - - - 13,841,419 - 13,841,419 2,659,290
- - - - - 7,957,650 4,205,717 12,163,367 11,292,100
- - 4,700 - - 4,700 - 4,700 195,077
- - 179,837 - - 179,837 - 179,837 178,980
- - 4,539,779 - - 4,539,779 - 4,539,779 3,844,100
2,438,674 - - - - 2,438,674 - 2,438,674 2,529,058
7,145,000 - - - 90,195,000 97,340,000 - 97,340,000 101,800,000
(57,837) - - - - (57,837) - (57,837) (60,679}
11,475,069 - 377,865 4,857,972 - 90,195,000 157,327,699 4,442,918 161,770,617 144,062,492
12,135,076 - - - - 12,135,076 - 12,135,076 6,366,393
- - - 27,214,537 - 27,214,537 5,524,598 32,739,135 32,695,712
22,869,780 3,626,878 - - - 26,496,658 - 26,496,658 25,621,751
- - - - - 11,182,129 - 11,182,129 -
- - - - - - - - 140,363
- - 75,387,287 - - 75,387,287 - 75,387,287 71,359,860
- - - - - 1,048,923 - 1,048,923 2,811,524
- - - - - 105,209,110 - 105,209,110 163,137,816
- - - - - 10,000 - 10,000 10,000
- - - - - 1,334,848 - 1,334,848 1,334,848
- - 227410 - - 14,993,057 984,541 15,977,598 11,698,608
35,004,856 3,626,878 75,614,697 27,214,537 - 275,011,625 6,509,139 281,520,764 315,176,875

$ 46479925 § 4004743 § 80.472,669 § 27,214,537 § 90,095.000 § 432339324 § 10952057 § 443291381 § 459,239 367

See accompanying notes 10 financial slaternents
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN.FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES '

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

General Special Revenue
Budget Actual Budget Actual
REVENUES
Taxes § 10739460 § 10,611,837 % 6,069,500 § 3,355279
Licenses and permits 2,246,700 2,415,483 - -
Intergovernmental 13,626,000 14,858,160 1,200,000 1,190,517
Charges for services 2,160,575 1,109,048 1,542,125 1,604,469
Fines and forfeits 225,000 207,720 - -
Investment income 475,000 401,213 42,800 63,555
Miscellaneous 865,150 879,251 2,500 594
Total revenues 30,337,885 30,482,718 8,856,925 6,214,414
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 7,296,598 6,163,725 9,137,482 4,836,041
Public safety 16,503,505 16,013,303 324,314 301,233
Highways and streets 6,407,251 6,133,143 - -
Miscellaneous - - 862,000 717,210
Capital outlay - - - -
Debt service
Principal retirement - - - -
Interest and fiscal charges - - - -
Total expenditures 30,207,354 28,310,171 10,323,796 5,855,184
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)} OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 130,531 2,172,547 (1,466,871) 359,230
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in 1,318,425 . 1,288,430 11,120,728 9,444,798
Operating transfers (out) (1,476,558) (1,513,498) (9,704,085) (8,701,913)
Operating transfers in -
component unit 12,650 12,650 100,562 100,560
Total other financing sourges (uses) {145,483) (212,418) 1,517,205 843,445
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY} OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES $ (14,952) 1,960,129 § 50,334 1,202,675
FUND BALANCES, JANUARY 1| 13,938,713 2,522,567
Prior period adjustmentr - -
FUND BALANCES, JANUARY 1, RESTATED 13,938,713 2,522,567
FUND BALANCES, DECEMBER 31 - $ 15,898,842 § 3725242




.
- .

Totals
Debt Service Capital Projects {Memorandum Only)
Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual

$ 1,780,745 % 888,032 § - - 18,589,705 § 14,855,148
. - . . 2,246,700 2,415,483

- - - 295,800 14,826,000 16,344,483

- - - 1,000 3,702,700 2,714,517

- - - - 225,000 207,720
162,302 95,533 2,036,000 3,870,267 2,716,102 4,430,568

- - 12,508,624 7,118,319 13,376,274 7,998,164
1,943,047 983,565 14,544,624 11,285,386 55,682,481 48,966,083
- - - - 16,434,080 10,999,766

- - - - 16,827,819 16,314,536

- - - - 6,407,251 6,133,143

- - - - 862,000 717,910

- - 133,036,461 54,651,582 133,036,461 54,651,582
4,120,000 2,170,000 - - 4,120,000 2,170,000
4,045,542 3,716,022 - - 4,045,542 3,716,022
8,165,542 5,886,022 133,036,461 54,651,582 181,733,153 94,702,959
(6,222,495) (4,902,457)  (118,491,837) (43,366,196) (126,050,672}  (45,736,876)
4.677984 4,051,243 43,102,278 21,243,828 60,219,415 36,028,299
- (1,866,756) (43,480,460)  (23,497,212) (54,661,103)  (35,579,379)

- - 140,000 _ 120,000 253212 233,210
4,677,984 2,184, 487 (238,182) (2,133,384) 5,811,524 682,130
§ (1,544,511) (2,717,970)_8 (118,730,019)  (45,499,580)_S (120,239,148)  (45,054,746)
2,811,524 158,292,122 177,564,926

- 45571 45,571

2,811,524 158,337,693 177,610,457

py 93,554 § 112,838,113 by 132!555!75]

See accompanying notes to financial staternents.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS .
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
{with comparative totals for 2001)

Proprietary Fund Types Totals
Internal (Memorandum Only)
Enterprise Service 2002 2001
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services § 15,553,744 % 4,211,174 § 19,764,918 § 19,057,189
Miscellaneous 313,784 792,754 1,106,538 810,753
Total operating revenues 15,867,528 5,003,928 20,871,456 19,867,942
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration 944,218 - 944,218 796,348
Operations 9,804,242 5,186,246 14,990,488 14,425,154
Depreciation and amortization 1,128,960 7,994 1,136,954 _ 1,067,918
Total operating expenses 11,877,420 5,194,240 17,071,660 16,289,420
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 3,990,108 {190,312} 3,799,796 3,578,522
NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES)
Gain on sale of fixed assets - - - 16,233
Investment income, 137,943 72,539 210,482 302,245
Interest expense and fiscal
charges (516,364} - (516,364) (548,562)
Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses) (378,421) 72,539 (305,882) (140,084)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
OPERATING TRANSFERS 3,611,687 (117,773) 3,493,914 3,438,438
Operating transfers in 30,000 - 30,000 50,000
Operating transfers (out) (2,606,757) (42,250) (2,649,007) (2,841,168)
Total gperating transfers (2,576,757) (42,250) (2,619,007) (2,791,168)
NET INCOME (LOSS) 1,034,930 (160,023} 874 507 647,270
RETAINED EARNINGS, JANUARY 1 21,834,850 3,786,901 25,621,751 24974 481
RETAINED EARNINGS, DECEMBER 31 § 22869780 § 3,626,878 § 26,496,658 § 25,621,731

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

For the Year Ended Decemnber 31, 2002
{(with comparative totals for 2001)

Internal
Enterprise Service

Totals
{Memorandum Only)

2002 2001

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income {loss) § 3,990,108 § (190,312)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash from operating activities

$

3,799.79¢ $ 3,578,522

Depreciation and amortization 1,128,960 7,994 1,136,954 1,067,918
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (76,713) 245,040 168327 33,329
Deposits - (42,948) (42,948) 44 428
Due from other funds (8,745) 111,613 102,868 (21,010)
Inventory (13,765) - (13,765) (8,382)
Prepaid cxpenses B - - 198,183
Accounts payable 272,982 (35.033) 237,949 (616,857)
Claims payable - (196,411) (196,411) 103,374
Compensated absences payable 12,371 - 12,31 31,047
Deferred revenues - 114 114 21,865
Other payable 14,997 - 14,997 87,136
Diue to other funds 11,166 19,383 30,549 30,965
Net cash from operating activities 5,331,361 (80,560) 5,250,801 4,550,518
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cperating transfers in 30,000 - 30,000 50,000
Operating transfers {(out) (2,606,757) {42,250) (2,649,007) (2,841,168)
Net cash from noncapital financing activities (2,576,757) (42,250) (2,619,007) (2,791,168)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Fixed assets purchascd (1,271,790} -

(1,271,790)  (1,047,254)

Proceeds from the sale of fixed asscts - - - 38,273
Increase in advances to other funds - - - (418,231}
Principal paid on gencral

obligation bonds {355,000) - (355,000) (340,000)
Principal paid on note payable (50,384) - (90,384) (86,134)
Interest paid on general

obligation bonds (526,486) - (526,486) (549,764)

Net cash from capital and related
financing activities (2,243,660 -

(2,243,660)  (2,403,110)

(This statement is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

-COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
(with comparative totals for 2001)

Totals
Internal {Memorandum Only)
Enterprise Service 2002 2001
CASH FLOWS FROM INYESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments 3 - $ . 3 - 3 (18,766,790)
Maturities of investments 1,013,941 405,289 1,419,230 18,458,593
Investment income received 137,943 72,538 210,481 393,289
Net cash from investing activities 1,151,884 477,827 1,629,711 85,092
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,662,828 355,017 2,017,845 (558,668)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JANUARY 1 1,090,441 437,570 1,528,011 2,086,679

CASHANDCASHEQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 _§ 2753,269 § 792587 § 354585 § 1528011

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
Developer contributions $ 5,768,683 $ - $ 5,768,683 S 1,599,006

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
ALL PENSION TRUST FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
(with comparative totals for 2001)

2002 2001
ADDITIONS
Contributions - employer $ 1,067,978 % 045,534
Contributions - plan members 903,459 861,871
Total contributions 1,971,437 1,507,405
Investment income -
- Net appreciation (depreciation) in
fair value of investments 3,150,521 2,460,692
Interest earmed on investments 1,684,609 446,265
Total investment income 4 835,130 2,906,957
Total additions 6,806,567 4,414,362
DEDUCTIONS
Pensions and refunds 2,757,867 2,360,973
Miscellaneous
Contractual professional services 21,273 17,593
Total deductions 2,779,140 2,378,566
NET INCREASE 4,027,427 2,035,796
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR
PENSION BENEFITS
January 1 71,359,860 69,324,064
Decemnber 31 $ 75,387.287 % 71,359,860

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2002

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Village of Glenview, Illinois (the Village) have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (hereinafier referred to as generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)),
as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Village’s accounting policies are
described below.

a.  Reporting Entity

The Village is a municipal corporation governed by an elected seven-member board.
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements
present the Village (the primary government) and its component units.

The Village’s financial statements include pension trust funds:
Police Pension Employees Retirement System

The Village’s police sworn employees participate in the Police Pension
Employees Retirement System (PPERS). PPERS functions for the benefit of
these employees and is governed by a five-member pension board consisting of
two members appointed by the Village’s President, one elected pension
beneficiary and two elected police. The Village and PPERS participants are
obligated to fund all PPERS costs based upon actuarial valuations, The State
of Illinois is authorized to establish benefit levels and the Village is authorized
to approve the actuanal assumptions used in the determination of contribution
levels. Although it possesses many of the characteristics of a legally separate
government, the PPERS is reported as if it were part of the primary
government because its sole purpose 1s to finance and administer the pensions
of the Village’s police employees and because of the fiduciary nature of such
activities. The PPERS is reported as a pension trust fund.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
a.  Reporting Entity (Continued)
Firefighters’ Pension Employees Retirement System

The Village’s firefighters participate in the Firefighters’ Pension Employees
Retirement System (FPERS). FPERS functions for the benefit of these
employees and 1s governed by a nine-member pension board consisting of the
Village’s President, Treasurer, Clerk, Attorney and Fire Chief; one elected
pension beneficiary; and three elected fire employees. The Village and FPERS
participants are obligated to fund all FPERS costs based upon actuarial
valuations. The State of [llinois is authorized to establish benefit levels and the
Village is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the
determination of contribution levels. Although it possesses many of the
characteristics of a legally separate government, the FPERS 1s reported as if it
were part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to finance and
administer the pensions of the Village’s firefighters and because of the

fiduciary nature of such activities. The FPERS is reported as a pension trust
fond.

Discretely Presented Component Unit - Village of Glenview Public Library
(the Library)

The Library has a separately elected seven-member board, which annually
determines its budget and resulting tax levy. Upon approval of the Village, the
levy is submitted to the County. All debt of the Library is secured by the full
faith and credit of the Village, which is wholly liable for the debt. Because the
Library possesses the characteristics of a legally separate government and does
not service the primary government, the Library is being reported as a discrete
presentation. Separate financial statements are disclosed in the component unit
portion of this report; the Library does not issue separate financial statements.

b.  Fund Accounting

The Village uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position, results
of its operations, and cash flows. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal
compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to
certain government functions or activities.

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. An
account group, on the other hand, is a financial reporting device designed to provide
accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds
because they do not directly affect net expendable available financial resources.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b.

Fund Accounting (Continued)

Funds are classified into the following categories: governmental, proprietary and
fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided into separate “fund types.”

Govemmental funds are used to account for all or most of 2 government’s general
activities, including the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies (special
revenue funds), the acquisition or construction of general fixed assets (capital
projects funds), and the servicing of general long-term debt (debt service funds). The
general fund is used to account for all activities of the general government not

“accounted for in some other fund.

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the
private sector, where the determination of net income 1s necessary or useful to sound
financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can be provided
either to outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments or agencies
primarily within the Village (internal service funds). |

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties,
including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the Village. When
these assets are held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, either a pension
trust fund or an expendable trust fund 1s used. The term “expendable” refers to
whether or not the Village is under an obligation to maintain the trust principal.
Agency funds generally are used to account for assets that the Village holds on behalf
of others as their agent.

Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatiment applied to a fund is determined by
its measurement focus. All governmental funds and expendable trust funds are
accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included
on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e.,
revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other
financing uses) in net current assets.

All proprietary funds and pension trust funds are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and
all Liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance
sheet. Proprietary fund type fund equity (1.e., net total assets) is segregated into
contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund type
operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses)
in net tolal assets.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contfinued)

C.

Basis of Accounting (Continued)

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental fund types,
expendable trust funds and agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they
become both measurable and available). “Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current
period. The Village recognizes property taxes when they become both measurable
and available in accordance with GASB Codification Section P70 in the period
intended to finance. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund
liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service fund
for payments to be made early in the following year.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses,
interest revenue and charges for services. Sales taxes owed to and fines collected
and held by the state/county court at year end on behalf of the Village also are
recognized as revenue. Permit revenues are not susceptible to accrual because,
generally, they are not measurable until received in cash.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund types and pension trust
funds. Under this method, revenues and additions are recorded when earned and
expenses and deductions are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.

The Village reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet. Deferred
revenues arise when a potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and
“available” criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise
when resources are received by the Village before it has a legal claim to them, as
when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the
Village has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is
removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

Budgets

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting

principles. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted (at the fund level) for the
General, Special Revenue (except the Foreign Fire Insurance Fund), Debt Service
(except the Corporate Purpose Bond Fund Series of 2002) and Capital Projects Funds
on the modified accrual basis and for the Enterprise, Internal Service and Pension
Trust Funds on the accrual basis. The annual appropriated budget is legally enacted
and provides for a legal level of control at the fund level. All annual appropriations
lapse at fiscal year end.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d.

Budgets (Continued)
During the current year, budgets were not adopted for the following funds:

Special Revenue Funds:
Foreign Fire Insurance
Debt Service Funds:
Corporate Purpose Bond Fund Series of 2002

The source of revenue and nature of expenditures for these funds are not subjeet to
prediction, and therefore, budgets were not adopted. Budget and actual comparisons

for the Special Revenue Funds and Debt Service Funds exclude the aforementioned
funds.

The following is a reconciliation of the Special Revenue Funds and Debt Service
Funds presented on a budgetary basis to the GAAP basis presentation:

Special Debt
Revenue Service
Funds Funds
FUND BALANCES - BUDGETED FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2002 - NON-GAAP BASIS § 3,827,590 § 93,554
Nonbudgeted fund balances
Foreign Fire Insurance 39,537 -
Corporate Purpose Bond Fund Series of 2002 - 955,369
FUND BALANCES, DECEMBER 31, 2002
GAAP BASIS $ 3,867,127 § 1,048,923

Cash and Investments
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Village’s proprietary fund types
consider all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or

less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Investments

In accordance with Government Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 31, all
investments are stated at fair valuoe.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued}

g-

Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual
funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are
classified as “‘due from other funds™ or “due to other funds” on the balance sheet.
Short-term interfund loans, if any, are classified as “interfund receivables/payables.”
Long-term loans between funds are reported as “advances to/from other fund”.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out
(FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund type inventories are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Prepaid Items/Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of
this report are recorded as prepaid items/expenses.

Fixed Assets

General fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct
them. Instead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in
governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in the general fixed assets
account group. All purchased fixed assets are valued at cost where historical records
are available and at an estimated historical cost where no historical records exist.
Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date received.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related fixed assets, as applicable.

Public domain (“infrastructure”) general fixed assets consisting of roads, bridges,
curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems are
not capitalized, as these assets are immovable and of value only to the Village.

Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not depreciated. Depreciation of
buildings, equipment, water/sewer systems and vehicles in the proprietary fund types
is computed using the straight-line method.

Interest is capitalized on proprietary fund assets acquired with tax-exempt debt. The
amount of interest to be capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense
incurred from the date of the borrowing until completion of the project with interest
earned on invested proceeds over the same period.

-20 -




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation leave that 1s expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund
liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. Vested or accumulated vacation
leave of proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the
benefits accrue to employees.

Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due or when
resources have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the
following year. For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be
financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund liability
of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is reported in the
general long-term debt account group. Long-term liabilities expected to be financed
from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those funds.

Fund Equity

Contributed capital is recorded in proprietary funds that have received capital grants
prior to December 31, 2000 or contributions from developers, customers or other
funds. Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for
expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund balances
represent tentative plans for future use of financial resources.

Bond Discounts/Issuance Costs

In governmental fund types, bond discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the
current period. Bond discounts and issuance costs for proprietary fund types are
deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds using the bonds outstanding
method, which approximates the effective interest method. Bond discounts are
presented as a reduction of the face amount of bonds payable, whereas issuance costs
are recorded as deferred charges.

Interfund Transactions

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses
initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
expenditures/expenses i the fund that is reimbursed.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0.

Interfund Transactions (Continued)

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and
reimbursements, are reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent
transfers of equity are reported as residual equity transfers. All other interfund
transfers are reported as operating transfers.

Memorandum Only - Total Columns

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned
“memorandum only” to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial
analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position or results of
operations in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither are
such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made
in the aggregation of this data.

Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in selected sections of
the accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of’
changes in the Village’s financial position, operations, and cash flows. There have
been some reclassifications between individual lines in the prior year columns in
order to present more comparable data.

GASB Pronouncements

The Village has elected, under the provisions of GASB Statement 20, titled
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,” to apply all
applicable GASB pronouncements and all FASB Statements and Interpretations,
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins
(ARB) issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements.

2. LEGAL COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgets

All departments of the Village submit requests for appropriation to the Village
Manager so that a budget may be prepared. The budget is prepared by fund and
includes information on the past year, current year estimates and requested
appropriations for the next fiscal year.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.

LEGAL COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

a.

Budgets (Continued)

The proposed budget is presented to the governing body for review. The governing
body holds public hearings and may add to, subtract from, or change appropriations,
but may not change the form of the budget.

- The Village Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between

departments within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures
of any fund must be approved by the governing body.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level.
During the year, a supplementary appropriation was necessary.

Deficit Fund Balances of Individual Funds

The following funds had a deficit in fund balance/retained earnings as of the date of
this report:

Deficit

Fund Balance
GNAS Redevelopment § 50,806
GNAS Caretaker - 58,518
GNAS Bond Fund Series 1995 3,553,126
North Maine Water and Sewer 235,976

Excess of Actual Expenditures/Expenses Over Budget in Individual Funds

The following funds had an excess of actual expenditures/expenses (exclusive of
depreciation and amortization) over budget for the fiscal year:

Fund _ Excess
Capital Projects - § 111,481
Insurance 113,602
Firefighters’ Pension 15,769
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOGIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ({Continued)

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Village maintains a cash and investment pool that 1s available for use by all funds, -
except the pension trust funds. Each fund type’s portion of this pool is displayed on the
combined balance sheet as “cash and investments.” In addition, investments are separately
held by several of the Village’s funds. The deposits and investments of the pension trust
funds are held separately from those of other funds. Cash on hand of $500 for the primary
government has been excluded from the amounts shown below.

Permitted Deposits and Investments - Statutes authorize the Village to make
deposits/invest in insured commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of
the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, insured credit union shares, money market mutual
funds with portfolios of securities issued or guaranteed by the United States or agreements
to repurchase these same obligations, repurchase agreements, short-term commercial paper
rated within the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating services and the
Illinois Funds. Pension funds may also invest in certain non-U.S. obligations, Illinois
municipal corporations tax anticipation warrants, veteran’s loans, obligations of the State
of Illinois and its political subdivisions and Illinois insurance company general and
separate accounts, mutual funds and equity securities.

Illinois Funds is an investment pool managed by the State of Illinois, Office of the
Treasurer, which allows governments within the State to pool their funds for investment
purposes. Illinois Funds is not registered with the SEC as an investment company, but
does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of
1940. Investments in Illinois Funds are valued at Illinois Fund’s share price, which is the
price the investment could be sold for.

a.  Deposits
At year end, the carrying amount of the primary government’s deposits totaled

$33,645,591 and the bank balances totaled $34,635,769. The carrying amount of the
component unit’s deposits totaled $517,913 and the bank balances totaled $575,727.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, [ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

a.

Deposits (Continued)

Bank Balances

Primary Component

Govemment Unit

Category 1
Deposits covered by federal depository insurance,
or by collateral held by the Village, or its agent, in
the Village’s name. $ 34,635,769 § 575,727

Category 2
Deposits covered by collateral held by the pledging
financial institution’s trust department, or its agents,
in the Village’s name. - -

Category 3
Deposits covered by collateral held by the pledging
financial institution, or its trust department, or its
agent but not in the Village’s name, and deposits
which are uninsured and uncollateralized. - -

TOTAL DEPOSITS $ 34,635,769 § 575,727

For pension trust funds, the types of deposits authorized and the mix of credit risk
categories do not differ significantly from the other funds of the Village.

Investments

The Village’s investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of
custodial credit risk assumed by the entity at year end. Category 1 includes
investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the
Village or its agent in the Village’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the secunties are held by the counterparty’s trust
department or agent in the Village’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregistered mvestments for which the securities are held by the counterparty in the
Village’s name, or held by any third party not in the Village’s name, and uninsured,
unregistered investments.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3.  DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
b.  Investments (Continued)

Primary Government

Fair Value
Category
1 2 3 Totals
U.S. Treasury Securities § 8§8,109388 § - 3 - § B%,109,388
U.S. Agency Securities 54,715,749 - - 54,715,749
Corporate bonds 23,369,581 - - 23,369,581
Municipal bonds 752,075 - - 752,075
$166,946,793 § - 5 - 166,946,793
* Tlinois Funds ’ 36,589,532
* Mutual Funds 4,240,274
* Insurance coniracts and separate accourts 2,648,191
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $ 210,424,790

* Not subject to custodial credit risk categorization
Component Unit

Investments for the Component unit consist of $651,520 of [llinois Funds. Illinois
Funds are not subject to custodial credit risk categorization, and the fair value of the
position in the external pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.

4. RECEIVABLES TAXES

Property taxes for 2002 attach as an enforceable lien on January 1, 2002 on property values
assessed as of the same date. Taxes are levied by December of the fiscal year (by passage
of a Tax Levy Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared by the County and issued on or about
Fehruary 1, 2002 and August I, 2002 and are payable in two installments, on or about
March 1, 2002 and September 1, 2002. The County collects such taxes and remits them
periodically. The allowance for uncollectible taxes has been sfated at 2% of the tax levy, to
reflect actual collection experience.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. FIXED ASSETS
a.  General Fixed Assets Account Group

The following is a summary of changes in the general fixed assets account group

during the fiscal year:
Primary Government
Balances Balanees
January 1 Additions Retirements  December 31
Land £ 5,643,853 § - % - § 5,643,853
Building and
improvements 10,279,448 - - 10,279 448
Equipment 10,113,046 447,075 576,997 9,983,124
Furniture ‘ 295,072 - - 295,072
Office equipment 868,527 144,513 - 1,013,040
TOTAL GENERAL
FIXED ASSETS § 27199946 3§ 591,588 % 576,997 § 27,214,537
Component Unit
Balances Balances
January 1 Additions Retirements  December 31
Land $ 500,000 $ - § - % 500,000
Building and
improvements 4,125,488 - - 4125488
Furniture and equipment 870,278 28,832 - 899,110
TOTAL GENERAL
FIXED ASSETS $ 5495766 % - 3 - § 5,524,598
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, JLLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.  FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
b.  Proprietary Fixed Assets

The following is a summary of proprietary fund type fixed assets as of the date of this

report:
Internal
Enterprise Service
Land and improvements $ 302,851 § -
Buildings 243,645 -
Building improvements 203,309 -
Water/sewer systems 45,078,605 - -
Equipment and vehicles 2,838,725 55,958
Office furniture and equipment : 18,672 -
Total fixed assets 48,685,807 55,958
Less accumulated depreciation (14,003,032) (11,991
NET FIXED ASSETS $34,682,775 § 43,967

In proprietary funds, the following estimated useful lives are used to compute

depreciation:

Building improvements 10-20 years
Water/sewer systems 50 years
Buildings 40-50 years
Equipment and vehicles 3-10 years
Qffice fumiture and equipment 3-10 years

6. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; illnesses of employees;
and natural disasters. The Village is self-insured (and participates in two public employee
risk pools) for all risks and has established a risk-financing fund, Insurance Fund (Fund),
for all risks. It is accounted for as an internal service fund where assets are set aside for
claim settlements. Under this program, the Fund provides coverage up to a maximum of
$1,000,000 for each general liability claim, $50,000 for each workers’ compensation claim
and $50,000 for each property damage claim. The Village purchases commercial insurance
for claims in excess of the coverages provided by the Fund. Settled claims have not
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

All funds of the Village participate and make payments to the Fund based upon actuarial
estimates of the amounts needed io pay prior and current year claims. Liabilities of the
Fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss
can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been
incurred but not reported (IBNR). Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of
inflation, recent claim settlement trends including frequency and amount of payouts and
other economic and societal factors. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during
the past two fiscal years are as follows:

2002 2001
CLAIMS PAYABLE, JANUARY 1 Y 372,996 § 269,622
Add claims incurred 647,298 860,504
Less claims paid (843,709) (757,130)
CLAIMS PAYARBLE, DECEMBER 31 3 176,585 % 372,996

Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC)

The Village participates in the Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC).
IPBC is a public entity risk pool established by certain units of local government in Illinois
to administer some or all of the personnel benefit programs (primarily medical, dental and
life insurance coverage) offered by its members to their officers and employees and to the
officers and employees of certain other governmental, quasi-governmental and nonprofit
public service entities. Risk of loss is retained by the Village, except that IPBC purchases
excess coverage policies.

Management consists of a Board of Directors comprised of one appointed representative
from each member. In addition, there are three officers, a Benefit Administrator, and a
Treasurer. The Village does not exercise any control over activities of [PBC beyond its
representation on the Board of Directors.

High-Level Excess Liability Pool (HELP)

The Village participates in the High-Level Excess Liability Pool (HELP). HELP is a
public entity risk pool established by certain municipalities in Illinois to provide excess
liability coverage (510,000,000 of coverage after a $1,000,000 self-insurance retention).
The Village’s payments to HELP are displayed on the financial statements as expenses in
the Insurance Fund.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
High-Level Excess Liability Pool (HELP) (Continued)

HELP was organized on April 1, 1987. The purpose of HELP is to act as a joint self-
insurance pool for the purpose of seeking the prevention or lessening of liability claims for
injuries to persons or property or claims for errors and omissions made against the members
and other parties included within the scope of coverage of HELP.

HELP is governed by a Board of Directors, which consists of one appointed representative
from each member municipality. Each director has an equal vote. The officers of HELP are
appointed by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors determines the general policy of
HELP; makes all appropriations; approves contracts; adopts resolutions providing for the
issuance of debt by HELP; adopts bylaws, rules and regulations; and exercises such powers
-and performs such duties as may be prescribed in the Agency Agreement or the bylaws.

The Village does not exercise any control over the activities of HELP beyond its
representation on the Board of Directors.

LONG-TERM DEBT
a.  Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

During the fiscal year, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported for
General Obligation Bonds:

Balances ‘Balances
January 1 Additions Retirements  December 31
Enterprise Funds | $§ 7,500,000 § - § 355000 % 7,145,000
General Long-Term Debt
Account Group 94,300,000 6,885,000 10,590,000 90,195,000
TOTAL $101,800,000 $ 6,885,000 § 11,345,000 § 97,340,000

b.  General Obligation Bonds

The Village issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued
for both general government and proprietary activities. These bonds therefore are
reported in the propnetary funds if they are expected to be repaid from proprietary
Tevenues.

-30-



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
b.  General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of
the Village. General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Fund Debt Balances Balances
Issue Retired By Japuary | Additions Reductions December 31

$2,895,000 Corporate

Purpose Bonds Series of

1992 dated April 1, 1992,

due in annual installments of

$10,000 to $255,000 plus Whole-

interest at 4.00% to 5.90% sale

through Decemnber 1, 2012. Water 5 2,050,000 % - % 130,000 $ 1,920,000

$7,635,000 Corporate

Purpose Bonds Series of

1993 dated May 1, 1993, due

in annual installments of

$205,000 to $1,345,000 plus

interest at 4.60% to 4.70% Debt

through December 1, 2005, Service 4,455,000 - 4,455,000 -

58,040,000 Corporate

Purpose Bond Series of 1994

dated September 15, 1994,

due in annual installments of

$90,000 to $1,275,000 plus

intérest at 4.00% to 5.10%. Debt

through December 1, 2004. Service 2,355,000 - 2,255,000 -

$8,435,000 Corporate

Purpose Bond Series of 1996

dated November 1, 1994,

due in annual installments of

$675,000 to $1,050,000 plus

interest at 4.60% to 4.875% Debt

through December 1, 2008. Service 6,320,000 - 775,000 5,545,000

$6,175,000 Corporatc
Purpose Bond Series of 1997
dated August 1, 1997, due in North

annual installments of Main

$100,000.to $495,000 plus Water

interest at 4.875% to 5.00% and

through December 1, 2017. Sewer 5,450,000 - 225,000 5,225,000
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

7.

LONG-TERM DEBT {Continued)

b.

General Obligation Bonds {(Continued)

issue

Fund Debt
Retired By

Balances
January 1

Additions

Reductions

Balances
December 31

$10,000,000 General
Obligation Bond Series of
1998 A dated November 1,
1998, due in annual
installments of $695,000 to
$1,875,000 plus interest at
4.10% to 4.35% through
December 1, 2018.

$24,400,000 General
Obligation Bond Series of
19988 dated January 1,
1999, due in annual
installments of 31,000,000 to
$2,050,000 plus interest at
4.25% to 4.50% through
December 1, 2018.

54,970,000 General
Obligation Bond Series of
2000 dated December 15,
2000, due in annual
installments of $345,000 to
$1,875,000 plus interest at
4.30% to 4.5% through
December 1, 2008.

541,800,000 General
Obligation Bond Series of
2001 dated August 1, 2001,
due in annual installments of
$500,000 to $5,500,000 plug
interest at 3.50% to 4.35%
through December 1, 2012,

$6,885,000 General
Obligation Refunding Bond
Series of 2002 dated
February 15, 2002, due in
annual installments of
$1,315,000 to 52,010,000
plus interest at 1.85% to
3.40% through December 1,
2005.

TOTAL

Debt
Service

Debt
Service

Debt
Service

Debt
Serviee

Debt
Service

$ 10,000,000

24,400,000

4,970,000

41,800,000

6,885,000

1,395,000

2,010,000

$ 10,000,000

23,005,000

4,970,000

41,800,000

4,875,000

$101,800,000

§ 6,885,000

$ 11,345,000

§ 97,340,00




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

C.

Notes Payable

The Village enters into notes payable to provide funds for the acquisition of capital
assets. Notes payable have been issued for proprietary activities. The proprietary

liabilities are therefore reported in the proprietary funds.

Note payable currently outstanding is as follows:

Fund Debt Balances Balances

Issue Retired By Jamuary 1 Additions Reductions December 31
$2,850,000 Corporate
Purpose Note of 1997 dated .
Septemnber 2, 1937, due in North
annual installments of Maine
$215,377 plus interest paid Water
at 4.942% through and
September 1, 2019. Sewer § 2529058 § - 3 90,384 § 2438674
Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

General Corporate
Obligation Purpose
General Bonds Carried Notes Carried
Fiscal Obligation as Enterprise as Enterprise
Year Bonds Fund Liabilities = Fund Liabilities Totals
2003 $ B,274,745 § 767,596 % 215376 § 9,257,717
2004 8,263,674 761,906 215,376 9,240,956
2005 12,352,900 760,268 215,376 13,328,544
2006 12,409,350 762,352 215,376 13,387,078
2007 12,268,238 762,896 215,376 13,246,510
2008 11,117,946 766,966 215,376 12,100,288
2009 8,773,446 769,326 215,376 9,758,148
2010 8,576,164 769,866 215,376 9.561,406
2011 8,876,940 768,772 215,376 9,861,088
2012 8,645,940 775,956 215,376 9,637,272
2013 2,917,946 505,750 215,376 3,639,072
2014 2,931,070 511,000 215,376 3,657,446
2015 2,948,950 510,000 215,376 3,674,326
2016 2,966,050 513,000 215,377 3,694,427
2017 1 2,982,036 519,750 215,377 3,717,163
2018 3,001,563 - 215,377 3,216,940
2019 - - 215,377 215377
TOTAL PRINCIPAL
AND INTEREST $117,306,958 § 10,225,404 § 3,661,396 §131,193,758

INTEREST PORTION  § 27,111,958 § 3,080,404 § 1,222,722 § 31,415,084
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS (Continued)

b.  Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (SWANCC) (Continued)

SWANCC has entered into solid waste disposal contracts with the twenty-three
member municipalities. The contracts are irrevocable and may not be terminated or
amended except as provided in the contract. Each member 1s obligated, on a “take or
pay” basis, to purchase, or in any event, to pay for a minimum annual cost of the

system.

The obligation of the Village to make all payments as required by this contact is
unconditional and irrevocable, without regard to performance or nonperformance by
SWANCC of its obligations under this contract.

9. " INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES

Due From/To Other Funds
Payable Fund Receivable Fund Amount
General Municipal Equipment Repair 35,022
GNAS Bond Fund Series 1995 5,000
40,022
Special Revenue
GNAS - Redevelopment Municipal Equipment Repair 293
GNAS Caretaker General 17,909
18,202
Capital Projects
Village Permanent Glen Land Sales 19,800
Capital Equipment Replacement General 1,878
Capital Project Waterworks 1,209
GNAS Bond Fund Series 1995 1,931
2001 Project 37,260
GNAS Bond Fund Series 1995 Glen Land Sales 225,000
GNAS Redevelopment 31,000
318,078
Enterprise
Water General 105,468
Sewerage 70,550
Municipal Equipment Repair 13,119
Wholesale Water General 1,137
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, JLLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

c.

Legal Debt Margin
The Government is 2 home rule municipality.

Article VII, Section 6(k) of the 1970 Illinois Constitution governs computation of the
legal debt margin.

“The General Assembly may limit by law the amount and require referendum
approval of debt to be incurred by home rule municipalities, payable from ad
valorem property tax receipts, only in excess of the following percentages of
the assessed value of its taxable property . . . (2) if its population is more than
25,000 and less than 500,000 an aggregate of one percent: ... indebtedness
which js outstanding on the effective date (July 1, 1971) of this constitution or
which 1s thereafier approved by referendum . . . shail not be included in the
foregoing percentage amounts.”

To date, the General Assembly has set no limits for home rule municipalities.
Advance Refunding - General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1994

In February 2002, the Village issued $6,885,000 General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2002 bonds, the proceeds of which were used to advance refund,
$4,455,000 of the 1993 Series General Obligation Bonds and $2,355,000 of the 1994
Series General Obligation Bonds. This advance refunding was undertaken to reduce
total debt service payments over the next four years by $190,805, and to obtain an
economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service payments of
the refunded and refunding bonds) of $120,405 of the old debt.

Noncommitment Debt
Special Service Area Bonds
Special service area bonds outstanding as of the date of this report totaled $803,890.

These bonds are not an obligation of the Village and are secured by the levy of
special service on the real property within the special service area. The Village is in

no way liable for repayment but is only acting as the agent for the property owners in

levying and collecting the assessinents and forwarding the collections to the
bondholders.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

g

Noncommitment Debt (Continued) ‘
Conduit Debt

The Village has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds (IDRBs) to provide
financial assistance to private organizations for the construction and acquisition of
industrial and commercial improvements deemed to be in the public interest, The
bonds are secured solely by the property financed and are payable solely from the
payments received on the underlying mortgage loans on the property. The Village is
not obligated in any manner for the repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds
outstanding are not reported as a liability in these financial statements. As of
December 31, 2002, there was one series of IDRBs outstanding. The aggregate
principal amount payable for the IDRBs outstanding was $9,165,000.

8. CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

High-Level Excess Liability Pool (HELP)

The Village has committed to purchase excess liabihty insurance from the High-
Level Excess Liability Pool (HELP), a public entity risk pool for certain Illinois
municipalities through April 30, 2008.

These amounts have been calculated using the Village’s current allocation percentage
of 7.81%. In future years, this allocation percentage will be subject to change
because the HELP Agreement provides that each year members will be -assessed
based upon a formula that specifies the following four criteria for allocating premium
costs:

Miles of Streets

Full-Time Equivalent Employees
Number of Motor Vehicles
Operating Revenues

Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (SWANCC)
The Village has committed to pay its share of the @annual operating costs and fixed
costs of the SWANCC. The Village's share of costs is expected to be funded

through tipping fees paid by refuse haulers. The Village began dehvering refuse to
SWANCC in May of 1995.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS (Continued)

b.  Solhd Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (SWANCC) (Continued)

SWANCC has entered into solid waste disposal contracts with the twenty-three
member municipalities. The contracts are irrevocable and may not be terminated or
amended except as provided in the contract. Each member is obligated, on a “take or
pay” basis, to purchase, or in any event, to pay for a minimum annual cost of the

systemL.

The obligation of the Village to make all payments as required by this contact is
unconditional and ifrevocable, without regard to performance or nonperformance by
SWANCC of its obligations under this contract.

9.  INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES

Due From/To Other Funds
Payable Fund Receivable Fund Amount
General Municipal Equipment Repair 35,022
GNAS Bond Fund Series 1995 5,000
40,022
Special Revenue
GNAS - Redevelopment Municipal Equipment Repair 293
GNAS Caretaker General 17,909
18,202
Capital Projects
Village Permanent (Glen Land Sales 19,800
Capital Equipment Replacement General 1,878
Capital Project Waterworks 1,209
GNAS Bond Fund Senies 1995 1,931
2001 Project 37,260
GNAS Bond Fund Series 1995 Glen Land Sales 225,000
GNAS Redevelopment 31,000
318,078
Enterprise

Water General 105,468
Sewerage 70,550
Municipal Equipment Repair 13,119
Wholesale Water (General 1,137
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES (Continued)

Due From/Teo Other Funds (Continued)

Payable Fund Receivable Fund Amount
Enterprise (Continued)
Sewerage General $ 11,865
Municipal Equipment Repair 1,144
Commuter Parking General 1,051
North Maine Water and Sewer General 26,810
Municipal Equipment Repair 5,324
236,468
Intemal Service
Municipal Equipment Repair General , 19,383
19,383
Trust and Agency
Escrow Deposit Glen Land Sales 108,308
108,308
TOTAL $ 740461
Advances From/To Other Funds
Payable Fund Receivable Fund Amount
Capital Projects
Capital Equipment Replacement Waterworks $ 819,113
North Maine Water and Sewer 109,095
Sewerage 116,972
Capital Projects Waterworks 1,614,109
Glen Land Sales Village Permanent 11,182,130
TOTAL $13,841,419
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The Village maintains the following enterprise funds, which are intended to be self-
supporting through user fees charged for services to the public. Financial segment
information as of the date of this report and for the fiscal year is as follows:

Operating revenues

Depreciation and amortization expense

Operating income

Operating transfers in

Operating transfers (out)

Net income (loss)

Current capital contributions

Current capital transfers

Plant, property and equipment
Additions
Deletions

Total assets

Net working capital

Bonds and other long-term liabilities
Payable from operating revenues

Total equity

Operating revenues

Depreciation and amortization expense

Operating income

Operating transfers in

Operating transfers (out)

Net income (1oss)

Current capital contributions

Current capital transfers

Plant, property and equipment
Additions
Deletions

Total assets

Net working capital

Bonds and other long-term liabilities
Payable from operating revenues

Total equity

North Maine

Wholesale Water and

Waterworks Water Sewer
$ 7,378,141 $ 1,419,995 $ 5,757,471
668,509 63,859 259,594
1,887,533 485,750 1,004,379
- 30,000 ) -
(1,152,911) (513,150) (604,470)
800,107 - (112,728) 38,368
5,343,033 - -
6,291,998 - -
28,875,171 2,509,032 7,823,543
7,069,546 312,331 914,458
- 1,920,000 7,663,674
28,081,014 451,575 (235,976)

Commuter
Parking

Sewerage Lot Totals
$ 1,031,229 § 280,692 3 15,867,528
128,866 8,132 1,128,960
530,641 81,805 3,990,108
- - 30,000
(288,176) (48,050) (2,606,757)
249,194 59,989 1,034,930
425,650 - 5,768,683
755,649 - 7,047,647
6,391,458 880,722 46,479,925
769,865 301,866 9,368,066
- - 9,583,674
6,372,481 335,762 35,004,856




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

During the current year, contributed capital increased by the following amounts:

Waterworks Sewerage Totals
INCREASES
Contribution of capital $ 5,343,033 3 425,650 § 5,768,683
DECREASES
None - _ - -
Net increase (decrease) 5,343,033 425,650 5,768,683
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL, JANUARY 1 4,298,906 2,067,487 6,366,393
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL, DECEMBER 31 $ 9641939 § 2,493,137 § 12,135076

12. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
a.  Litigation

The Village is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these
lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the Village Attorney, the
resofution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the Village.

b. Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the
grantor cannot be determined at this time although the Village expects such amounts,
if any, to be immaterial.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

C.

High-Level Excess Liability Pool (HELP)

The Village has committed to purchase excess liability insurance from the High-level
Excess Liability Pool (HELP) through April 30, 2008. The Village expects to make the
following payments to HELP:

Year Ending

December 31 Amount
2003 Y 94,962
2004 94,962
2005 94,962
2006 94,962
2007-2008 189,924

Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (SWANCC)

The Village has committed to make payments to SWANCC for solid waste refuse
disposal and expects to pay the following amounts:

Year Ending

December 31 Amount
2003 $ 216,001
2004 216,042
2005 216,084
2006 216,016
2007-2022 2,159,727

These amounts have been estimated based upon the Village’s commitment for 2002. In
future years, the annual expense will be subject to change based upon the actual
tonnage of refuse disposed of and current SWANCC costs.




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13.

JOINT VENTURES
Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (SWANCC)
Description of Joint Venture

The Village is a member of the Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (SWANCC)
which consists of twenty-three municipalities. SWANCC is a municipal corporation and
public body politic and corporate established pursuant to the Constitution of the State of
Illinois and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act of the State of Illinois, as amended (the
Act). SWANCC 1s empowered underthe Act to plan, construct, finance, operate and
maintain a solid waste disposal system to serve its members.

SWANCC is govermed by a Board of Directors which consists of one appointed mayor or
president from each member munictpality. Each director has an equal vote. The officers of
SWANCC are appointed by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors determines the
general policy of SWANCC; makes all appropriations; approves contracts; adopts
resolutions providing for the issuance of bonds or notes by SWANCC; adopts bylaws, rules
and regulations; and exercises such powers and performs such duties as may be prescribed
in the SWANCC Agreement or the bylaws.

Complete financial statements for SWANCC can be obtained from the SWANCC’s
administrative office at 1616 East Golf Road, Des Plaines, Illinois 60016 or available on
the web at www.swancc.com.

SWANCC’s outstanding bonds are revenue obligations. They are limited obligations of
SWANCC with a clatin for payment solely from and secured by a pledge of the revenues of
SWANCC and amounts in various funds and accounts established by agency resolutions.
The bonds are not the debt of any member. SWANCC has no power to levy taxes.

Revenues of SWANCC consist of (1} all receipts derived from solid waste disposal
contracts or any other contracts for the disposal of waste; (2) all income derived from the
investment of monies; and (3) all income, fees, and service charges and all grants, rents and
receipts derived by SWANCC from the ownership and operation of the system. SWANCC
covenants to establish fees and charges sufficient to provide revenues to meet all its
requirements.

In accordance with the contract, the Village made $774,819 in payments to SWANCC for
the year ended December 31, 2002. The payments are recorded in the Refuse and
Recycling Fund. The Village does not have an equity imterest in SWANCC at

December 31, 2002.
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14. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the Village provides post-
employment health care benefits for retired public safety employees. Substantially all of
the Village’s public safety employees may become eligible for those benefits if they reach
normal retirement age while working for the Village. The cost of retiree health care
benefits is recognized as an expenditure as claims are paid. For the fiscal year, those costs
total $284,006 for the 65 participants. The retirees pay an annual premium, which is equal
to the actuarially determined cost for each plan year. Accordingly, no liability has been
recorded for post-retirement health care benefits.

15. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
a.  Plan Descriptions and Provisions

The Village contributes to three defined benefit pension plans, the Illinois Municipal
Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent-multiple-employer public employee retirement
system; the Police Pension Plan which is a single-employer pension plan; and, the
Firefighters® Pension Plan which is also a single-employer pension plan. The
benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions and employer contributions for all
three plans are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes and can only be amended by
the Illinois General Assembly. None of the pension plans issue separate reports on
the pension plans. However, IMRF does issue a publicly available report that
includes financial statements and supplementary information for the plan as a whole,
but not for individual employers. That report can be obtained from IMRF, 2211
York Road, Suite 500, Oak Brook, [llinois 60523,

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

All employees (other than those covered by the Police or Firefighters’ plans) hired in
positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be enrolled
in IMRF as participating members. Pension benefits vest after eight years of service.
Participating members who retire at or after age 60 with eight years of credited
service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an
amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited
service up to 15 years and 2% for each year thereafter. IMRF also provides death
and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are
established by state statute. Participating members are required to contribute 4.5%
of their annual salary to IMRF, The Village is required to contribute the remaining
-amounts necessary to fund the IMRF as specified by statute. The employer
contribution for the year ended December 31, 2002 was 5.73% of covered payroll.




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions and Provisions {Continued)
Police Pension

Police swom personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan. Although this is a
single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee and employer
contributions levels are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (Chapter 40
Article 5/3) and may be amended only by the Illinois legislature, The Village
accounts for the plan as a pension trust fund. At December 31, 2001, the Police
Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 32
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet

receiving them ' -
Current employees

Vested 46
Nonvested 30
TOTAL 108

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability
benefits. Covered employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years
of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit of one-half of
the salary attached to the rank held on the last day of service or for one year prior to
the last day, whichever is greater. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.50% of
such salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a
maximum of 75.00% of such salary. Employees with at least eight years but less than
20 years of credited service may retire at or afier age 60 and receive a reduced
benefit. The monthly pension of a police officer who retired with 20 or more years
of service afier January 1, 1977 shall be increased annually, following the first
anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years,
by 3.00% of the original pension and 3.00% compounded annually thereafter.

Employees are required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Police Pension
Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service,
accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest.
The Village is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance the
plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary. Effective July 1, 1993, the
Village’s contributions must accumulate to the point where the past service cost for
the Police Pension Plan is fully funded by the year 2033. For the year ended
December 31, 2002, the Village’s contribution was 8.47% of covered payroll.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)
a.  Plan Descriptions and Provisions (Continued)
Firefighters’ Pension

Fire sworn personnel are covered by the Firefighters’ Pension Plan, which is a
defined benefit single-employer pension plan. Although this is a singlg-employer
pension plan, the defined benefits as well as the employee and employer
contributions levels are mandated by Ilinois Compiled Statutes (Chapter 40 *
Article 5/4) and may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. The Village
accounts for the plan as a pension trust fund. At December 31, 2001, the
Firefighters’ Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 39
Terminated emplovees entitled to benefits but not yet
receiving them . S

Current employees
Vested 51
Nonvested 35
TOTAL 125

The Firefighters’ Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and
disability benefits. Employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years
of creditable service are entitled to receive a monthly retirement benefit of one-half
of the monthly salary attached to the rank held in the fire service at the date of
retirement. The monthly pension shall be increased by 1/]12 of 2.50% of such
monthly salary for each additional month over 20 years of service through 30 years of
service to a maximum of 75.00% of such monthly salary. Employees with at least 10
years but less than 20 years of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and
receive a reduced retirement benefit. The monthly pension of a covered employee
who retired with 20 or more years of service after January I, 1977 shall be increased
annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and paid upon reaching at
least the age 55, by 3% of the original pension and 3% compounded annually
thereafter.

Covered employees are required to contribute 8.455% of their salary to the
Firefighters’ Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less
than 20 years of service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded
without accumulated interest. The Village is required to contribute the remaining
amounts necessary to finance the plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled
actuary. Effective July 1, 1993, the Village’s contributions must accumulate to the
point where the past service cost for the Firefighters” Pension Plan 1s fully funded by
the year 2033. For the year ended December 31, 2002, the Village’s contribution
was 4.996% of covered payroll.




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued})

b.

Significant Investments

There are no investments (other than U.S. government and U.S. government
guaranteed obligations) in any one organization that represent 5.00% or more of net
assets for either the Police or the Firefighter’s Pension Plans. Information for IMRF

1s not available.

Employer contributions have been determined as follows:

INinois
Municipal Police Firefighters’
Retirement Pension Pension
Actuarial Valuation Date Deécember 31, January 1, January 1,
2000 2002 2002
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-age Entry-age Entry-age
Normal Normal Normal
Asset Valuation Method 5Year Market Market
Smoothed
Market
Amorlization Method Level Level Level
Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of
Payroll Payroll Payrell
Amortization Period 10 Years, 33 Years, 33 Years,
Closed Closed Closed
Significant Actuarial Assumptions
a) Rale of Return on 7.50% 8.00% 8.00%
Present and Future Assets Compounded Compounded Compounded
Annually Annually Annually
b} Projected Salary Increase - 4.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Attributable to Inflation Compounded Compounded Compounded
Annually Annually Annually
¢} Additional Projected A0t 11.60% 2.50% 2.50%
Salary Increases -
Seniority/Merit
d) Post-Retirement Benefit 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

Increases

Employer annual pension cost (APC), actual contributions and the net pension
obligation (asset) (NPO) are as follows. The NPO (asset) is the cumulative

difference between the APC and the contributions actually made.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

b.  Significant nvestments {Continued)

1llinois
Municipal Police Firefighters’

Year Retirement* Pension™ Pension*
Annual Pension Cost 2000 F 825,173 § 186,505 § 45,527
{APC) 2001 796,191 435,292 403,804

2002 706,259 N/A N/A
Actual Contribution 2000 $  B25,173 ¢ 427503 § 173,821

2001 796,191 388,310 257,224

2002 706,259 N/A N/A
Percentage of APC Contributed 2000 100.00% 229.2% 381.8%

2001 100.00 89.2 63.7

2002 100,00 N/A N/A
NPO (Asset) 2000 S - (260,510) S (318,219)

2001 - {213,528) (171,639)

2002 - N/A N/A

* Information presented is for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2000, 2001
and 2002 from actuarial reports as of December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001.

The net pension obligation {asset) has been calculated as follows:

Police Firefighters’

Pension Pension
Annual required contributions $ 444665 $§ 415,254
Interest on net pension obligation (20,841) (25,458)
Adjustment to annual required eontribution 11,468 14,008
Amnnual pension cost 435,292 403,804
Contributions made 388,310 257,224
(Increase) decrease in net pension obligation (asset) 46,982 146,580
Net pension obligation (asset) beginning of year {260,510) {(318,219)

NET PENSION OBLIGATION (ASSET),
END OF YEAR $  (213528) §  (171,639)




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. SALE OF LAND
As part of the development of the property formerly occupied by the Glenview Naval Air
Station, $2,321,521 was recorded as revenue in the Glen Land Sales Fund for the sale of
land.

17. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The Village corrected a prior year error by increasing fund balance in the Glen Land Sales
Fund by $45,571.

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
The Village issued $9,990,000 of 2003 A General Obligation Refunding Bonds and

$1,955,000 of 2003B General Obligation Refunding Bonds, both series dated April 1,
2003.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
JLLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

December 31, 2002

(4 UAAL
(2) Unfunded (OAAL)
Actuarial (Overfunded) Asa
Actuarial (D Accrued (3) AAL Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded (UAAL) (5) of Covered
Date Value of (AAL) Ratio {OAAL) Covered Payroll
December 31 Assets - Entry Age (1Y /(2) (2) - (1) Payroll (4)/(5)
1997 $ 15,304,133 § 16,257,078 04.14% $§ 952,945 § 8,360,225 11.40%
1998 17,834,171 17,399,577 102.50% (434,594) 8,842,628 (4.91%)
1999 20,971,639 19,680,215 106.56%  (1,291,424) 9,514,512 (13.57%)
2000 24,477,730 21,780,735 11233%  (2,686,995) 10,379,550 (25.89%)
2001 26,203,617 23,785,832 110.16%  (2,417,785) 11,708,708 (20.65%)
2002 25,950,441 25,778,690 100.67% (171,751) 12,325,643 (1.39%)

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

POLICE PENSION FUND
December 31, 2002
(2) UAAL
Actuarial (4) Asa
Actuarial (1) Accrued (3) Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Actuanal Liability Funded AAT {5) of Covered
Date Value of {AAL) Ratio (UAAT) Covered Payroll
December 31 Assets - Entry Age (1)/(2) {2)- (1) Payroll (4)/(5)
1997 $ 23,553,282 § 23,162,656 101.69% $ (3590,626) § 3,687,295  (10.59%)
1998 27,211,245 24,277,701 112.08%  (2,933,544) 2,789,745 (105.15%)
1999 25,629,270 25,769,884 99.45% 140,614 4,008,451 3.51%
2000 29,157,173 30,130,881 96.77% 973,708 4,309,083 22.60%
2001 29,380,377 31,728,241 92.60% 2,347,864 4,583,354 ©51.23%
2002 NA NA NA NA NA NA

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

December 31, 2002

(4) UAAL
@) Unfunded (OAAL)
Actuarial {Overfunded) Asa
Actuanal (1 Accrued (3) AAL Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded (UAAT) (5) of Covered
Date Value of (AAL) Ratio {OAAL) Covered Payroll
December 31 Assets - Entry Age (/) (2)-{1) Payroll 4)/(5)
1997 3 34,502,380 5 29,741,118 116.01% § (4,761,262) § 4,253,196 (111.95%)
1998 37,887,879 31,839,389 119.00% (6,048,490) 4,304,126 (140.53%)
1999 36,747,302 34,999,514 104.99% (1,747,788) 4,506,495 (38.78%)
2000 40,166,889 38,856,179 103.37% (1,310,710) 4,760,709 (27.53%)
2001 41,979,483 40,548,063 103.53% (1,431,420) 5,148,997 (27.80%)
2002 NA NA NA NA NA NA

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
[LLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

December 31, 2002

Annual
Pension
Calendar Employer Cost Percentage
Year Contributions (APC) Contributed
1997 $ 764,282 $ 764,282 100.00%
1998 £04,679 804,679 100.00%
1999 831,568 831,568 100.00%
2000 825,173 825,173 100.00%
2001 796,191 796,191 100.00%
2002 706,259 706,259 100.00%

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
POLICE PENSION FUND

December 31, 2002

Annual
Pension
Calendar Employer Cost Percentage

Year Contributions (APC) Contributed
1997 $ 398,347 $ 364,249 109.36%
1998 376,836 389,071 96.86%
1999 387,208 389,558 99.40%
2000 427,503 186,505 229.22%
2001 388,310 435,292 89.21%
2002 540,072 NA NA

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

December 31, 2002

Calendar
Year

1997

1998
1999

2000
2001

2002

Annual
Pension
Employer Cost
Contributions __(APG)
$ 247,575 $ 200,526
236,334 127,498
157,476 123,437
173,821 45,527
257,224 403,804
527,906 NA

(See independent auditor's report.}
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Percentage
Contributed

123.46%

185.36%
127.58%

381.80%
63.70%

NA




GENERAL FUND

The General Fund, also referred to as the Corporate Fund, is used to account for resources

traditionally associated with governmental services not required to be accounted for in another
fund.




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
BALANCE SHEET l
GENERAL FUND .
December 31, 2002 I
(with comparative totals for 2001)
2002 2001
ASSETS I
Cash $ 2,152,023 § 1,110,151 '
Investments 12,879,980 13,646,605
Receivables
Taxes l
Property taxes 5,731,379 5,785,884
Sales tax 2,628,031 1,968,913
Income tax 347,858 - I
Utility taxes 712911 343,995
Accounts 94,575 42,696
Other » 192,573 118,587 |
Due from other governments - 32,385
Due from other funds 185,501 137,073
TOTAL ASSETS $ 24924831 § 23,186,289 |
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE l
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable h 349.836 § 547977
Accrued payroll 100,907 77,179 I
Compensated absences payable 1,671,823 1,531,691
Infrastructure maintenance fee 974,017 898,295 _
Other payables 28,341 25,911 l
Due to other funds 40,022 137314
Deferred revenue 129,664 243,325
Deferrcd property taxes 5,731,379 5,785,884 I
Total liabilities 9,025,989 9,247,576
FUND BALANCE II
Reserved for Patton Honse 10,000 10,000 )
Unreserved l
Designated for income tax surcharge receipts 1,334,848 1,334 848 ‘
Undesignated 14,553,994 12,593,865
Total fund balance 15,898,842 13,938,713 I
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE § 24924831 § 23,186,289 .
See accompanying notcs to financial statements. I
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, JLLINO1S

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
‘GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
{with comparative actual for 2001)

2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual
REVENUES
Taxes $10,739,460 §$ 10,611,837 § 10,704,456
Licenses and permits 2,246,700 2,415,483 2,810,000
Intergovernmental 13,626,000 14,858,166 13,360,398
Charges for services 2,160,575 1,109,048 1,152,553
Fines and forfeits 225,000 207,720 215,284
Investment income 475,000 401,213 769,833
Miscellaneous 865,150 879,251 1,581,342
Total revenues 30,337,885 30,482,718 30,593,866
EXPENDITURES
General government 7,296,598 6,163,725 5,584,274
Public safety 16,503,505 16,013,303 15,584,519
Highways and streets 6,407,251 6,133,143 5,895,520
Total expenditures 30,207,354 28,310,171 27,064,313
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 130,531 2,172,547 3,529,553
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in
Wholesale Water Fund 112,150 112,150 105,000
Waterworks Fund 508,600 508,600 493,710
Sewerage Fund 71,175 71,180 68,500
North Maine Water and Sewer Fund 307,500 307,500 307,500
Commuter Parking {.ot Fund 45,000 45,000 37,000
GNAS - Redevelopment Fund 2,000 2,006 2,000
GNAS - Caretaker Fund 2,000 2,000 2,000
911 Communications Fund 120,000 120,000 -
Escrow Deposit Fund 150,000 120,000 172,351
Component Unit Library Fund 12,650 12,650 12,600
Operating transfers (out)
Capijtal Equipment Replacement Fund (1,225,223)  (1,225,220)  (1,061,930)
Debt Service Fund (219,335) (219,336)  (210,805)
Capital Projects Fund ~ {32,000) {68,942y  (2,079,000)

Total other financing sources (uses) (145,483) (212,418)  (2,151,074)

(This statement is continued on the following pagc.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
(with comparative actual for 2001)

2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING USES $  {14952) $ 1,960,129 § 17378479
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 13,938,713 12,189,197

Prior period adjustment - 371,037
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1, RESTATED 13,938,713 12_,560,234
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 515,898,842 § 13,938,713

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
_56-



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
(with comparative actual for 2001}

TAXES
Property taxes - current
Property taxes - pension
Property taxes - prior
Ultility tax - AT&T
Utility tax - mobile services
Utility tax - N. 1. Gas
Utility tax - Commonwealth Edison
Utility tax - Ameritech
Hotel room tax

Total taxes

LICENSES AND PERMITS
Business
Liquor
Pet
Building permits
Certificate of occupancy
Contractors fees
Plumbing and sewer
Driveway permits

Total licenses and permits

INTERGOVERNMENTAL
Glenbrook Fire Protection District
Replacement taxes
Sales tax
Illinois income tax
Photo use tax
Road and bridge
Road and bridge - prior
Village of Golf Fire Protection District
Miscellaneous intergovernment
Federal and state grants
Make-whole payment

Total intergovernmental

{(This schedule is contineed con the following page.)

2002 2001

Budget Actual Actual
$ 4869460 § 4729306 $ 5,129,360
1,090,000 1,067,978 614,606
50,000 79,948 64,914
195,000 522,700 215,291
555,000 717,880 621,813
600,000 554,443 941,153
1,825,000 1,869,105 1,718,139
755,000 455,394 650,992
300,000 615,083 748,188
10,739,460 10,611,837 10,704,456
65,000 76,096 71,921
90,000 98,100 93,950
5,000 4811 4,829
1,894,700 1,990,966 2,408,528
57,000 72,183 59,170
50,000 68,232 59.710
75,000 90,150 97,676
10,000 14,945 14,216
2,246,700 2,415,483 2,810,000
2,075,000 2,171,117 1,968,062
125,000 95223 132,443
6,790,000 8,765,038 7,184,006
3230000  2,745035 2,963,486
600,000 438,709 520,484
170,000 204,953 184,145
1,000 3,030 3,298
125,000 126,681 147,718
150,000 135,645 141,232
190,000 22,721 41314
170,000 150,014 74,210
13,626,000 14,858,166 13,360,398
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND .

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
(with comparative actual for 2001)

2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual
CHARGES FOR SERVICES
R.E.D. Administration 5 - 3 - 3 42,667
Fire com 200,000 227,167 7 8,578
Plan review fees 286,575 116,093 181,265
Reinspection fees 20,000 30,107 29,759
Elevator inspection fees 12,000 21,490 . 14120
Planning fees 10,000 6,493 9,905
Conditional use fees 8,000 5,222 7,355
Electrical inspection 90,000 95,655 118,499
Engineering fees 300,000 297,085 510,406
GNAS engineering fees 1,000,000 - -
Unclassified public works 10,000 19,580 2,982
Other service charges 10,000 42907 - 33,780
Lease fees 210,000 239,416 190,676
Dog impounding fees 4,000 2,073 2,561
Maintenance of state roads - 1,760 -
Total charges for services 2,160,575 1,109,048 1,152,553
FINES AND FORFEITS 225,000 207,720 215,284
INVESTMENT INCOME
Savings 15,000 7,821 9,926
Investments 450,000 387,487 748,780
N.O.W. accounts 10,000 5,905 11,127
Total investment income 475,000 401,213 769,833
OTHER REVENUES
Ameritech infrastructure maintenance 165,000 104,018 143,923
Infrastructure maintenance fee - 281,020 -
Franchise tax - cable TV : 215,000 249380 241,680
Nicor franchise tax 30,000 35,730 29,165
Land sales 400,000 - 956,654
Miscellaneous 55,150 209,103 209,920
Total other revenues 865,150 879,251 1,581,342
TOTAL REVENUES $30,337.885 $30482,718 §30,593.866

{See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL I
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002 I
Budget Actual I
GENERAL GOVERNMENT :
Board of Trustees 5 38,220 § 21,504 .
Special board 691,551 202,653
Legal 321,700 298,702
Emergency Service Disaster Agency 6,200 3,732 .
Village Manager 552,917 559,712
Finance 1,359,796 772,583
Information systems management 559,076 574,029 :
Municipal building and grounds 271,382 252,693 '
Personnel and insurance 3,384,478 3,376,310
Cable TV 111,278 101,807 .
Total general government 7,296,598 6,163,725
PUBLIC SAFETY I
Police departrment 8,144,487 7,845,416
Fire department 8,286,568 8,129,692
Printing 72,450 38,195 l
Total public safety 16,503,505 16,013,303
HIGHWAYS AND STREETS l
Development and public services '
Administration 383,256 367,877 ‘
Planning and zoning 423,954 382,103 I
Engineering 1,000,667 883,636
Public health 235419 227,878
Building inspection 969,868 986,195 I
Total development and public services 3,013,164 2,847,689 i
Public works l
Administration 322,328 323,530
Qverhead 1,273,064 1,224,255
Street maintenance 256,960 349,595 I
Traffic 420,440 311,357 )
Storm water management 159,650 155,257
Snow and 1ce control 469,495 396,794
Forestry 267,550 350,138
Grounds 224,600 174,528
Total public works 3,394,087 3,285,454 ’l
Total highways and streets 6,407,251 6,133,143
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 30,207354 § 28,310,171

(See independent auditor's report.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Board of Trustees
Personal services 5 9,000 § 9,000
Contractual services 26,220 11,504
Material and supplies 3,000 1,000
Total Board of Trustees 38,220 21,504
Special board
Contractual services 289,551 201,145
Material and supplies 2,000 1,508
Capital outlay 400,000 -
Total special board 691,551 202,653
Legal
Contractual services 318,000 295,987
Material and supplies 3,700 2,715
Total legal 321,700 298,702
Emergency Service Disaster Agency
Contractual services 5,100 3,732
Matenal and supplies 600 -
Other 500 -
Total emergency service disaster agency 6,200 3,732
Village Manager
Personal services 438,239 479,317
Contractual services 98,030 68,429
Material and supplies 3,610 1,933
Other 17,538 18,393
Capital outlay 4,500 640
561917 568,712
Less transfer to Capital Equipment
Replacement Fund 9,000 9,000
Total Village Manager 552,917 559,712

{This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
(GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Finance
Personal services $ 643,117 § 629,001
Contractual services 667,465 107,621
Material and supplies 36,270 28,980
Other 10,044 2,876
Capital outlay 2,900 4,105
Total finance 1,359,796 772,583
Information systems management
Personal services 136,291 121,419
Contractual services 335,335 359,909
Material and supplies 12,300 13,423
Other 5,000 4,978
Capital outlay 70,150 74,300
Total information systems management 559,076 574,029
Municipal building and grounds
Personal services 31,282 28,785
Contractual services 217.600 209,169
Matenal and supplies 11,500 4,029
Other 6,000 6,184
Capital outlay 5,000 4,526
Total municipal building and grounds 271,382 252,693
Personnel and insurance
Personal services 75,442 81,970
Contractual services 93,415 59,758
Material and supplies 2,250 -
Other 17,300 16,846
FICA payments 660,000 681,666
Insurance 2,536,071 2,536,070
Total personnel and insurance 3,384,478 3,376,310

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Cable TV department
Personal services 5 54,860 % 52,822
Contractual services 13,550 13,693
Material and supplies 10,300 7,644
Other 4,568 8,112
Capital outlay 28,000 19,536
Total cable TV department 111,278 101,807
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT $§ 7,296,598 § 6,163,725
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police department
Personal services $ 6,672,511 § 6,545,876
Pension 562,500 549,072
Contractual services 425,475 337,391
Material and supplies 177,885 135,338
Other ' 46,200 24,283
Capital outlay 15,368 16,053
Equipment repair and replacement 612,662 605,513
8,512,601 8,213,526
Less transfer to Capital Equipment
Replacement Fund 368,114 368,110
Total police department 8,144,487 7,845.416

Fire department

Personal services 6,783,427 6,698,898
Pension 540,000 527.906
Contractual services 299,984 369,275
Material and supplies 218,820 222,434
Other 7,000 8,876
Capital outlay 240,800 146,746
Equipment repair and replacement 627,031 586,047
8,717,062 8,560,182

Less transfer to Capital Equipment
Replacement Fund 430,494 430490
Total fire departmient 8,286,568 8,129,692

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, 1L.LINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
PUBLIC SAFETY (Continued)
Printing
Contractual services h] 48,250 § 20,221
Material and supplies 24,200 17,974
Total printing 72,450 38,195
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY $ 16.503,505  §16,013.303
HIGHWAYS AND STREETS
Development and public service
General :
Personal services § 329,042 § 340,092
Contractual services 50,510 - 23,696
Material and supplies 1,300 1,571
Other 6,804 6,918
387,656 372,277
Less transfer to Capital Equipment
Replacement Fund 4,400 4,400
Total general 383,256 367,877
Planning and zoning
Personal services 157,152 155,788
Contractual services 265,302 224414
Material and supplies 1,500 1,901
Total plarming and zoning 423.954 382,103
Engineering
Personal services 900,271 785,005
Contfractual services 65,010 63,891
Material and supplies 8,700 7,253
Other 48,486 49,286
Capital outlay 10,000 10,001
1,032,467 915,436
Less transfer to Capital Equipment
Replacement Fund 31,800 31,800
Total engineering 1,000,667 883,636

(This sehedule is continued on the following pages.)




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
HIGHWAYS AND STREETS (Continued)
Development and public service (Continued)
Public health
Personal services § 214606 § 218,286
Contractual services 8,865 4,393
Material and supplies 6,100 2,257
Other 13,248 10,342
242,819 235,278
Less transfer to Capital Equipment
Replacement Fund 7,400 7,400
Total public health 235,419 227,878
Building inspection
Personal services 873,241 893,388
Contractual services 55,760 48,647
Material and supplies 8,900 8,242
Other 43,467 65,418
Capital outlay 18,000

999,368 1,015,695
Less transfer to Capital Equipment

Replacement Fund 29,500 29,500
Total building inspection 969,868 986,195
Total development and public service 3,013,164 2,847,689

Public works

Administration
Personal services 288,328 285,688
Contractual services 27,500 31,299
Material and supplies 6,500 6,543
Total administration 322,328 323,530

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
HIGHWAYS AND STREETS (Continued)
Public works (Continued)
Overhead
Personal services § 680,441 % 825312
Contractual services 131,050 89,247
Material and supplies 40,800 29,628
Other 6,000 7,296
Capital outlay 22,000 3,008
Equipment repair and replacement 737,288 614,284

1,617,579 1,568,775
Less transfer to Capital Equipment

Replacement Fund 344,515 344,520

Total overhead 1,273,064 1,224,255

Street maintenance

Personal services 206,960 319,719
Material and supplies 50,000 29,876

Total street maintenance 256,960 349,595

Traffic

Personal services 94,640 127,081
Contraetual services 289,300 161,584
Material and supplies 36,500 22,692

Total traffic 420,440 311,357

Storm water management

Personal services 116,480 126,138

" Contractual services 12,270 4,582
Material and supplies 29,700 23,328
Capital outlay 1,200 1,209
Total storm water management 159,650 155,257

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
HIGHWAYS AND STREETS (Continued)
Public works (Continued)
Snow and ice control

Personal services 3 288,080 § 240,599
Contractual services 11,000 20,236
Material and supplies 170,415 135,959
Total snow and ice control 469,495 396,794

Forestry
Personal services 239,200 331,453
Contractual services 17,250 6,428
Material and supplies 11,100 12,257
Total forestry 267,550 350,138

Grounds
Personal services 93,600 77394
Contractual services 105,000 75,804
Material and supplies 26,000 21,330
Total grounds 224,600 174,528
Total public works 3,394,087 3,285,454
TOTAL HIGHWAYS AND STREETS 3 6407251 § 6,133,143

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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911
Communi- GNAS GNAS Special Tax Totals
cations Redevelopment  Caretaker Allocation 2002 2001

$ 297,501 % 81,784 § 76,069 % 203,690 § 1,057,162 % 451,719

- - - 750,000 2,901,596 2,084,007
- - - - 500,000 485,437
21,786 - - - 115,868 145,885
- - - - 100,555 97,688
- 31,000 - - 31,000 205,966

- - - - - 140,363

3 319,287 § 112,784 § 76,069 % 953,690 $§ 4,706,181 $ 3,611,065

3. 1,849 $§ 106,268 $ 116,678 § - % 303399 § 476,016
11,596 57,029 - . 119,801 95,196

- . - ; - 20,505

- 293 17,909 - 18,202 11,344

- . - - 500,000 485,437

13,445 163,590 134,587 - 941,402 1,088,498

. - - - - 140,363

305,842 (50,806) (58,518) 953,690 3,764,779 2,382,204
305,842 (50,806) (58,518) 953,690 3,764,779 2,522,567

b 319287 § 112,784 $ 76,069 § 953690 § 4,706,181 $ 3,611,065

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES l
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS '
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
(with comparative totals for 2001) .
Foreign linois Refuse .
Fire Municipal Motor and
Insurance Retirement Fuel Tax Recycling .
REVENUES
Taxes b} - 3 513,498 § - 5 -
Intergovernmental - - 1,190,517 - l
Charges for services 39,509 - - 1,110,429
Investment income 28 8,723 2,037 40,143
Miscellaneous - - - - '
Total revenues 39,537 522,221 1,192,554 1,150,572 ‘
EXPENDITURES l
Current
General povernment - - - 910,998 l
Public safety - - - -
Pension - 717910 - -
Total expenditures - 717,910 - 910,998 l
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 39,537 {(195,689) 1,192,554 239,574 l
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in - 186,040 - - '
Operafing transfers (out) - - (1,160,800)
Operating transfers in -
compgonent unit - 100,560 - - l
Total other financing sources (uses) - 286,600 (1,160,800) - .
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES -
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ;
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER '
FINANCING USES 39,537 90,911 31,754 239,574
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), JANUARY 1 - 377,590 211,825 1,623,380 I
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), DECEMBER 31 § 39537 % 468,501 § 243,579 § 1,862,954 I
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911
Communi- GNAS GNAS Special Tax Totals

cations Redevelopment  Caretaker Allocation 2002 2001
3 - 5 - - $ 2841781 § 3355279 § 995,482
- - - - 1,190,517 1,131,533
494,040 - - - 1,643,978 1,583,065
7,067 488 294 4,803 63,583 100,629
- 594 - - 594 82,408
501,107 1,082 294 2,846,584 6,253,951 3,893,117
- 1,588,384 966,523 1,370,136 4,836,041 4,689,053
301,233 - - - 301,233 295,017
- - - - 717,910 806,182
301,233 1,588,384 966,523 1,370,136 5,855,184 5,790,252
199,874 (1,587,302) (966,229) 1,476,448 398,767 (1,897,135)
1,605,000 1,161,500 6,492,258 9,444,798 17,023,400
(350,751) (64,680) (93,950) (7,031,732) (8,701,913)  (14,994,422)
- - 100,560 144,600
(350,751) 1,540,320 1,067,550 (539,474) 843,445 2,173,578
(150.877) {(46,982) 101,321 936,974 1,242212 276,443
456,719 (3,824) (159,839) 16,716 2,522,567 2,246,124
5 305842 $ (50,806) $ (58,518} % 953,690 § 3764779 § 2,522,567

-70-

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, [LLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actal
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes - current $ 500,000 3 485,583
Property taxes - prior 500 7,015
Replacement taxes 20,000 20,000
Investment incorne 4,500 8,723
Total revenues 525,000 522,221
EXPENDITURES
Pension
Contractual services 862,000 717,910
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES {337,000) (195,689)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in
911 Communications Fund 9,400 9,400
Waterworks Fund 60,000 60,000
Wholesale Water Fund 1,000 1,000
North Maine Water Fund 23,065 23,070
GNAS Caretaker Fund 23,000 23,000
GNAS Redevelopment Fund 33278 33,280
Sewerage Fund 10,985 10,990
Municipal Equipment Repair Fund 22,250 22,250
Commuter Parking Lot Fund 3,050 3,050
Component Unit Library Fund 100,562 100,560
Total other financing sources {uses) 286,590 286,600
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES §  (50410) 90,911
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 377,590
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 § 468,501

See accompanying notes to finaneial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Allotments $ 1,200,000 1,190,517
Investment income 2,600 2,037
Total revenucs 1,202,600 1,192,554
EXPENDITURES
None - -
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,202,600 1,192,554
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers (out)
Capital Projects Fund (1,160,800)  (1,160,800)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES 3 41,800 31,754
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 211,825
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 243,579

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINQIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
REFUSE AND RECYCLING FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 1,072,125 § 1,110,429
Investment income . 27,500 40,143
Total revenues 1,099,625 1,150,572
EXPENDITURES
General government
Contractual services 4,000 -
Materials and supplies 76,000 - 31,479
Other 935,000 879,519
Total expenditures 1,015,000 910,998
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 84,625 239,574
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 1,623,380
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 1,862,954

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

911 COMMUNICATIONS FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

REVENUES
Charges for services
Investmerit income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Personal services
Contractual services
Materials and supplies
Other
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}
Operating transfers (out)
Corporate Fund
[llinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Capital Project Fund
Capital Equipment Replacement Fund

Total other financing sources (uses)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING USES
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31

Budget Actual
$ 470,000 § 494,040
8,000 1,067
478,000 501,107
165,664 174,471
128,800 109,135
6,350 2,370
17,500 13,676
6,000 1,581
324,314 301,233
153,686 199,874
(120,000) (120,000}
(9,400) (9,400)
- (194,461)
(26,885)  (26.890)
(156,285) (350,751)

§ © (2,599) (150,877

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND .
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GNAS REDEVELOPMENT FUND l
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002 l
Budget Actual .
REVENUES .
Investment income $ 100 § 488
Miscellaneous 2,500 594 .
Total revenues 2,600 1,082 l
EXPENDITURES
General government 2,251,122 1,588,384 l
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES ‘
OVER EXPENDITURES _ (2,248,522)  (1,587,302) l
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) _
Operating transfers in .
Special Tax Allocation Fund 2,285,000 1,605,000
Operating transfers (out) ‘
General Fund (2,000) (2,000) .
Capital Equipment Replacement Fund (18,200) (29,400)
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (33,278) (33,280) l
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,231,522 1,540,320 '
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES |
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES .
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER :
FINANCING USES $ (17,000 (46,982) _
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), JANUARY 1 _ (3,824) '
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) , DECEMBER 31 S (50,806) '
See accompanying notes to financial statements. '
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GNAS REDEVELOPMENT FUND
ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Administration
Personal service
Contractual services
Material and supplies
Other charges
Capital outlay

Less transfer to Capital Equipmient
Replacement Fund

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

{See independent auditor’s report.)

-76 -

Budget Actual

§ 592,580 § 612,554

1,243,360 789,566
38,400 20,899
358,982 165,371
36,000 29,394

2,269,322 1,617,784

(18,200) (29,400)

$ 2251,122 § 1,588,384




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GNAS CARETAKER FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
REVENUES
Investment income $ 100 $ 294
EXPENDITURES
(General government 1,938,360 966,523
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (1,938,260) (966,229)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in
Special Tax Allocation Fund 2,025,000 1,161,500
Operating transfers (out)
General Fund (2,000} (2,000)
Capital Equipment Replacement Fund (68,950) (68,950)
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (23,000) (23,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,931,050 1,067,550
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES $ (7,210} 101,321
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), JANUARY 1 ' (159,839)
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), DECEMBER 31 $ (58.518)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GNAS CARETAKER FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Overhead
Personal service $ 14,560 § 3,150
Contractual services 18,100 2,247
Matenal and supplies 7,500 3,871
Other charges 358,640 227,423
398,800 236,691
Less transfer to Capital Equipment
Replacement Fund (68,950) (68,950}
Total overhead 329,850 167,741
Street maintenance
Personal service 15,600 5,156
Contractual services 85,000 83,324
Material and supplies 500 -
Total street maintenance 101,160 88,480
Traffic
Personal service 12,480 7,282
Contractual services 47,300 49,268
Material and supplies 8,000 5,245
Capital outlay 70,000 66,140
Total traffic 137,780 127,935
Storm water management
Personal service 11,440 17,683
Contractual services 5,000 2,992
Matenal and supplies 10,300 8,431
Total storm water management 26,740 29,106

{This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GNAS CARETAKER FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Snow and ice control
Personal service $ 22,880 § 8,263
Material and supplies 21,000 15,067
Capital outlay 7 400,000 1,715
Total snow and ice control 443 880 26,045
Forestry
Personal service 9,360 2,898
Contractual services 1,500 73
Material and supplies 2,700 2,078
Total forestry 13,560 5,049
Grounds
Personal service 12,480 4,514
Contractual services 80,000 69,140
Material and supplies 110,500 2,136
Total grounds 202,980 75,790
Great park maintenance
Personal service 86,320 25,111
Contractual services 252,200 188,496
Material and supplies 8,500 2,852
Total great park maintenance 347,020 216,459
Lake management
Personal service 38,480 23,411
Contractual services 94,500 13,403
Material and suppties 11,000 24
Total lake management 143,980 36,838

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

GNAS CARETAKER FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)

Prairie management
Personal service
Contractual services
Material and supplies

Total prairie management
Water distribution system
Personal service

Contractual services
Material and supplies

Total water distribution system
Sanitary sewer system
Personal service
‘Contractual services
Material and supplies

Total sanitary sewer system

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(See independent auditor's report.)

Budget Actual
3 18,720 % 9,037
34,500 16,447
5,000 386
58,220 25,870
43,680 78,516
22,750 1,003
27,500 71,985
93,930 151,504
34,320 12,529

1,000 -
4,000 3,177
39,320 15,706 _
$ 1,938360 § 966,523




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL TAX ALLOCATION FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes - cutrent
Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in
Glen Land Sales Fund
Operating transfers (out)
GNAS Redevelopment Fund
GNAS Caretaker Fund
GNAS Bond Fund
Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1996 Fund
Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1998 Fund

Total other financing sources (uses)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING USES
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31

Budget Actual

$ 5,549,000 § 2,841,781
- 4,803
5,549,000 2,846,584
3,933,000 1,370,136
1,616,000 1,476,448
6,650,000 6,492,258
(2,285,000)  (1,605,000)
(2,025,000)  (1,161,500)
- (513,771)
(1,074,872)  (1,032,461)
(2,880,000) (2,719,000)
(1,614,872) (539,474)

A 1,128 936,974
16,716

$ 953,690

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1993 Fund - This issue in the amount of $7,635,000 was sold
to finance various capital projects throughout the Government including, but not limited to, the
public works garage, various street projects and capital purchases.

Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1994 Fund - This issue in the amount of $8,040,000 was sold
to partially refund both the Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1989 and the Corporate Purpose
Bond Series of 1990.

Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1996 Fund - This issue in the amount of $8,435,000 was sold
to finance General Obligation Bond Anticipation Bonds that matured in 1996.

Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1998 Fund - These issues in the amounts of $10,000,000 of
Series A and $24,400,000 of Series B were sold to finance the development of the Glenview
Naval Air Base.

Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 2000 Fund - This issue in the amount of $4,970,000 was sold
to finance various capital improvements throughout the Village.

Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 2001 Fund - This issue in the amount of $41,800,000 was sold
to finance the development of the former Glenview Naval Air Station.

General Obligation Refunding Bond Series of 2002 Fund - This issue in the amount of
$6,885,000 was sold to refund the Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1993 and 1994.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS i

For the Year Ended Decernber 31, 2002
(with comparative totals for 2001)

‘Corporate Purpose Corporate Purpose Corporate Purpose
Bond Series of 1993 Bond Series of 1994 Bond Senes of 1996
Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes § 996276 § 493475 5 775,16% § 385,257 § - $ -
Replacement taxes 9,300 9,300 - - - -
Investment ineome 15,500 12,971 36,000 20,760 10,100 . 6,501
Total revenues 1,021,076 515,746 811,169 406,017 10,100 6,501
EXPENDITURES
Principal retirement 790,000 - 1,160,000 - 775,008 775,000
Interest and fiscal charges 207476 1,200 120,145 - 300,472 300,173
Total expenditures 997476 1,200 1,280,145 - 1,075,472 1,075,173
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 23,600 514,546 (468,976) 406,017 {1,065,372)  (1,068,672)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Operating transfers in
General Fund - - - - - -
Waterworks Fund. - - 423331 - - -
Sewerage Fund - - 80,446 80,446 - -
Special Tax Allocation Fund - - - - 1,074,872 1,032,461
Operating transfers (out})
Genera! Obligation Refunding Bond Séries of 2002 - {783,331) - (1,083,425) - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - {783,331) 503,777 (1,002,979} 1,074,872 1,012 461
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES b 23,600 (268,785) § 34,801 (596,962} _§ 9.500 (36,211)
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JANUARY L 268,785 596,962 49,536
FUND BALANCES, DECEMBER 31 5 - g - S 13,325

. B5-



See acceinpanying notes to financial staternents.

_86-

Corporate Purpose Corpoerate Purpose Corporate Purpose Totals
Bond Series of 1998 Bond Series of 2000 Bond Series of 2001 2002 2001
Budget Actual Budgcet Actual Budget Actual Budget Actnal Actual
5 - 3 - - - b - 5 - 1,771,445 § B78,732 § 1,741,617
- . - - - . 9,300 9.300 9,300
29,300 25,020 500 222 70,902 30,059 162,302 95,533 147,476
29,300 25,020 500 222 70,902 30,059 1,943,047 983,565 1,898,393
1,395,000 1,395,000 - - - - 4,120,000 2,170,000 2,590,000
1,501,664 1,499,864 220,935 219,935 1,694,850 1,694,850 4,045,542 3,716,022 2,455,091
2,896,664 2,894 864 220,935 219,935 1,684,850 1,694,850 8,165,542 5,886,022 5,045,091
(2,867,364)  (2,869.844) (220,435} {219,713y (1,623,948)  (1,664.791) 6,222,495y (4,902,457 (3,146,698)
- - 219,335 219,336 - - 219,335 219,336 210,805
_ . . - - - 423,331 - 437,881
- - - - - - 80,446 80,446 82,627
2,880,000 2,719,000 - - - - 3,954,872 3,751,461 1,069,500
- - - - - - (1,866,756) -
2,880,000 2,719,004 219,335 219,336 - - 4,677,984 2,184,487 1,800,813
S 12,636 (150,844) % (1,100 (377)_S {1.623,948)  (1.664,791)_% (1.,544,511) (717,970} (1,345,885)
163,213 6,863 1,726,165 2,811,524 2,431,244
S 12,369 6,486 b 61,374 b 93,554 5 1,085,359




CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Equipment Replacement Fund - to account for the funds annually set aside for the
eventual replacement of certain capital equipment.

Capital Projects Fund - to account for revenues and expenditures involved with all other capital
improvements throughout the Village.

Village Permanent Fund - to accumulate 20% of the land sales proceeds of the Glenview Naval
Alr Base for village-wide improvements as well as short-term liquidity to the Village’s TIF
projects encompassing The Glen.

Bond Fund Series 1993 - to account for the proceeds received from the Corporate Purpose Bond
Series of 1993.

GNAS Bond Fund Series 1995 - to account for various development and other projects related to
the Glenview Naval Air Base and financed with the General Obligation Bond Anticipation Bond
Series of 1995.

Glen Land Sales Fund - to account for grant funds, land sales, and property tax revenues (via the
Tax Increment Finance District) related to the Glenview Naval Air Base.

2000 Project Fund - to account for the funds derived from the 2000 General Obligation Bond
1ssue.

- 2001 Project Fund - to account for the funds derived from the 2001 General Obligation Bond

1ssue.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES - '
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GNAS BOND FUND SERIES 1995 .
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002 '
Budget Actual l
PROJECT COSTS

Village of Glenview Development Department fees $ 3,750,000 5 - l
Property surveys/plats/jurisdiction maps 225,000 178,453
Lake construction 580,000 216,297 I
Roadway engineering, design and construction management 1,300,000 1,243,128
Memorial restoration 100,000 154,396
Willow/Patriot Boulevard intersection 50,000 116,368 I
Street lighting and traffic signals (except Lehigh) 2,254,000 39,112
SCADA system 250,000 18,614
Prairie and wetland/management and mitigation 1,564,275 17,380 I
Lake outlet 400,000 89,406 '
Patriot Boulevard/Willow to West Lake 100,000 60,972 "
Roadway medians and parkway landscaping 1,645,546 60,551 ,.
West Lake/West Gate to Patriot Boulevard 50,000 67,532
Patriot Boulevard/West Lake to Chestnut 650,000 16,064
Lehigh Avenue roadways 2,500,000 3,186,755 .
West Lake/Lehigh Avenue to Patriot Boulevard 100,000 (4,843)
Chestnut/Patriot Boulevard to golf course 800,000 496,100
Shermer/Old Willow Road to West Lake 250,000 75,231 I
Lehigh Avenue lighting 594,161 200,914
Lehigh Avenue traffic signal 714,000 73,819 '
Lehigh Avenue stormwater drainage 3,000,000 1,373,454 ‘
Westside engineering and construction management 25,000 -
Rugen reservoir engineering and construction management 550,000 - l
(A) and (B) Eastside engineering and construction management 188,000 1,132,378
Westside reservoir and pump house construction 500,000 - |
Rugen reservoir and pump house construction 4,000,000 - I
(A) and (B) Eastside construction 1,000,000 373,971
Water system analysis 15,000 1,898
Water source iImprovements 4,000,000 4,880,426 l
36" transmission Westgate to Westside engineering and

construction management 20,000 - .
36" transmission line Westgate to Westside construction 150,000 68,778
Utility allowance 1,000,000 257,545 l

(This schedule is continued on the following page.) l
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GNAS BOND FUND SERIES 1995

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
PROJECT COSTS (Continued)
Stormwater design b 60,000 § -
Building demolition 1,885,000 19,450
Other demolition - 2,990
Environmental demolition and restoration - 9,108
Miscellaneous restoration 700,000 220,413
Michael Joseph Foundation 40,000 -
Potable water construction work 500,000 450,294
Stormwater piping construction 2,047,517 713,298
Sanitary sewer construction 330,000 270,370
Metra station design and construction 450,000 -
Meitra station parking lots 2,679,600 12,043
Gallery park landscaping and amenities 4,022,903 1,606,119
Gallery park planning 158,000 9,709
Snow dumping area - 4,845
Land purchase easements 1,000,000 -
Construction fence/silt fence 50,000 6,770
The Glen Fire Station project 2,400,000 96,640
Public works campus improvement 350,000 -
Bike paths-all West Lake Avenue 500,000 21,116
Sidewalks on Willow and Shermer 250,000 -
Prairie Lawn Closing 150,000 3,154
NIPSTA Drivers Train Pad 1,400,000 557,549
Youth Services Temp Space 200,000 -
Thomas Place 150,000 -
Contingency 1,712,400 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 53,360,402 § 18,398,567

(See independent auditor's report.)
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Waterworks Fund - to account for the provision of water service to the residents of Glenview.
All activity necessary to provide such services is accounted for in this fund including, but not
limited to, administration (Director of Public Works), operation, maintenance, financing and
related debt service and billing and collection.

Wholesale Water Fund - to account for the provision of water service to the Illinois American
Water Company enabling the private utility to receive Lake Michigan water.

North Maine Water and Sewer Fund - to account for all financial activity related to the Village
providing water and sewer service to an unincorporated areca southwest of the Village. This area
was formerly served by the North Suburban Public Utilities Company.

Sewerage Fund - to account for the funds necessary to provide sanitary sewer service to both
incorporated and unincorporated Village of Glenview customers.

Commuter Parking Lot Fund - to account for the activity involved with, but not limited to, the
admministration (Finance Direclor), sale of permits and maintenance of the commuter parking
facilities within the Village.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WATERWORKS FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Water charges $ 6,880,368 6,779,210
Water meter repair charges - 1,750
Water connection charges 100,000 177,981
‘Water meters and remote readers 50,000 171,410
Miscellaneous
Late payment fees 60,000 73,840
Brass fittings 25,000 47,036
Water for construction 20,000 70,458
Turn on charge 5,000 6,695
Recapture agreements 10,000 4,793
Other 5,000 44,968
Total operating revenues 7,155,368 7.378,141
OPERATING EXPENSES
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION
Administration 256,724 293,968
Operations
Supply and metering 2,866,220 2,925,306
Pumping station - east 279,470 242,219
Pumping station - west 194,300 121,508
Distribution system 861,980 799,379
Overhead 2,388,619 439,719
Total pperating expenses excluding depreciation 6,847,313 4,822,099
OPERATING INCOME BEFORE
DEPRECIATION 308,055 2,556,042
DEPRECIATION - 668,509
OPERATING INCOME 308,055 1,887,533
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Investment income 82,500 65,485
INCOME BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS 390,555 1,953,018

{This statement is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
WATERWORKS FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Aciual
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN (OUT)
General Fund $ (508,600) §  (508,600)
Wholesale Water Fund (30,000) (30,000)
[tlinois Municipal Retirement Fund (60,000) (60,000)
North Maine Water/Sewer Fund (60,000) -
Corporate Purpose Bonds 1994 Fund (423,331) -
Corporate Purpose Bonds 2002 Fund - (423,331)
Capital Equipment Replacement Fund (130,580) (130,980)
Capital Projects Fund (820,000} -
Total operating transfers in {qut) (2,032,511) (1,152.911)
NET INCOME ¢LOSS) S (1,642,356) ' 800,107
RETAINED EARNINGS, JANUARY 1 17,638,968
RETAINED EARNINGS, DECEMBER 31 $ 18,435,075

See accompanying notes to financial statéments.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, TLLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WATERWORKS FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
ADMINISTRATION
Contractual services b 21,500 § 64,704
Materials and supplies 1,500 -
Other 233,724 229,264
Total administration 256,724 203,968
OPERATIONS
Supply and metering
Personal services 117,520 124,379
Contractual services 75,100 50,333
Water purchase 2,589,600 2,684,410
Materials and supplies 84,000 66,184
Total supply and metering 2,866,220 2,925.306
Pumping station - east
Personal services 68,120 73,302
Contractual services 185,400 156,062
Materials and supplies 11,950 12,855
Capital outlay , 14,000 -
Total pumping station - east 279,470 242219
Pumping station - west
Personal services 39,000 38,388
Contractual services 143,600 71,949
Materials and supplies 11,700 11,171
Total pumping station - west 194,300 121,508
Distribution systern
Personal services 516,880 452,252
Contractual services 191,500 161,244
Materialg and supplies 128,100 170,996
Capital outlay 25,500 14,887
Total distribution system 861,980 799,379

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
WATERWORKS FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
OPERATIONS (Continued)
Overhead
Personal services $ 302,553 % 267,572
Contractual services 58,960 23,980
Materials and supplies 24,425 16,802
Other 134,681 105,355
Capital outlay 2,816,967 974,577

3,337,586 1,388,686
Less nonoperating expenses

Fixed assets capitalized (948.,967) (948,967)

Total overhead 2,388,619 435,719

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION $ 6,847,313 § 41822099

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE QF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WHOLESALE WATER FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales $ 1,293,810 § 1,419,995
OPERATING EXPENSES
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION
Operations
Supply and metering 816,543 773,959
Pumping station 72,660 94,952
Distribution system 5,080 1,475
Total operating expenses 894,283 870,386
OPERATING INCOME BEFORE
DEPRECIATION 399,527 549,609
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION - 63,859
OPERATING INCOME 399,527 485,750
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 21,500 17,029
Interest expense (132,950} {132,357)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (111,450) {115,328)
INCOME BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS 288,077 370,422
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN
Waterworks Fund 30,000 30,000
Total operating transfer in 30,000 30,000
OPERATING TRANSFERS (OUT)
Capital Projects Fund {(400,000) (400,000}
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (1,000) {1,000)
General Fund (112,150) (112,150)
Total operating transfers {out) {513,150} (513,150)
NET INCOME {LOSS) ¥ (195,073) (112,728)
RETAINED EARNINGS, JANUARY | 564,303
RETAINED EARNINGS, DECEMBER 31 3 451,575

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL )
WHOLESALE WATER FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
OPERATIONS
Supply and metering
Contractual services $ 806,980 § 765,554
Material and supplies 500 212
Other 9,063 8,193
Total supply and metering 816,543 773,959
Pumping station
Personal services 11,960 16,058
Contractual services 59,700 78,154
Matenal and supplies 1,000 740
Total pumping station 72,660 94,952
Distribution system

Personal services 2,080 15
Contractual services 3,000 1,460
Bond principal 130,000 130,000
135,080 131,475

Less nonoperating expenses , (130,000) (130,000)
Total distribution system 5,080 1,475

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION $ 894,283 § 870,380

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NORTH MAINE WATER AND SEWER FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Water charges $ 5,165,000 $ 5,369,445
Sewer charges 333,125 328,037
Miscellaneous
New water meters 500 6,956
Late payment fees 50,000 43,475
Other - 9,558
Total operating revenues 3,548,625 5,757,471
OPERATING EXPENSES
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION
Admimistration 514,354 414 803
Opecrations
Supply and metering 3,634,480 3,651,882
Pumping station 89,100 58,725
Distribution system 390,860 320,327
Collection system 118,760 47,761
Total operating expenses 4,747,554 4,493,498
OPERATING INCOME BEFORE
DEPRECIATION 801,071 1,263,973
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION - 259,594
OPERATING INCOME 801,071 1,004,379
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 30,000 22,466
Interest expense (393,550) (384,007)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (363,550) {361,541)
INCOME BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS 437,521 642,838

(This statement is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NORTH MAINE WATER AND SEWER IFUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN
‘Waterworks Fund $ 60,000 §$ -
Total operating transfers in 60,000 -
OPERATING TRANSFERS (OUT)
General Fund (307,500) (307,500)
Capital Equipment Replacement Fund (36,896) (36,900)
Capital Projects Fund {237,000) (237,000)
[llinois Municipal Retirement Fund {23,065) (23,070)
Total operating transfers (out) (604,461) (604,470)
NET INCOME (LOSS) $  (106,940) 38,368
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), JANUARY 1 (274,344)
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), DECEMBER 31 §  (235,976)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINQIS
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NORTH MAINE WATER AND SEWER FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
ADMINISTRATION
Personal services $ 130,000 § 128,767
Contractual services 126,400 122,181
Matenai and supplies 7,000 9,371
Bond and pote principal 225,000 225,000
Other 250,954 154,484
739,334 639,803
Less nonoperating expenses
Bond and note principal paid (225,000} (225,000}
Total administration 514,354 414,803
OPERATIONS
Supply and metering
Personal services 113,880 75,058
Contractual services 3,410,600 3,500,471
Material and supplies 10,000 2,208
Capital outlay 100,000 68,145
Total supply and metering 3,634,480 3,651,882
Pumping station
Personal services 26,000 15,904
Contractual services 61,000 36,636
Material and supplies 2,100 2,185
Total pumping station 89,100 58,723
Distribution system
Personal services 113,360 143,687
Contractual services 122,000 131,493
Material and supplies 50,500 40,705
Capital outlay 105,000 4,442
Total distribution system 150,860 320,327
Collection system
Personal services 35,360 30,486
Contractual services 24,000 -
Material and supplies 9,400 6,250
Capita! outlay 50,000 11,025
Total collection svslem 118,760 47,761
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION $ 4,747,554 8§ 4,493 498

{See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SEWERAGE FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Sewer charges $ 835975 § 997274
Sewer connection charges 7,500 21,808
Late payment fees 7,500 12,147
Total operating revenues 850,975 1,031,229
OPERATING EXPENSES
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION
Administration 192,362 86,600
Operations
Pumping station 35,348 17,123
Collccetion 224 417 267,997
Total operating expenses 452,127 371,722
OPERATING INCOME BEFORE
DEPRECIATION 398,848 659,507
DEPRECIATION - 128,866
OPERATING INCOME 398,848 330,641
NONOFERATING REVENUES
Investment income 7,500 6,729
TNCOME BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS 406,348 337,370
OPERATING TRANSFERS (OUT)
General Fund (71,175) (71,1809
Tliinois Municipal Retirement Fund (10,985) (10,990)
Capital Equipment Replacement Fund {25,561) (25,560)
Capital Projects Fund (430,000) (100,000)
1994 General Obligation Debt Service Fund (80,446) (80,446)
Total operating transfers (out) {618,167) (288,176)
NET INCOME (LQSS) £ (211,819 249,194
RETAINED EARNINGS, JANUARY 1 3,630,150
RETAINED EARNINGS, DECEMBER 31 $ 3,879,344

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SEWERAGE FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
ADMINISTRATION
Other $ 192362 % 86,600
Tatal administration 192,362 86,600
OPERATIONS
Pumping station
(General
Persanal services 8,424 6,286
Contractual services 9,800 3,760
Material and supplies 1,200 49]
Total general 19,424 10,537
Heatherfield 1ift station
Personal services 8,424 4,631
Contractual services 6,300 1,104
Material and supplies 1,200 853
Total Heatherfield lift station 15,924 6,588
Total pumping station 35,348 17,125
Collection system
Personal services 166,537 210,204
Contractual services 29,780 38,906
Material and supplies 28,100 18,887
Total collection system 224,417 267,997
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES § 452,127 8§ 371,722

(See independent auditor's report.}
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMMUTER PARKING LOT FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Meter fees $ 40,000 § 61,533
Parking decals 207,000 213,154
Miscellaneous 6,000 6,005
Total operating revenues 253,000 280,692
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration 199,560 148,847
Operations 70,280 41,908
Depreciation - 8,132
Total operating expenses 269,840 198 887
OPERATING INCOME (I.OSS) (16,840) 81,805
NONOPERATING REVENUE
Investment income 3,000 26,234
INCOME (1.LOSS) BEFORE
OPERATING TRANSFERS (13,840) 108,039
OPERATING TRANSFERS (OUT)
General Fund (45,000) (45,000)
IMRF Fund (3,050) (3,050)
Total operating transfers (out) (48,050) (48,050)
NET INCOME (LOSS) $  (61,800) 59,989
RETAINED EARNINGS, JANUARY 1 275,773
RETAINED EARNINGS, DECEMBER 31 $ 335762

See acconipanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL )
COMMUTER PARKING LOT FUND

For the Year Ended December 21, 2002

Budget Actual
ADMINISTRATION
Personal services S 31,635 § 12,220
Contractual services 146,525 119,581
Material and supplies 19,400 14,942
Capital outlay 2,000 2,104
Total administration 199,560 148,847
OPERATIONS
Personal services 25,480 . 12,825
Contractual services 38,600 28,031
Matenal and supplies 6,200 1,052
Total operations 70,280 41,908
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 269,840 § 190,755

(See independent auditor's report.)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Municipal Equipment Repair Fund - to account for the costs of repairing and mairtaining all
vehicles of the Village. These costs include labor, material, fuel and fixed overhead of the
Village’s repair facility.

Insurance Fund - to account for the financial activity of the Village’s entire insurance program.
In addition to conventional primary insurance, the Village is a member of the High-Level Excess
Liability Pool (HELP), which provides excess liability coverage. Also, the Village provides
health and life insurance by participating in the Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative
(IPBC).




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

COMEBINING BALANCE SHEET
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

December 31, 2002
{with comparative totals for 2001)

Municipal
Equipment Totals
Repair Insurance 2002 2001
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash 3 88,507 § 704,080 § 792,587 § 437,570
Investments - 2,170,000 2,170,000 2,575,289
Receivables ,

Accounts, net 4,725 5,242 9,967 255,007
Due from other funds 54,902 - 54,902 166,515
Deposits - 933,320 933,320 890,372

Total current assets 148,134 3,812,642 3,960,776 4,324,753
FIXED ASSETS .
Cost 55,958 - 55,958 55,958
Accumulated depreciation (11,991) - (11,991) (3,997)
Net fixed assets 43,967 - 43,967 51,961
TOTAL ASSETS 5 192,101 § 3,812,642 5 4,004,743 § 4,376,714
LIABILITIES AND
RETAINED EARNINGS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable b 83911 § 9,859 % 93,770 % 128,804
Claims payable - 176,585 176,585 372,996
Deferred revenue - 6,680 6,680 6,566
Due to other funds 19,383 - 19,383 -
Other payables - 81,447 81,447 81,447
Total liabilities 103,294 274,571 377,865 589,813
RETAINED EARNINGS -
UNRESERVED 88,807 3,538,071 3,626,878 3,786,901
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
RETAINED EARNINGS § 192,101 § 3812642 § 4,004,743 § 4,376,714

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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l VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
I COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
. INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
l (with comparative totals for 2001)
. Municipal
Equipment Totals
I Repair Insurance 2002 2001
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 912,747 § 3,278,553 8§ 4,191,300 % 4,135,857
l Insurance recoveries 19,874 - 19,874 18,085
Miscellaneous 81,023 711,731 792,754 . 557,304
l - Total operating revenues 1,013,644 3,990,284 5,003,928 4,71 1 ,246
. OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations 1,112,164 4,074,082 5,186,246 5,034,135
Depreciation 7,994 - 7.994 3,997
I Total operating expenses 1,120,158 4,074,082 5,194,240 5,038,132
I OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (106,514) (83,798) (190,312) (326,886)
NONOPERATING REVENUES
' Investment incorme 3,154 69,385 72,539 167,858
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
| I OPERATING TRANSFERS (103,360)_ (14,413} (117,773) (159,028)
OPERATING TRANSFERS (OUT)
l Capital Equiprnent Replacement .
Fund (20,000) - (20,000) (13,000)
IMRF Fund (22,250} - (22,250) -
| Total operating transfers (out) (42,250) - (42,250) (13,000)
' NET INCOME (LOSS) (145,610) (14,413) (160,023) (172,028)
RETAINED EARNINGS,
' JANUARY 1 234,417 3,552,484 | 3,786,901 3,958,929
RETAINED EARNINGS,
. DECEMBER 31 $ 88,807 § 3,538071 § 3,626,878 § 3,786,901
l See accompanying notes 1o financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
(with comparative totals for 2001)

Municipal
Equipment Totals
Repair Insurance 2002 2001
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) 3 (106,514) 3 (83,798) 3 (190,312) $ (326,886)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income '
(loss) to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 7,994 - 7,994 3,997
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts recejvable 1,655 243,385 245,040 (251,072)
Deposits - (42,948) (42,948) 44,428
Due from other funds 111,613 - 111,613 (160,515)
Prepaid expenses - - - 108,183
Accounts payable (25,839 (9,194) (35,033) (378,666)
Claims payable - (196,411) (196,411) 103,374
Dcferred revenue - 114 114 6,566
Other payables - - - 81,447
Due to other funds 19,383 - 19,383 -
Net cash from operating activities 8,292 {(88,852) (80,560)  (679,144)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating transfcr (out) (42,250) - (42,250 (13,000)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Fixed assets purchased - - - (55,958)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments - - - (6,785,042)
Maturities of investments - 405,289 405,289 7,083,254
Investment income received 3,154 09,384 72,538 167,858
Net cash from investing activities 3,154 474,673 477,827 466,070
NET INCREASE (DECREASE} IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (30,804) 385,821 155,017 (282,032)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
JANUARY | 119,311 318,259 437,570 719,602
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
DECEMBER 31 3 8507 § 704,080 $ 792587 § 437570

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MUNICIPAL EQUIPMENT REPAIR FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual

OPERATING REVENUES ‘
Charges for services $ 1,117,267 §$ 912,747
Insurance recoveries 10,000 19,874
Miscellaneous : 69,500 81,023

Total operating revenues 1,196,767 1,013,644

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations 1,197,337 1,112,164
Depreciation - 7,994

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (570  (106,514)

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Investment income 6,500 3,154

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING
TRANSFERS 5,930 {103,360)

OPERATING TRANSFERS (OUT)
Capital Equipment Replacement Fund (20,000} (20,000)
IMRF Fund (22,250) (22,250)

Total operating transfers (out) (42,250) (42,250}

NET INCOME (L.OSS) $ (36,320 (145,610)

RETAINED EARNINGS, JANUARY 1 234,417

RETAINED EARNINGS, DECEMBER 31 $ 88,807

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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| I Total operating expenses 1,197,337 - 1,120,158



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL )

MUNICIPAL EQUIPMENT REPAIR FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual
OPERATIONS ,
Regular salaries $ 358,800 $ 283,880
Overtime salaries 13,520 15,004
Temporary salanes 5,880 6,367
Longevity pay 4,850 4,849
FICA payment 29,700 25,123
Contractual professional services 4,000 3,181
Dues subscription membership 40 -
Maintenance of equipment _ 115,000 144,724
Maintenance of buildings 4,000 10,929
Accident repairs 20,000 28,415
Insurance ’ 53,260 53,260
Training 3,700 70
Village wide info systems - 4,334
Uniform allowance 9,800 5,069
Fuel 266,987 248,172
Motor vehicle supplies 68,000 56,801
Cleaning and household supplies 5,800 6,852
Maintenance materials - equipment ' 152,000 166,506
Maintenance materials - buildings 6,500 7,543
Small tools and equipment 4,500 4,952
Machinery and equipment 37,000 36,133
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES § 1,197,337 § 1,112,164

{See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
INSURANCE FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Budget Actual

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Fund charges $ 3,478,548 § 3,278,553
Miscellaneous
Insurance premium retirees 288,675 284,066
Returned premiums - 64,606
Insurance recoveries 10,000 363,059

Total operating revenues 3,777,223 3,990,284

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operations l
Contractual professional services 5,000 2,619
Health and life insurance 2,828,270 2,848,390
Dental insurance 169,500 72,154 l
Excess liability 82,000 95,053
Unemployment benefits 30,000 -
General insurance program 400,000 375,210 I
PTM policy 15,710 15,800
Property/casualty claims 300,000 586,370 I
Workers' compensation insurance 130,000 78,486

Total operating expenses 3,960,480 4,074,082

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (183,257) (83,798)

NONOPERTING REVENUES
Investment income _ 102,500 69,385

NET INCOME (LOSS) $  (80,757) (14,413)

RETAINED EARNINGS, JANUARY 1 3,552,484

RETAINED EARNINGS, DECEMBER 31 $ 3,538,071

See aécompan}ring notes to financial statements.
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

Expendable Trust

Escrow Deposit Fund - to account for the funds placed on deposit with the Village by building
contractors working within the Village’s limits. Interest eamed on escrow deposits is annually
transferred to the Corporate Fund.

Deposit Fund - to account for money on deposit with the Village being held on a temporary basis,
such as security deposits for use of the Village’s equipment.

Police Department Special Account Fund - to account for funds received from the Hlinois State
Police office to be used in various types of investigations.
Pension Trust

Police Pension Fund - to account for the resources necessary to provide disability and retirement
benefits to personnel of the Glenview Police Department.

Firefighters' Pension Fund - to account for the resources necessary to provide disability and
retirement benefits to personnel of the Glenview Fire Department.

Agency

Special Service Areas Fund - to account for various special service area bond issues.

Arbitrage Rebate Fund - to account for the recording and payment of any arbitrage rebates
payable.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF PLAN NET ASSETS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

December 31, 2002

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments, at fair value
U. S. government obligations
Municipal bonds
Insurance contracts
Mutual funds
Certificates of deposit

Total investments, at fair value
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR
PENSION BENEFITS

Police Firefighters'

Pension Pension Totals
853,419 % 488,859 S 1,342278
25,515,735 40,381,295 65,897,030
62,135 365,655 427790
1,958,394 689,797 2,648,191
1,671,952 1,753,016 3,424,968
1,000,000 650,000 1,650,000
30,208,216 43,839,763 74,047,979
31,061,635 44,328,622 75,390,257
1,200 1,770 2,970
31,060,435 § 44,326,852 § 75,387.287

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOCIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
(with comparative totals for 2001)

Police
Department
Escrow Special Totals
Deposit Deposit Account 2002 2001
REVENUES
Fines and forfeits 3 - b - h 6,466 § 6,466 § -
Investment income 116,237 2,121 230 118,588 180,105
Sale of equipment , - - 3,175 3,175 -
Total revenues 116,237 2,121 9,871 128,229 180,105
EXPENDITURES
Public safety _ - - 9,774 9,774 32

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OR REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 116,237 2,121 97 118,455 180,073

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers (out)

General Fund (120,000) - - (120,000) (172,351)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING USES (3,763) 2,121 97 {1,545) 7,722
FUND BALANCES, JANUARY 1 149,161 53,706 26,088 228,955 221,233
FUND BALANCES, DECEMBER 3] $ 145398 §% 55827 % 26,185 & 2274]0 § 228955

See accompanying notes to financial staternents.
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VILLAGE QF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
I COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
PENSION TRUST FUNDS )
l For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
Police Firefighters'
I Pension Pension Total
I ADDITIONS
Contributions - employer h 540,072 % 527,906 § 1,067,978
Contributions - plan members 473,407 430,052 903,459
I Total contributions 1,013,479 057,958 1,971,437
l Investment income
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair
I value of investments 1,174,661 1,975,860 3,150,521
Interest earned on investments 681,528 1,003,081 1,684,609
I Total investment income 1,856,189 2,978,941 4,835,130
I Total additions 2,869,668 3,936,899 6,806,567
DEDUCTIONS
l Pensions and refunds 1,179,020 1,578,847 2,757,867
Miscellaneous
Contractual professional services 10,590 10,683 21,273
I Total deductions 1,189,610 1,589,530 2,779,140
I NET INCREASE 1,680,058 2,347,369 4,027,427
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR
I PENSION BENEFITS
I January 1 29,380,377 41,979,483 71,359,860
l December 31 $ 31,060,435 § 44,326,852 § 75,387,287
I See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS -

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Balances Balances
January 1 Additions Deductions  December 31

All Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments h 86,601 § 170,084 § 202,284 § 54,401
Receivables - property taxes 132,357 125,436 132,357 125,436
Due from other funds 155,099 - - 155,000
TOTAL ASSETS $ 374057 § 295520 § 334641 § 334936
LIABILITIES
Arbitrage payable $ 195077 § - $ 190,377 § 4,700
Due to bondholders 178,980 179,837 178,980 179,837
TOTAL LIABILITIES § 374,057 § 179837 § 369357 3§ 184,537

Special Service Areas Fund

ASSETS
Cash $ 16,623 5 170,084 § 132306 § 54,401
Investments 30,000 - 30,000 -
Receivables 132,357 125,436 132,357 125,436
TOTAL ASSETS $§ 178980 § 295520 § 294663 $ 179,837
LIABILITIES
Due to bondholders $§ 178980 § 179837 § 178980 § 179,837
Arbitrage Rebate Fund
ASSETS
Cash $ 39978 5 - b 39,978 § -
Due from other governments 155,099 - 150,399 4,700
TOTAL ASSETS $ 195077 _§ - $ 190377 § 4,700
LIABILITIES
Arbitrage payable § 195077 8§ - § 190377 % 4,700

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

General fixed assets are those fixed assets used in operations accounted for in governmental
funds. General fixed assets include all fixed assets of the Village not accounted for in the
Enterprise Funds.




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY SOURCE

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

December 31, 2002

(with comparative totals for 2001)

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

Land

Buildings and improvements
Equipment

Furniture

Office equipment

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

(General revenues
Bond issues

TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL
FIXED ASSETS

2002 2001
$ 5,643,853 § 5,643,853
10,279,448 10,279,448
9,983,124 10,113,046
295,072 295,072
1,013,040 868,527
% 27214537 § 27,199,946
$ 23,415,258 § 23,400,667
3,799,279 3,799,279
$ 27214537 § 27,199,946

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS -
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Function and Balances Balances
Activity January | Additions  Retirements December 31
GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Executive $ 13,087 § - § - $ 13,087
Administrative 2,571,168 8,671 12,840 2,566,999
Finance 278,017 10,116 - 288,133
Building and grounds 614,658 10,116 - 624,774
Total general government 3,476,930 28,903 12,840 3,492,993

PUBLIC SAFETY

Police 1,770,471 259,528 206,648 1,823,351
Fire 4,958,891 77,208 205,539 4,830,560
Total public safety 6,729,362 336,736 412,187 6,653,911
PUBLIC WORKS
Administration 10,914,889 15,896 131,632 10,799,153
Forestry 680,960 - - 680,960
MERF . 421,204 - - 421,204
Street division 3,157,542 80,767 - 3,238,309
Transportation 531,276 - - 531,276
Total public works 15,705,871 96,663 131,632 15,670,902
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 1,287,783 129,286 20,338 1,396,731
TOTAL $27,199946 § 591,588 § 576,997 § 27,214,537

(See independent auditor's report.)
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GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP

This separate self-balancing group of accounts includes the amount of outstanding long-term
indebtedness that has not been identified as a specific fund liability of a proprietary or trust fund
and that 1s backed by the full faith and credit of the Village of Glenview.
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COMPONENT UNIT

Component Unit (Library Fund) - to account for the resources necessary to provide the
educational, cultural and recreational activities of the Glenview Public Library.




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINQIS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
COMPONENT UNIT - LIBRARY FUND

December 31, 2002
{with comparative totals for 2001)

General Fixed

Assets Account Totals
General Fund Group 2002 2001
ASSETS

Cash § 829,433 § - § 820433 % 283,360
Investments 340,000 - 340,000 1,242,000

Receivables
Property taxes 4,205,717 - 4,205,717 3,333,689
Grants 52,309 - 52,309 -
General fixed assets - 5,524,598 5,524 598 5,495,766
TOTAL ASSETS $ 5427459 § 5524598 § 10,952057 § 10354815

LIABILITIES AND

FUND EQUITY I

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 73,831 % - 5 73,831 § 38,094
Accrued payroll 37,929 - 37,929 34,583
Compensated absences payable 76,415 - 76,415 64,379
Deferred property taxes 4,205,717 - 4,205,717 3,333,689
Deferred revenues 49,026 - 49,026 49,026
Total liabilities 4442 918 - 4,442 918 3,519,771
FUND EQUITY
Investment in general fixed assets - 5,524,598 5,524,598 5,495,766
Fund balance

Unreserved 984 541 - 984,541 1,339,278

Total fund equity 984,541 5,524,598 6,509,139 6,835,044

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND EQUITY $ 5427459 § 5524598 § 10952057 5 10,354,815

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOQIS
l STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMPONENT UNIT - LIBRARY FUND
l For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
{with comparative actual for 2001)
2002 2001
l Budget Actual Actual
REVENUES
l Taxes
Property taxes - current § 3433700 § 3,349412 § 3,156,679
Property taxes - prior - 50,288 88,611
I Replacement taxes 29,000 29,000 29.000
Intergovernmental
Educate and automate grant - - 2,443
Per capita grant 47,500 52,309 47,456
Make-whole payment 70,000 60,334 28,691
Charges for services 96,843 90,582 94 340
Fines and forfeits 65,387 67,241 63,802
l Investment income 92,400 40,035 103,467
Miscellaneous
Donations - 317,668 48,052
l Other 130 1,694 1,937
Total revenues 3,834,930 3,778,563 3,664 478
I EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation 3,952,505 3,900,090 3,738,683
I EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (117,575} (121,527) {74,205)
. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
‘ Operating transfers (out) -
primary govermnment
I General Fund (12,650) (12,650) (12,600)
IMRF Fund (100,562) {100,560) (144,600)
) Capital Projects Fund {140,000) {120,000} (120,000)
I Total other financing sources (uses) (253,212) (233,210) (277,200)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
l FINANCING USES 3 (370,787) (354,737 (351,405)
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 1,339,278 1,690,683
l FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 984541 § 1,339.278
I See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINGIS
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENDITURES - I
BUDGET AND ACTUAL .
COMPONENT UNIT - LIBRARY FUND I
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
Budget Actual
CULTURE AND RECREATION I
Regular salaries $ 1,388,505 § 1,377,118
Overtime salaries - 92.685 I
Temporary salaries 805,254 765,951
Legal fees 8,000 7,408
Public information 24,550 18,942 I
Printing 10,925 4,275
Printing, binding and publication 7,500 7,133
Power and lights 630 501
Heating 8,500 7,722 I
Postage 21,200 17.862
Telephone and telegraph 33,055 30,063
Dues and subscriptions 4,795 3,770 I
Maintenance of equipment 61,912 60,589
Maintenance of copiers 65,382 - 52,378
Maintenance of EDP equipment 38,500 37,205 I
On-line searching 82,053 76,793 ;
Maintenance of buildings 20,297 76,843
General msurance 34,1558 39,696 l
Travel 22,150 11,203
Training 21,084 15,383
Trustee 2,500 5,445 I
Director expenses 500 933 |
Library programs 30,550 33,813
Office supplies 17,050 12,337
Processing supplies 18,000 10,689 l
Circulation supplies 12,255 7,615 -
Audio visual supplies 10,000 10,845
Books, pamphlets-and materials 445,560 453,440 l
Periodicals 52,591 46,130
Audiovisual 64,300 50,638
Micro-form 38,078 38,164 l
Video tapes 29,950 26,168
Cataloging 44,100 33,264
Contingencies 200 5,600 I
Other operating expenses 8,550 5,875
Machinery and equipment 12,080 17,515
F.IC.A. payments 168,919 169,859 l
Insurance 268,235 268,240
TOTAL EXPENDITURES § 3,952,505 § 3,900,090 I
{See independent auditor's report.) I
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY SOURCE
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP
COMPONENT UNIT - LIBRARY FUND

December 31, 2002
(with comparative totals for 2001}

2002 2001
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
Land $ 500,000 S 500,000
Buildings and improvements 4,125,488 4,125,488
Furniture and equipment 899,110 870,278
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $ 5,524,598 § 5,495,766
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

General revenues $ 5,524,598 $ 5,495,766
TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL

FIXED ASSETS $ 5524558 § 5,495,766

{See independent auditor's report.}
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS

CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS SERIES OF 1992

December 31, 2002

Date of Issue April 1, 1992

Date of Maturity December 1, 2012

Authorized Issue $ 2,895,000

Actual 1ssue 3 5,000

Interest Rates Bonds
2002 6.10%
2003 6.20%
2004 6.30%
2005 6.40%
2006 6.50%

2007-2008 6.55%
2009-2012 6.60%

Interest Dates June I and December 1

Principal Maturity Date December 1

Payable at American National Bank and
Trust Company of Chicago

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax Tax Levy Interest Due on
Fiscal Levy Bond
Year  Year Numbers Principal Interest Totals June 1 Amount  December 1  Amount

2003 2002  196-224 § 145,000 3 125,01;1 5§ 270,014 2003 5 62,507 2003 5 62,507

2004 2003 225-254 150,000 116,024 266,024 2004 58,012 2004 58,012
2005 2004  255-286 160,000 106,574 266,574 2005 53,287 2005 53,287
2006 2005  287-320 170,000 96,334 266,334 2006 48,167 2006 48,167
2007 2006 321-366 180,000 85,284 265,284 2007 42,642 2007 42,642
2008 2007  367-395 195,000 73,490 268,490 2008 36,745 2008 36,745
2009 2008 396437 210,000 60,720 270,720 2009 30,360 2009 30,360
2010 2009  438-481 220,000 46,860 266,860 2010 23,430 2010 23,430
2011 2010  482-528 235,000 32,340 267,340 2011 16,170 2011 16,170
2012 2011 529-579 255,000 16,830 271,830 2012 8,415 2012 8,415

$1.920,000 3 759,470 32,679,470 3 379735 3 379,735

NOTE: The above bond issue is to be retired annually by Wholesale Water Fund.

{See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS SERIES OF 1996

December 31, 2002

Date of Issue November 1, 1996
Date of Maturity December 1, 2008
Authorized Issue $ 8,435,000
Aetual Issue b 5,000
Interest Rates Bonds
136-276 4.625%

277-1278 4.700%
1279-1477 4.800%
1478-1687 4.875%

Interest Dates June 1 and December 1
Principal Maturity Date December |
Payable at Amgrican National Bank and

Trust Company of Chicago

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax Levy Interest Due on

Fiscal Bond
Year Numbers Principal Interest Totals June | Amount December 1  Amount
2003 579-740 § B10,000 5 263,448 § 1,073,448 2003 3§ 131,724 2003 $ 131,724
2004 741-910 £50,000 225,378 1,075,378 2004 112,689 2004 112,689
2005 911-1089 895,000 185,428 1,080,428 2005 92,714 2005 92,714
2006 1090-1278 945,000 143,362 1,088,362 2006 71,681 2006 71,681
2007 1279-1477 995,000 98,948 1,093,948 2007 49,474 2007 49,474
2008 1478-1687 1,050,000 51,188 1,101,188 2008 25,594 2008 25,594

$5,545000 % 967,752 6,512,752 $ 483876 § 483,876

NQTE:  Debt service is payable from the Debt Service Fund using monies fransferred from the GNAS Redevelopment
Fund.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
CORPORATE PURPQOSE BONDS SERIES OF 1997.

December 31, 2002

Date of Issue August 15, 1997
Date of Maturity December 1, 2G17
Authorized lssue $ 6,175,000
Actual Issue 3 5,000
Interest Rates Bonds
001-717 4.875%
718-792 4.500%
792-1235 5.000%
Interest Dates June 1 and December 1
Principal Maturity Date December 1
Payable at American National Bank and

Trust Company of Chicago

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax Levy Interest Due on

Fiscal Bond
Year Numbers Principal Interest Totals June 1 Amount December I Amount
2003 191-238 § 240,000 § 257,582 % 497,582 2003 § 128,791 2003 f 128,791
2004 239-288 250,000 245,882 495,882 2004 122,941 2004 122,941
2005 289-340 260,000 233,694 493,654 2005 116,847 2005 116,847
2006 341-395 275,000 221,018 496,018 2006 110,509 2006 110,509
2007 396-453 290,000 207,612 497,612 2007 103,806 2007 103,806
2008 454-514 305,000 193,476 498,476 2008 96,738 2008 96,738
2009 515-578 320,000 178,606 498,606 2009 89,303 2009 89,303
2010 579-646 340,000 163,006 503,006 2010 81,503 2010 81,503
2011 647-717 355,000 146,432 501,432 2011 73,216 2011 73,216
2012 718-792 375,000 129,126 504,126 2012 64,563 2012 64,563
2013 793-871 395,000 110,750 505,750 2013 55,375 2013 55,375
2014 872-955 410,000 91,000 511,000 2014 45,500 2014 45,500
2015 956-1043 440,000 70,000 510,000 2015 35,000 2015 35,000
2016 1044-1136 465,000 48,000 513,000 2016 24,000 2016 24,000
2017  1137-1235 455,000 24,750 518,750 2017 12,375 2017 12,375

$ 5,225,000 §2,320,934 § 7545934 $ 1,160,467 $ 1,160,467

NOTE: Debt service is payable from the North Maine Water and Sewer Fund.

{See independent audilor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS

CORPORATE PURPOSE NOTES OF 1997

Deceraber 31, 2002

Date of Issue

September 2, 1997

Date of Maturity September 1, 2019

Authorized Issue $ 2,850,000

Actual Issue § 1,425,000

Interest Rates 4.942%

" Interest Dates September 1
Principal Maturity Date September 1
Payable at North Suburban Public Utility
Overland Park, Kansas
FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Fiscal Reguirements
Year Principal Interest Totals
2003 A 94,852 § 120,525 215,377
2004 99,539 115,838 215,377
2005 104,459 110,918 215,377
2006 109,621 105,756 215,377
2007 115,039 100,338 215,377
2008 120,725 04,652 215,377
2009 126,691 88,686 215,377
2010 132,952 82,425 215,377
2011 139,523 75,854 215377
2012 146,419 68,958 215,377
2013 153,655 61,722 215,377
2014 161,249 54,128 215,377
2015 169,219 46,158 215,377
2016 177,582 37,795 215,377
2017 186,359 29,018 215,377
2018 195,569 19,808 215,377
2019 205,234 10,143 215,377

$ 2,438,687 § 1222722 § 3,661,409

NOTE: Debt service is payable from the North Maine Water and Sewer Fund.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS

CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS SERIES OF 1998A

December 31, 2002

Date of Issue

November 1, 1998

Date of Maturity December 1, 2018
Authorized Issue $ 10,000,000
Actual Issue 3 5,000
Interest Rates Bonds
1-139 4.10%
140-389 4.15%
390-661 4.20%
662-957 4.25%
958-1278 4.30%
1279-2000 4.35%
Interest Dates June 1 and December 1
Principal Maturity Date December 1
Payable at American National Bank and
Trust Company of Chicago
FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS
Tax Levy Interest Due on
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Totals June 1 Amount December 1 Amount
2003 $ - $ 426440 5 426,440 2003 § 213,220 2003 $ 213,220
2004 - 426,440 426,440 2004 213,220 2004 213,220
2005 - 426,440 426,440 2005 213,220 2005 213,220
2006 - 426,440 426,440 2006 213,220 2006 213,220
2007 - 426,440 426,440 2007 213,220 2007 213,220
2008 - 426,440 426,440 2008 213,220 2008 213,220
2009 - 426,440 426,440 2009 213,220 2009 213,220
2010 - 426,440 426,440 2010 213,220 2010 213,220
2011 - 426,440 426,440 2011 213,220 2011 213,220
2012 695,000 426,440 1,121,440 2012 213,220 2012 213,220
2013 1,250,000 397,945 1,647,945 2013 198,973 2013 198,973
2014 1,360,000 346,070 1,706,070 2014 173,035 2014 173,035
2015 1,480,000 288,950 1,768,950 2015 144,475 2015 144,475
2016 1,605,000 226,050 1,831,050 2016 113,025 2016 113,025
2017 1,735,000 157,035 1,892,035 2017 78,518 2017 78,518
2018 1,875,000 81,563 1,956,563 2018 40,781 2018 40,782
$10,000,000 § 5,762,013 §15,762,013 3 2,881,007 § 2,881,008
NOTE: Debt service is payable from the Debt Service Fund using monies transferred from the GNAS
Redevelopment Fund.

(See independent auditor's report.}
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VILLAGE QOF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS SERTES OF 1998B

December 31, 2002

Date of Issue January 1, 1999

Date of Maturity December [, 2018

Authorized Issue $ 24,400,000

Actual Issue 3 5,000

Interest Rates Bonds
1-154 4.250%
1515-2215 4.375%
2216-2589 4.400%
2590-4830 4,500%

Interest Dates June 1 and December 1

Principal Maturity Date December 1

Payable at American National Bank and

Trust Compeny of Chicago
FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax Levy Interest Due on

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Totals Juge 1 Amount  December ]  Amount

2003 § 1,450,000 § 1,013,536 $ 2,463,536 2003 § 506,768 2003 ¥ 506,708

2004 1,510,000 951,911 2,461,911 2004 475,955 2004 475,955
2005 1,575,000 887,736 2,462,736 2005 443,868 2005 443,868
2006 1,640,000 820,799 2,460,799 2006 410,399 2006 410,399
2007 1,715,000 751,099 2,466,099 2007 375,550 2007 375,550
2008 1,790,000 . 676,068 2,466,068 2008 338,034 2008 338,034
2009 1,870,000 597,755 2,467,755 2009 298,878 2009 258,878
2010 1,955,000 515,475 2,470,475 2010 257,737 2010 257,737
2011 2,050,000 427,500 2,471,500 2011 213,750 2011 213,750
2012 1,450,000 335,250 1,785,250 2012 167,625 2012 167,625
2013 1,000,000 270,000 1,270,000 2013 135,000 2013 135,000
2014 1,000,000 225,000 1,225,000 2014 112,500 2014 112,500
2015 1,000,000 180,000 1,180,000 2015 90,000 2015 90,000
2016 1,000,000 135,000 1,135,000 2016 67,500 2016 67,500
2017 1,000,000 90,000 1,050,000 2017 45,000 2017 45,000
2018 1,000,000 45,000 1,045,000 2018 22,500 2018 22,500

$ 23005000 § 7,922,129 § 30,927,129 3 3,961,064 ¥ 3,961,064

NOTE: Debt service is payable from the Debt Service Fund using monies transferred from the GNAS
Redevelopment Fund.

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, [LLINOIS
LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS SERIES OF 2000

December 31, 2002

Date of Issue December 15, 2000
Date of Maturity DRecember 1, 2008
Authonzed Issue £ 4,970,000
Actual Issue 5 5,000
Interest Rates Bonds
1-69 4.30%
70-795 4.40%
796-994 4.50%
Interest Dates June ] apd December 1
Principal Maturity Date - December 1
Payable at American National Bank and
Trust Company of Chicage

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax Levy Interest Due on

Fiscal  Bond
Year Numbers . Principal Interest Totals June 1 Amount December ]  Amount
2003 h - $ 219,335 § 219,335 2003 § 109,668 2003 § 109,668
2004 - 219,335 219,335 2004 109,668 2004 109,668
2005 1-69 345,000 219,335 564,335 2005 109,668 2005 109,668
2006 70-419 1,750,000 204,500 1,954,500 2006 102,250 2006 102,250
2007 420-795 1,875,000 127,500 2,002,500 2007 63,750 2007 63,750
2008 796-994 1,000,000 45,000 1,045,000 2008 22,500 2008 22,500

34,970,000 $1,035,005 3 6,005,005 $ 517,504 5 517,504

NOTE: [Itis anticipated that the levies associated with this issue will be abated through 2004 transfers from the
General Fund. The bond proceeds will be used for infrastructure improvements throughout the Village.
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(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS

CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS SERIES OF 2001 )

Deceinber 31, 2002
Date of Issue August 1, 2001
Date of Maturity December 1, 2012
Authorized Issue £41,800,000
Actual Issue b 5,000
Interest Rates Bonds
1-200 3.50%
201-1160 3.75%

Interest Dates
Principal Maturity Date
Payable at

1161-5160 4.00%

5161-6160 4.125%

6161-7260 4.25%

7261-8360 4.35%

June 1 and December 1

December 1

Ameriean National Bank and
Trust Company of Chicago

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax Levy Interest Due on

Fiscal Bond
Year  Numbers  Principal Interest Totals June 1 Amount  December 1  Amount
2003 1-100  § 500,000 $ 1,694,250 § 2,194,250 2003 § 847,125 2003 3 347,125
2004  101-200- 500,000 1,676,750 2,176,750 2004 838,375 2004 338,375
2005  201-1160 4,800,000 1,659,250 6,459,250 2005 829,625 2005 329,625
2006 1161-2160 5,000,000 1,479,250 6,479,250 2006 739,625 2006 739,625
2007 2161-3160 5,000,000 1,279,250 6,279,250 2007 639,625 2007 639,625
2008 3161-4160 5,000,000 1,079,250 6,079,250 2008 539,625 2008 539,625
2009  4161-5160 5,000,000 £79.250 5,879,250 2009 439,625 2009 439,625
2010 5161-6160 5,000,000 679,250 5,679,250 2010 339,625 2010 339,625
2011 6161-7260 5,500,000 473,000 5,973,000 2011 236,300 2011 236,500
2012 7261-B360 _ 5,500,000 239,250 5,739,250 2012 119,625 2012 119,625

$41,800,000 § 11,138,750 $52,938,750 $ 5,569,375 $ 5,569,375

NOTE: Debt service is payable from the Debt Service Fund using menies transferred from the GNAS Redevelopment

Fund.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS SERIES OF 2002

December 31, 2002

Date of Issue

February 15, 2002

Date of Maturity December 1, 2005
Authorized [ssue $ 6,885,000
Actual Issue $ 6,885,000
Interest Rates Bonds
2002 2.00%
2003 2.00%
2004 2.25%
2005 2.75%
Interest Dates June 1 and December 1
Principal Maturity Date December 1
Payable at American National Bank and
Trust Company of Chicago
FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS
Tax Levy Interest Due on
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Totals June 1 Amount  Decemberl  Amount
2003 § 1,755,000 § 142,736 $ 1,897,736 2003 $ 71,368 2003 $ 71,368
2004 1,805,000 98.860 1,903,860 2004 49,430 2004 49430
2005 1,315,000 44,710 1,359,710 2005 22,355 2005 22,355
$ 4,875,000 § 286306 § 5,161,306 § 143,153 $ 143,153

NOTE: Debt service is payable from the Debt Service Fund using monies received from a property tax
revenues, as well as water and sewer revenues.

{See independent auditor’s report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

December 31, 2002

Article V11, Section 6(k) of the 1970 [llinois Constitution governs computation of the legal debt

"The General Assembly may limit by law the amount and require referendum approval
of debt to be incurred by home rule municipalities, payable from ad valorem property
tax receipts, only in excess of the following percentages of the assessed value of its
taxable property . . . (2) if its population is more than 25,000 and less than 500,000 an
aggregate of one per cent: . .. indebtedness which 1is outstanding on the effective date
(July 1, 1971) of this constitution or which is thereafter approved by referendum . . .
shall not be included in the foregoing percentage amounts."

To date, the General Assembly has set no limits for home rule municipalities.

- 161 -



-791 -
spI0ady A1)
30105 BJe(]
puny Areiqry - T yueuodiioy) pur pun,y 301AIRS 1qa(] ‘onuaaTy [glaadS [erauasy sapnjauy 4
%I¢LL %Z0'El %01T] %18 T Y%9T T %8801 YLl6TE %91LT u4LE18 G 16L STUNLIONALNT
TY INTWNITAOD TYUINAD
OL STHNLIANAIXE
ADIAYES 1880 0 011V
001°(SI°9F & ¢I971/0TF § RROBGOTy $ PLT'RISRS § SETOSPES § €A0°LHPOS $ SPO'ZTEROF $ 1I1B0S'6T § TPLSSOvT § SPELL0ZIT § «STANLIANTIXH
TYLNAWNIIAOCD
TYYANAD TYLOL
£CO°680°8  § O99C'BLP'C & I88°690°C § 166°17797 § SrP'065°TT § vLEIZS0T § 999'6TEEl T 606'W90'S  § vEF6L0T  § TELORL'T 8 dOIAYHS L99d TVLOL
£CO°506'C GQ¢"RRRT 188'6LE°T 1P1°195°¢ 8P6'491°C vLY'SLG'E 91$'pZE Y 60L8PL'E FEP PG L6 sa21eyD |EDSY PUE 1523U]
000081y  § 00006ST  § 0000697 § 068°099°ZT § O00SPIFET § O0LSEY91 $ 0516006 § 00Z9IET  § 000GINT  §  000°SLL kY [ediautig
7007 1007 0007 6661 8661 L661 9661 ca61 ¥e61 £661 Ied X [BISI]

SIBD L [eIS1y Ua] 1SBT

STAMLIGNHdXH TV ININNBTAOD TVEIANTD TY.LOL OL
1450 NOLLVOITAO TVIENTD Y04 STANLIANIIXT IDIAYES LAIA TYNNNVY 40 OLLVd

STONITTI  MHIANTTO 40 #OVT 1A



5pI00Ty IFe||IA

33105 ereq

-age1an02 31BNSN)]T 0) SNPAYDS S} UT PIPN[OLI Ua34 JABL| SPUOQ 95011, 125§ SOUB|E PUNg SYIOMIAIEM 31 U0 {6661 |Bast) Yy3noayy) senssr puoq uoljesiqo [esouad poprooat sey a8e|[1A oul, (£)
‘sjuawianinbal 1qap Jeio) Aq wov_zﬁ J0TAIDS JGRP 10] J[qR[IEAR 3NU3ADL JON (7)

-sasuadxa Funerado enp snurw sanuaazs Sunessdo (1)

- - - 798 L €9z 0r'1 v6'l 90'z o1 (2) AOVIAAQD
- g - 5 - T 7996IE  § 90ELBE  § 965086 § ELPOEO'L § €¥O'LCO'T § RZO6I6  § 968¥9E  § ADIAEES 1630 TY.LOL
- - - ZISSI 908't¢ 96Z'9L €z £reeoT BTOYPT 968797 183.33U]
- $ - $ - § 0SIW0E  § 00S'¢SE  § 00E€P06 5 OC8'PI6 S 00%°C6% S O0UO'STL  § 000°00L S ledidurg

(€) SINAWTAINOTA TDIAYES LETA

W0'05S'T § Z60TIFT § LLTOVI'L § £S9°PSLT § OVIZR8'T § EE£86S°C § POLSCHT § £S00SOT § 866661 § TLE06ST § (1) ADIANAS LOFA MOA
. FTEVTIVAY HNNTATI LAN

660°TT8'Y 80t L¥S'y £61°Cit'C 268'1£9°¢ 6Z5°865°¢ L9L°60E°E 0zTT'98t'y 01T LEd'y SIE8FT'y §50'06L'E sasuodxo Fugriado 1001
IPISLEL § 09S'856°9 § OLP'SES'9 §  TIS'98C'9 § 6590840 § 001'806'S § vZ&'I¥8'S § LOT'L800 § (6TTHT'0 §  LTVLSES & sanuaaal Funesadp
7007 1002 0002 6661 BG6T 1661 9661 5661 Y661 €661 e edsL]

SIB3} [east] Us] Ise]

AN STAOMELLY M
ADVIIAOD ANOE INNIATA 4O FTNALHIS

SIONITT "MATANATO JO IOV TTIA




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

Iast Ten Fiscal Years

Edugcation
Levelin (3)
Per 1) Years of 2) Unemploy-
Fiscal 0 Capita Median Formal Schicol ment
Year Population Income Age Schooling Enrollment Percentage
1993 38,437 31,469 * 375 16.5 5,937 5.0
1694 38,437 32,161 * 375 16.5 6,023 37
1995 38,437 33,144 » 37.5 16.5 8,461 31
1996 38,437 34,037 * 375 16.5 8,590 3.0
1997 38,437 34,886 * 375 16.5 3,676 2.6
1998 38,437 35,578 ¢ 37.5 16.5 9,315 2.5
1999 38,437 36,315 * 37.5 16.5 9,241 23
2000 41,847 37,566 * 375 16.5 9,241 2.5
2001 41,847 37,566 37.5 16.5 9,241 3.7
2002 41,847 37,566 37.5 16.5 6,241 4.4
* Estimated

Data Sources

(1) LS. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census

(2) Includes elementary and high school students.

(3) llinois Department of Labor, Ilinois Department of Employment Security (not seasonably adjusted).
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

December 31, 2002

Drate of incorporation
Formn of government
Geographic location
Area

Population
1950
1960
1970
1980
1990
2000

Number of Total Housing Units (2000 Census) )
Median Value Owner-Occupied Noncondeminium Housing Units

Distribution of Owner-Occupied Noncondominium Houses by Value

(2000 Census)

Unit Values by Range (1)
Under $100,000
100,000 - 199,999
200,000 - 299,999
300,000 - 499,999
500,000 - 999,999
$1 million or more

Fire Protection
Number of firefighters
Number of stations
Number of fire hydrants
1.5.0. Rating

Police Protection
Number of police officers
Number of school crossing guards
Number of stations

Library Services

Number of libraries

Number of books

Number of records

Numbér of audio casseltes

Number of slides (sets)

Number of video tapes

Number of compact discs

Number of registered borrowers

2001 book circulation
Adult materials
Children's materials

(This scheduile is continued on the following page.)
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June 20, 1899
Council/Manager

20 Miles North of Chicago
13.27 Square Milcs

6,142

18,132

24 8RO

32,060

38,437

41,847

15,810
$ 336,000

Unit Distribution

Number Bercent

159 1.43%
1,278 11.52%
3,227 29.10%
4,203 37.90%
1,987 17.92%

236 2.13%

11,090 100.00%

85

3
2,300
Class 3

74
20

1
266.090
469
7,652
279
11,536
10,904
21,968

334,179
425,506
763,685




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MISCELLANECQUS STATISTICS {Continved)

December 31, 2002

Recredtion Facilities
Number of parks and playgrounds
Park area in acres - Park Distnct owned
Park area in acres - Park District leased

Municipal Parking Facilities
Nurmber of parking spaces

Waterworks Operations
Number of sewer custorsers at December 31, 2002
Number of metered water ¢ustomers at December 31, 2002
Gallons of water purchased during fiscal year
Gallons of water billed during fiscal year
Water storage capacity
Ground storage
Elevated storage

MNumber of full-time employees at December 31, 2001
Miles of streets maintained by Glenview
identified by functional classification:

Arterial

Collector

Residential

Cul-de:sacs

Total

Miles of alleys maintained by Glenview

Miles of streets within the Village of Glenview
maintained by Coak County or the State of 1Hlinois

Miles of sanitary sewers
Miles of storm sewers

Number of Village-owned street lights
Building activity

Number of permits issued in 2001

Value of construction authgrized in 2001

Data Source

Village Records
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36
447
135

1,168

9,518

15,015
3,200,685,000
2,788,600,000

8,500,000 galions
1,000,000 gallons

322

5
106

12

5 130

22

80.6
74

465
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

MAJOR CORPORATE FUND REVENUE SOURCES
NON-REAL ESTATE TAX ’

December 31, 2002

Percent Percent Illinois Percent

Fiscal Sales of Tota) Utility of Total Income of Total

Year Tax Revenue Tax Revenue Tax Revenue
1993 $ 4,188,116 29.4% 2,876,149 20.2% 1,966,124 13.8%
1994 4,438,932 24.4% 2,512,867 13.8% 2,157,707 11.9%
1995 4,843,071 25.3% 2,935,696 15.3% 2,266,279 11.8%
1996 4,661,985 23.6% 3,099,365 15.7% 2,656,744 13.4%
1597 4,794,830 21.1% 3,184,812 14.0% 2,483,946 10.9%
1998 5,092,357 20.9% 3,340,555 13.7% 2,666,003 10.9%
1999 5,758,617 23.0% 3,262,725 13.0% 2,740,281 11.0%
2000 6,522,922 23.7% 3,712,583 14.5% 2,990,432 10.9%
2001 7,184,006 23.5% 4,147,388 13.6% 2,963,486 9.7%
2002 8,765.038 28.7% 4,119,522 13.5% 2,745,035 9.0%

Note: Includes General Fund only
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW

Cook County, lllinois

ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

STATEMENT OF INDEBTEDNESS

Amount As Per Cent of Per Capita
Applicable as of Assessed Estimated (2001 Census
Dec. 31, 2002 Value True Value Pop. 41,847}
Assessed Valuation of Taxable Real Property, 2001 . ........ $1,551,283,576 100.00% 33.33% 3 37,070.60
Estimaied True Value of Taxable Real Property, 2001 ., ...... 4,653,880,728 300.00% 100.00% 111,211.81
Direct General Obligation Bonded Debt(1):
Payable from Property Taxes ....... N $ 9,584,000 0.62% 0.21% § 22902
Self-SupportingDebt . ... .. ... ... .. .. 87,756.000 5.66% 1.688% 2,097.07
Total Direct Bonded Debt . .. ... ... .. ... .vini.n. § 97,340,000 B.28% 2.09% § 2,326.09
Overlapping Bonded Debl Payable from Property Taxes{Z)
Sehools . ... .. e e $ 36,380,263 2.34% 0.78% $ B69.37
Other Than Schools . ... ... ... ... ... .. e 66,478,063 .29% 1.43% 1,588.62
Total Overlapping Bonded Debl . .. .. .. ....... ... ... $ 102,858,326 §.63% 2.21% 2457.99
Total Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt . .................. $ 200,199,326 12.91% 4.30% $ 478408
Total Direct and Overlapping Exciluding Seff-Supporting ..... § 112,443,326 7.25% 2.42% 3 Z687.01

Noles: 1. The Village is a home-rule unit under the 1970 Hflinois Canslitution and as such has no debt fimit nor Is it required lo seek referendum
approval for Ihe Issuance of general obligation debt. See "Retirement Schedule of Quistanding Village General Qbligation Debt” for a isting
of the Village's non-general obligation debt and currently outstanding general obligation debl. Of the Village's genera! obligafion debt 90.1%
or $87,756,000 is considered self-supporting.
2. See "Detalied Overlapping Bonded indebtedness Payable From Property Taxes at December 31, 2002".

RETIREMENT SCHEDULE OF QUTSTANDING VILLAGE GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT(Note 1)
(As of December 31, 2002)

4

Principal Amounts Debt Service
Self Supporting With Projected Abatement From Tax Levies
Water and Sewer Funds(2) Tax Increment Revs. (7} Total From
Due Paid From Series Series Series Series Series. Series Cumul. Levy Property
_12-1 _ Prop Taxes(3) _ 1992{4) 1997(5) 2002(6) 1996 1998 20 Amount__ Percent _Year Taxes
2003 .. S 1,626,300 § 445000 5 240,000 128,700 § 810,000 § 1,450,000 § 500,000 § 4,900,000 5.0% 2002 $2,024,612
2004 .. 1,672,700 150,000 250,000 132,300 850,000 1,510,000 500,000 5,065,000 102% 2003 2.031,031
2005 .. 1,660,000 160,000 260,000 -0 - 895,000 1,575,000 4,800,000 9,350,000 19.8% 2004 1,972,551
2006 . . 1,750,000 170,000 275,000 945,000 1,640,000 5,000,000 9,780,000 298% 2005 1,954,500
2007 .. 1,875,000 180,000 290,000 965,000 1,715,000 5,000,000 10,055,000 40.2% 2006 2,002,500
2008 .. 1,000,000 195,000 305,000 1,050,000 1,790,000 5,000,000 9,340,000 49.8% 2007 1,045,000
2009 ,. -0- 210,000 320,000 -0 - 1,870,000 5,000,000 7,400,000 57.4%
2010 .. 220,000 340,000 1,955,000 5,000,000 7,515,000 ©65.1%
2011 .. 235,000 355,000 2,050,000 5,500,000 8,140,000 73.5%
2012 .. 255,000 375,000 2,145,000 5,500,000 8275000 82.0%
2018 .. -0 - 395,000 2,250,000 -0 - 2,645,000 B4.7%
2014 .. 420,000 2,360,000 2,780,000 B7.6%
2015 .. 440,000 2,480,000 2,920,000 90.6%
2016 .. 465,000 2,605,000 3,070,000 93.7%
2017 .. 495,000 2,735,000 3,230,000 97.0%
2018 .. -0~ 2,875,000 2,B75.000 100.0%

$9,584,000 351,920,000 $5.225,000 $261.000 §5545,000 §33,005,000 341,800,000 $07,340,000

Notes: 1. This table exciudes §2,438,674 note payable in annual prncipal and inferest payments of $215,377 lo the sellers of the ulility company lhal was
acquired in September, 1997. The remaining principal armount of special service area bonds, the proceeds of which have been used for various
neighborhood local improvements and which are secured by property taxes fo be levied in the applicable speclal service areas, is shown as
overtapping debt in the table “Detailed Overlapping Bonded Indebladness Payable From Properly Taxes”.

2. As a home rufe unil under the 1970 Minois Conslitutlon, the Viflage has no debt limit and it can issue general obligation bonds without
referendurm. The Village has chosen to fund various waler/sewer jmprovements with general obligation bonds and abate faxes from user
charges. The Village's waler system sevves a population of approximately 125,000 of which approximately 83,000 are outside the Village fimits
(63,000 In unincorporated areas and 20,000 in the Citizens Utilities service area).
includes remaining matunties of the Village's Series 2000 Bonds, and a portion of the Series 2002 Bonds.

The Senies 1992 Bonds are payatile primarily from revenues of the service area of a private water company (Citizens Utllities) outside the Village

fimits.

The Series 1997 Bonds are being paid from water and sewer revenues of a service area outside the Village limits with a populalion of

appreximately 40,000.

A portion of the Serias 2002 issue is payable from properly laxes and the remalnder js self-supporting from waler/Sewer revenues.

The Series 1996, Seres 1998 and the Series 2007 Bonds are expected to be paid from incremental property taxes at the Glenview Naval Air

Staflon Economic Development Project Area plus 80% of the land sale proceeds darived from the Village's sale of land at the Project Area.

N ot R
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DEBT RATIOS AND PER CAPITA DEBT—LAST TEN BOND SALES (Note 7}

Ratio to Estimated Actual Value(1) Per Capita(1)
Direct Debt Direct & Overlapping Debt = Direct & Overlapping Debt
Including Excluding Including Excluding Including Excluding

Village Issue Self- Self- Self- Self- Self- Self-

Sale Date Amount Supporting Supporting/2} Supporting Supporting(2] Supporting Supporting(2)
May 18,1993. ... ... ... $7,635,000 1.23% T7% 3.31% 2.85% $1,%62.19 $1,690.55
August 30,1894 . ... ... 8,025,000r3) 84% .60% 3.00% 2.66% 2,229.73 1,878.80
January 25,1995 ...... 60,000,00014) 87% S57% 2.98% 2.68% 2,219.67 1,995.53
October 17,1995, .. .. .. 500,000 .89% 57% 317% 2.85% 2,360.61 212334
October 15,1996 . .. ... . 8,435,000r5) 1.01% .45% 3.18% 262% 2,5980.75 2,134.53
August 5, 1997 ........ 6,175,000 1.13% A2% 3.15% 2.44% 2,544.13 1,969.57
October 20,1998 . . .. ... 34,400,000(6) 2.12% 37% 3.98% 2.23% 3,125.64 1,752.00
December 5,2000 ... ... 4,970,000 1.68% 33% 3.28% 193% 3,100.34 1,831.83
August7,2001 .. ...... 41,800,000 2.47% 33% 4.90% 2.43% 4,377.57 2,172.83
February 5,2002 . .. .... 6,885,000(7) 2.75% 30% 4.92% 2.47% 4,353.97 2,185.71

Notes: 1. Ratios and per capita information as set ouf in applicable Official Statements. The Village's Bond Anticipation Bonds
which sold on January 25, 1995 are not included in these ratios {see Nofe 4).

2. Excluding the Village's seif-supporting general obligation bonded debt,

3. Final issue amount was $6,040,000. This lssue advance refunded the callable maturities of the Series 1989 and 1980

issues.

4. General Obligalion Bond Anticipation Bonds, Seres 1995 ("BABS"} the proceeds of which were used (o fund inferest up to
the respective malurify dafes of the BABS and lo creale a capilal improvement fund for redevelopment costs of the
Glenview Naval Air Siation which officially closed on September 9, 1995, The principal amount of the Band Aniicipation
Bonds was not included in the debt ratios and per capita data — when lhose malurities were refinanced with Series 1996
and the Series 1998 Bonds, they appeared in the debt ralios and per capita debt.

Proceeds used fo refund the December 1, 1996 malurity of the BABS.
A portion of the proceeds of the Seres 1998 Bonds was used fo refund the December 1, 1998 maturity of the BABS.
Proceeds were used fo redeem the oulstanding Series 1993 and 1994 bonds.

Noin

DETAILED OVERLAPPING BONDED INDEBTEDNESS PAYABLE FROM PROPERTY TAXES
AT DECEMBER 31, 2002

Percent of Village's Applicable
Village's ‘Share (Note 1)
2001 Real of Gross Debt To Be Paid
Property In Gross From Real Property Taxes
SCHOOL DISTRICTS: Taxing Body Bonded Debt Percent Amount
Elementary Districts: ’
Glenview School DistrlgtNo. 34 ... ... ........... 69.5% $ 20,375,000 86.069% $17,536,559
Northbrook School District No. 30 ... ............ 11.4% 8,793,067 I7.423% 3,290,629
Weslt Northfield School District No. 31 . ......,. e 9.8% 9,640,000 27.223% 2,624,297
Wilmette School District No. 39 ... ........ ... - 3.2% 12,065,000 4.606% 555,714
East Maine School DistrictNo. 83 .... ... ........ 2.4% 21,150,000 4.144% 876,458
Golf School Distict No. 67 . . ... ... .. ... . ... 2.3% 5,223,512 14.995% 783,266
Avoca Schoo|Distigt No. 37 .. ... ... ... . ..., 1.7% 2,615,000 7.311% 191,183
100.0%
High School Districts:
Northfield Township High School District No. 225 . . .. B89.9% 23,757,687(3) 36.568% B,687.711
MNew Trier Township High Schoal District Ne. 203 . . .. 4.9% 20,055,000(3) 2.297% 460,663
Niles Township High School District No. 219 . ... ... 2.8% 88,713,237 1.352% 1,199,403
Maine Township High School District No. 207 . ...... 24% 17,650,000 0.988% 174,382
100.0%
Community College Dislrict:
Oakion Communtty College No. 535 . ... ......... 100.0% -0- 9.774% -0 -
Total Sehool DIstriCIS . . . .o i e e e et $36,380,263
OTHER THAN SCHOOL DISTRICTS:
Cook County, Including Fores! Pregerve District . ... ... 100.0% $2,659,991,974(2) 1.593% $42,373,672
Metropolitan Waler Recla.mat»on District. .. ... .. ca 100.0% 1,365,545,000¢2) 1.627% 22,217,417
Glenview Park District . e e 99.2% 1,225,000¢3) B83.075% 1,017,669
Northbrook Park Dlstncl ......... e, 4% 19,055,000 0.325% 61,929
North Maine Flre Protection Districd .. .. ............ 4% 200,000 2.243% 4,486
Glenview Special Service Areas .. ... . ... ean- Varicus 803.890 100.000% 803,890
Tolal Other Than School Districls .. .............. e e 566,479,063

Notes: 1. Village's share based upon 2001 Real Propery valuations.
2. Excludes short-tern cash flow noles.
3. Excludes the following “Alternate Bonds” issved pursuant fo Pubifc Act 85-1419, which are considered fo be seff-
supporting since they are payable from user fees or other pledged non-property fax sources: Northfield Township
High Schoo! District No. 225 - $21,950,000; New Trier High Schoo! District No, 203 - $4,760,000 and Glenview Park
Distrct - $33,710,000.




2000......

Notes: 1.

o o A

EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUATION FOR TAXING PURPOSES (Note 1)

For General Taxing Purposes{Nots 1} For All Taxing Purposes
Gross Less Net For Increase Net For Plus Total For All
Real Exemptions General Taxing Over General Taxing Incremental Taxing
Property {2) Purposes(5)  Prier Year Purposes (5) _Valuation(7) Purposes(6)
.. $1,110,128,692 $62,350,866 $1047777,826 -2%(5 $1047777826 3 -0 - $1,047,777 826
.. 1,224686,771 64,315,730 1,160,371,041 +10.7% 1,160,371,041 -0 - 1,160,371,041
.. 1,309,030,170 65,038,497 1,243,991673 +7.2% 1,243,981,673 2,216,856 1,246,208 529
.. 1,293,037,637 65,381,437 1,227,656,200 -1.3%(5)  1,227,856,200 56537,964  1,233,194,164
.. 1,587,554408 75911709 1,511,642,699(4) +23.1% 1,541,642,699 39,650,877  1,551,293,576

Property in Cook County is separaled into eight ciassifications for assessment purposes (ranging in 1985 from 16% for
residential to 40% for commercial property). After the assessor establishes the fair marke! value of a parcel of land, that
value is multipled by one of the classificallon percentages to arrive al the assessed valualion for that parcel. The lllinois
Department of Revenue fumishes each county with an adjustment factor (the equalization factor) to equalize the level of
assessment belween counties. After the equalization facter [s applied, the valuation of the proparty for laxing purposes
has been established—iax rates are applied fo the equalired valuation.

Inciudes four calegories of exemptions in 2003: the Senior Citizens' Homestead Exemption ($8,806,750); the General
Homestead Exemption ($54,052,353); the Senior Cillzéns Tax Freeze Homestead Exemplion ($12,186,924) and the
Long-Term Homeowner Exemplion ($865,682), The Senior Cilizans' Homes{ead Exemplion, effectiva for tax years 1991
and following, is a reduction of $2,500 ($71,500 in levy years 1972-1983 and $2,000 in levy years 1984-1950) in the
equalized essessad valuation of real properly owned and occupled by a person 65 years of age or older. The General
Homestead Exemption is avaflable to owner-occupied residential properly; the amount of the exemption Is the increase in
the current year's equelized assessed valuallon above the 1977 tax yeer equalized assessed valuafion, with a maximum
of $1,500 in 1978, $3,000 between 1979 and 1982, $3,500 belween 1983-1990 and $4,500 thereafter. The Senior
Cilizen Tax Freeze Homeslead Examplion, first effeciive in levy year 1994, provides that parsons 65 or ofder wilh a
household income of less than $40,000 (up frorm $35000 in levy year 1998 and prior) may receive an exemplion in the
amoun! of the difference between the currenf equalized assessed value of their principal residence and the lowest
previous assessment in a qualifying year, even if the senior was not eligible for some infervening year. The Long-Term
Homeowner Exemplion is a Cook County program which provides property fax relief fo long-ferm homeowners who meef
cerlain income requirements and who heve been adversely affected by rapid increases in propery values.

Under the current triennjal reassessmen! syslem in Cook County, one third of {he Counly is reassessed each year. The
Village was raassessed In 1998 and 2001 (for faxes to be coltected in 2002).

By vatuation, 83.2% of the Village is in Northfield Township, 6.1% is in Niles Township, 6.0% is in Maine Township, and
4.6% is In New Trier Township. includes $134,910 of Raifroad Property now ciassified as Real Property.

The .2% decrease Jn 7997 and the 1.3% decrease in 2000 were primanly due fo decreesas of .13% and 1,2%
respectively, in the Stale imposed equalization Factor for Cook Courtly.

The Village’s (ax rate Is calcuiated based on the Village's Nel Equalized Assessed Valuation (shown in this table as “Net
For General Taxing Purposes;) and is extended ageinst its entire Equallzed Assessed Valuation (shown in this table as
“Total for Al Taxing Purposes®) excluding only the slalutory exemptions. Of the faxes collected, that portion applicable t6
incremental valuation (valuation of tax increment districts) is remitfed lo the Village by the County Colleclor for deposit in
the applicable tax allocatlon fund. The Equalized Assessed Valuation for which the Village receives its portion of the fotal
tax rate for all non-TIF purposes is shown in the lable as “Net for General Taxing Purposes.”

When the Glenview Nawval Afr Station Tax Increment Dislrict was created, it included the Air Stafion and an otder
industrial area adjacent therelo. As of Januery 1, 1999, the incremental valuation was added from changes in that
industrial area, Land Valuations in thai industrial area have increased for a varely of reasons fncluding the facl the
propery being adjacent to a major new rpadway enfrance jnto the redeveloped base end a nearby new Melra train
statlon.

TAX RATES PER $100 EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUATION
(Levy Years)

Village of Gienview: 1907 1998 1999 2000 2001
Bondsand Interest ......_ ........... ‘er- $ 166 $ .156 § 145 $ .52 $ 17
Pensions (Police, Fire, IMRF & Social Securlty) 112 095 077 .093 105
Corporate ... .. Fenreanesaaens e 457 .409 430 426 322

Total Village(1). .. ........ fee e $ 735 $ 660  § 652 $ .67 $ .545

Cook Counly (Incl. Forest Preserve) ..., .......... 993 983 955 .593 813

Metrop:

clitan Water Reclamation Distdct. . ... .. .. ... 451 444 418 415 401

Glenview S.D.Number34 . ... ........... .. .... 3.188 2991 2.839 3.030 2.623
Northfield Township H,S.D. Number 225 ........... 1.932 1.840 1.870 1.992 1.740

Qaklon

Community College Dist. Number 535 ... ..., .216. 205 203 213 186

Glenview Park Dislriel. ... ................ “aees .498 587 578 612 511
Glenview Public Library(2). . ... e e 304 269 .251 269 228
Northfield Townshipand Al Other . ............ ... 18 _.078 .068 .081 099

Total(3). .................. P $8.435 $8.057 $7.835 $8.176 $7.146

Village as aPercentof Total . .. .. ............. . 8.7% B8.2% 8.3% 8.2% 7.6%

Notes: 1.
2.

3

As a home rule unit under the 1870 flfinois Constitution, the Vilage has no stalufory tax rale limitations.
Beginning in levy year 1985, the tax rafe for Library purposes is considered under Sfate law o he a separate
levy from the Villege.

Tax rate applicable lo the Jargest tax code which represented 44.8% of the Village’s 2007 tax base and is
located in Northfieid Township.
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TAX EXTENSIONS AND COLLECTIONS
(Village Purposes Only}

Total-Taxes Collected as

Levy Collection Total Taxes of December 31, 2002(1}

Year Year Extended Amount (2} Percent
1897 1998 $7,701,167 $7,634,206 99.13%
1998 ... ..., e 1999 7,658,448 7,702,489 100.57%
1899 ,,....., e 2000 8,110,825 8,080,664 99.63%
2000 ... e 2001 8,237,573 8,296,330 100.71%
2001 .. e, 2002 8,238,452 8,441,291 102.46%

Notes: 1. Source: Cook County Treasurer's Office. Taxes collected, including late payments, are shown as
collections in the year when due regardiess of when the coflection occurs. The “Amount
Collected” is nof the same as distributions lo the Village as colleclions include taxes paid under
protest. When the taxes are paid under protest are remitfed, they are not included as taxes
collected as they have aiready been considered “collected”.

‘2. Cook County propesty taxes are payable in two instaliments; the first on March 1, and the second
on the lafter of Augus! 1 or 30 days afler the mailing of the tax bilis. The first instaliment is an
estimated bill and is one-half of the priar year's bill. The second instafiment is based on the current
levy, assessment and equalization and reflects any changes from the prior year in those factors.
The second instaliment date for levy years 1996-2000 were Seplember 198, 1997, Oclober 28,
1998, November 1, 1999, Oclober 2, 2000, and November 1, 2001, respectively.

1996 AND 2001 TAX BASE DISTRIBUTION BY PROPERTY CLASSIFICATION (Note 1)

Village of Glenview

Taxable Valuation{2) Percent of Total

Property Classification: 1996 2001 1996 2001
Resldentlal ...................... ... $ 736,006,587 $1,116,802,930 70.1% 72.0%
Commercial(?) .. ... ...t 216,553,501 300,038,371 20.6% 19.3%
Industrial . ... .. ... ... ... .. e 97,478,454 134,297,190 9.3% 8.7%
Ralroad . ................... fee e 155,106 134,910 NIL NIL
Farm ............ 115.075 22175 NIL NIL

Tatah oo e $1,050,308,723 $1,551,293,576 100.0% 100.0%
Percent Increase 1996-2001. .......... e v +47.7%

Nofes: 1. The commercial classification includes apartment buildings with over six unifs and any apariment/refail
mixed use buildings.
2. Includes incremental valuation in the Village's tax increment financing district.

TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS

Equalized

Assessed Percent of

Rank Taxpayer Properties Valuation{?)  Village (2}
1.... KraftGeneralFoods ... ......... Carporate Headquarers/Research Campus .. $ 45,491,405 2.9%
2.... Grubb & Ellis Services . ... ...... AON Insurance Company . ... ........... 21,819,886 1.4%
3.... Signode, Div.OFITW........... Corporale Headquarers . ............... 16,206,175 1.0%
4,.... MidAmerican Asset,............ Commercial Property .......... e 16,070,867 1.0%
5.... Wyndham Interhational. ......... Doubletree Hotel . .................... 11,603,435 0.7%
6.. Pearson Tax Deparimenl. , ., ..... Corporate Headquariers — Book Putlishing(3) 11,490,324 0.7%
7.... Parkside Senior Services ... ..... The Seasons ai Glenview Place ... ... ... " 8,601,411 0.6%
§..,. Target................._.... Retail Slore ... ..,............. PR 7,726,526 0.5%
9.... SandersZ100LP ...... e Commercial Property .................. 6,808,699 0.4%
10 . Heatherfleld CenLLC. .......... Commercial Property . ...... ........... 6,660,345 0.4%
Total Ten Largest Taxpayers ... .....cc.ovvvnen ..y v e vie. . $152,479073 9.8%

Notes: 1. Valuations as of January 1, 2007 for 2002 taxing purposes.
2. Tofal 2001 Village valuation of $1,551,293,634 (Including incremental valuatian).
3. Corporate headguarters of Scotf Foresman.




GENERAL FUND

Summary Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
{Fiscal Years Ending December 31)

Audited(Note 1)
2002 2003
Revenues/Transfers: (3} 1898 1999 2000 2001 Budget{2) _ Actual  _Budgef{2]
Propety Taxes . .....:c.ccvvieinnan. $5421,134 35,088,157 $ 5628468 $ 5,808,880 § 6,009,460 $ 5877232 $5853320
Property Taxes-Fire Prolechon District{717}. . 2,014,877 2,123,992 1,968,076 1,968,062 2,075,000 21711117 2,260,000
' SalesTaxes. .. ... eiioiinnn. 5,092,357 5,758,617 6,522922 7,184006 6,790,000 8,765,038 8,300,000
Utility Tax and Telecommunications Tax . ... 3,340,555 3,262,725 3,712,583 4,147,388 3,930,000 4,119,522 4,125,000
State Income Tax/Photo Use Tax .. ....... 3,111,954 3,249,388 3,551,020 3,483,970  3.830,000 3,183,744 3,305,000
Franchise Taxes ...................., 322,468 379,362 165,281 414,768 245,000 285,110 287,500
Motor Vehicle Licenses (3} .. ............ 5,535 10 -0 - -0 - -0- -0 -0~
I HotelRoom Tax(4). .. ................- 856,775 803,135 872,019 748,188 800,000 615,083 600,000
y Building Pemmits/Cerl. Of Oceup. . . ... . .. .. 1,069,449 996,745 1,456,765 2,467,698 1,951,700 2.063,149 1,852,200
Other Licenses and Permits ., ........... 250,798 236,925 280,634 342,302 295,000 352,334 284,800
Charges ForServices , ... ..........«... 1,310,311 741,991 1,280,928 1,152,553 2,160,575 1,109,048 1,189,841
Fines and Forfeits . .. ............. e 232,855 281,525 224,41 215,284 225,000 207,720 200,000
Interest . ........... e 526,760 478,582 665,382 769,833 475,000 401,213 360,000
Transfers-in:
Waterworks .. ... L. .o i L 452 814 457,808 500,750 493,710 508,600 508,600 529,400
WholesaleWater . .................. 106,700 102,200 102,000 105,000 112,150 112,150 106,000
The Glen Redev./Caretaker. .. ...... ... 33,850 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
‘ North Maine Ultlities . ................ 285174 381,981 292 674 307,500 307,500 307,500 307,500
Escrow Deposil intereslfs) .......... .. 127,215 194,993 190,994 172,351 150,000 120,000 100,000
OHher. . e e 168,898 +07,139 1,327,088 118,100 248,825 248,830 1,025,945
Land Sales .........c.ovriinieiiaey, -0 - 531,593 295,460 956,654 400,000 -0 - 400,000
AllOther Revenues ... ... ............. 795012 _ 1,075,376 887,172 934,280 _ 1,151,150 1,332.408 1,138,258
Total Revenues/Transfers ... ... ... .. $25,525,491 $26,256,244 $29,958,645 $31,794,527 $31,668,960 $31,783,798 $32,329,765
ExpendituresiTransfers:
General Govermnment . ... ... ... ... $ 4,824,865 $ 4,854,514 § 5132169 § 5450,092 £ 6,786,048 § 6,060,618 § 7,652,765
PublicSafety ... .... .. ... ... ., .. 11,918,831 12,357,263 13,285,031 15,389,725 16,247,337 15,850,504 18,343,136
l Highways and Streets. ,................ 4,004 806 4,774,392 5100455 5,866,080 6 356,057 6,118,925 7,166,428
Pensions .. . ... .. e e 613,170 515,397 570.574 -Q - -0 - -0 - -0 -
Subtotal Expenditures . .. ., , ... ....... 521,451,672 $22,501,566 $24,088,229 $26,705,897 $29,389,436 $28,030,047 $33.162,329
Capital Equipment Replacement Transfers(6) 965,013 1,024,903 1,001,302 1,061,930 1,225,223 1,225,220 1,275,119
Capilal Project Transfers/Capital Oullay ..... 919600 1,199,285 6,172,069 2437416 849,918 349,066 1,260,335
Debl Servica Transfer. .. ... ........... -0 - -0 - -0 - 210,805 219,335 219,336 -0 -
Total Expendllureszransfers cooe..... $23,336,285 $24,725,754 $31,271,600 $30,416,048 $31,683,972 $29,823,669 $35607,783
Revenue Over {Under) Expendilures:
Before Capilal/Transfers . .. . .. ......... 3 4073819 § 3,754,678 $ 5,860,416 $ 4,877,825 § 2,060,769 $ 3,534,415 § (832,564}
After CapitalTransfers .. .......... TS $ 2,189,206 $ 1,530,490 $(1,312955)% 1,378476 § (14952) $ 1,960,129 $£(3,368,018) -
Adjustments to Fund Balance . ... ... .. ... 8 -0- % -0- % -0- $ 371,04 $ -0 -
Fund Balance al December 31 . ... ..., .... 511,971,662 $13,502,152 $12,189,197 $13,938,713 $15,898,842
‘ Balance Sheet at December 31
I Assets: 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
Cash and Investments(8) .............. % 8,450,797 $10,356,035 312,206,729 $14,756,756 $15,032,003
Receivables:
Property Taxes(7) . .. .ot een e, 5,129,686 5604,175 5672153 5785884 5,731,379
I SalesTax.......... ..., 835114 527596 1,146,631 1,968,913 2,628,031
Utility Taxes .. ..., 305,374 316,573 425315 343,995 712,911
Olher Receivables . ................ 550,248 560,780 566,103 161,283 635,006
Due From OtherFunds . ... ............ 2,941,225  3,223415 521,106 137,073 185,501
AllOtherAssels . ........... co..u... 5,641 14,482 -0- 32,385 -0 -
Total Assets . FR N $18.218.085 $20.603,066 $20,538.037 $23.186,289 324,924,831
Liabilities and Fund Balance,
Accounts Payable. ... ............ ... % 190637 $ 156,192 % 609,888 § 547,977 $ 349836
Compensaled Absences Payable .. .. ... . 870,063 926,120 951,802 1,531,691  1,671823
DueToOtherFunds ... ............ e -0 - 30,920 232,004 137,314 40,022
Deferred Revenves . ............ Vi 5,129,686 5,836,811 5,822,728 6,029,209 5861,043
All Other Liabilities ... ................ 56,037 100,871 732,418 1,001,385 1,103,265
Fund Balance:
Reserved(9) . ........ ... .cocoo... k3 15641 $ 19,867 § 10,000 § 10,000 $ 10,000
Designaled for Surcharge Receipts{10) . 1,334,848 1,334,848 1,334,848 1,334,843 1,334,848
Undesignated . .. .............. ... 10,621,173 _12,147,437 10844349 12,593 865 14,553,994
Total Fund Balance(f?) cov.e- 311971662 $13,502. 152 $12.189,197 $13.938.713 $15.808 842
Total Liabilities & Fund Balance . . . . . . $18.218 085 $20603 066 $205358037 $23,186.289 $24,924 31
Notes: 1. These condensed financial statements for the General Fund for the years ending December 31, 1988-2002 have heen prepared from the full
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports of the Village of Glenview ard do not purport to be complefe financial statements. The full financial
:t?temenrs, together with the report of the Village's independent accountants, are available upon request. See Nole 1 to "Combined Statement-
i Funds”,
2. The Village Manager submits a proposed operafing budget to the Board of Trusfess which budgel Includes proposed expenditures and the
I means of financing them. Subseguent to bldget hearings, the budget is fegally enacted through passage of an ordinance. The Village Manager
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is authorized fo transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, any revisions thal alter the total expendilures of any
fund must be approved by the Board of Trustees. Budgets are adopted ot a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

3. As a home-rule unit, the Village could increase revenues by increasing its property tax levy, adopling a Home Rule Sales Tax and/or & Prepared
Food and Baverage Tax. The Village could also re-impose a molor vehicle license fee, which, If sef at the prier level, could generale over
$450,000 in annual revenues (fiscal year 1997 was the lasf compiele year the fee was in effect).

4. Effective May 6, 1985, the Village adopted a 5% hotef room lax, The Villaga currently has five operating hotels with 856 rooms.

5. Devélopers are required fo deposit with the Village an amount equal to the cos! of all improvements being built and dedicated to the Village which
deposits are relumed upon salisfaciory completion of the improvements. Interest eamings on the amounts in the Escrow Deposit Fund are
transferred to the General Fund.

6. The Capital Equipmant Replacement Fund (CERF) was eslablished by ordinance in 1979 with tha stated purpose of evening out the annual
expanditures for major capilal expenditures. All of the Village's on-road and off~oad equipment, fire, public works, efc., is included. Eath
Department is charged with the equivalent of a depreciation charge which is remitled in cash to the Capital Equipment Replacement Fund
(camied in the Capital Projects Fund). As of December 31, 2002, gudited cash and investments in the Capital Equipment Replacement Fund”™
lotaled $9,771,515.

7. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 1982, the Village changed is property lax revenue recognition to conform fo the provisions of
Interpretation #3 issued by the National Councit on Governmental Accounting under which property tax revenues are recognized to the exten! of
taxas due and coflected within the current year. The cumren! net tax levy receivable is recognized in the balance sheet along with a
corresponding amount of deferred revenue.

8. The Village's cash reserve policy is 90 days of working cash, which, given the 2002 actual non capilal expendilures, lotals approximately
$7,007,511. This reserve serves as insurance should the Village face fluctuations or delays in lax payments, a monetary Judgment, a natural
disaster, or other fiscal difficulties. The audited General Fund "Cash Balance® has risen from $6,629,833 af December 31, 1996 fo $15,032,003
al December 31, 2002 (see¢ “Cash and Investments at December 31" below) which represented a cash reserve balance of 193 days.

9. The December 31 2002 Resarved amount of $10,000 s for Patton House, a proposed senfor housing building.

10. These funds are available for any purpose~the “Designated” reference is to the source of revenues that were determined by the Village Board as.
not to be used for operating expenses.

11. On September 1, 1892 the Glenbrook Fire Protection Districf was merged into the Glenview Fire Department. The Fire Protection District .
conlfinues 1o levy property faxes on that part of its tax base oulside the Village limits and remits those tax receipts to the Village for services in the
unincarporafed area that now represents Its tax base,

12. The General Fund "Fund Balance"” af December 31, 2002 of $15,698,842 was equal to 47.8% of the $33, 162,329 Budgeted 2003 General Fund
expenditures excluding transfers for capital purposes.

COMEINED STATEMENT--ALL FUNDS(Note 1)

Fund Balances 1998-2001 and Summary 2002 Revenues, Excess Revenues and Fund Balance

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Revenues Excess
Incl. Transfers Revenues
December 31 ~ Audited Property Over Fund
Governmental Fund Types: 1398 1999 2000 2001 Tax Total Expenditures __Balance
GeneralFund ................. $ 11,971,662 $ 13,502,152 § 12,189,197 $13,938,713 $ 5,877,232 $ 31,783,798 $ 1,960,120 $ 15898,842
Specnal Revenue Funds: E
IMRF ... . $ 24118 $ 72445 § 220524 § 377590 S 493498 $ 708261 § 90,911 % 468,501 l
Motor Fuel Tax ............. 427 814 299,213 206,926 211,825 -0 - 1,192,554 31,754 243,579
Refuse and Recycling . ., ..... 902,166 1,192,944 1,398,883 1,623,380 =0 - 1,150,572 239,574 1,862,954
911 Communications ...... ... 271,111 330,485 397,895 456,718 -0- 501,107 {150,877} 305,842
GNAS Redevelopment(2) ... ... (911,268 (1,385,304) 4,612 {3.824) -0 - 1,606,082 (46,982) (50,8086)
GNAS Caretaker . ........... 96,304 (31,669) 4,807 {159,839) -0 - 1,161,794 101,321 (58,518)
Fareign Fire insurance . ., ... .. -0 - -0 - -0 - -0 - -0 - 39,537 39,537 39,537
Special Tax Allocation . ....... -0 - -0 - 3477 16,716 2.841.781 9.338.842 936,974 953,690
Total Special Revenue . . . . .. $ 810244 § 478,114 § 2,246,924 § 2522567 § 3,335279% $ 15,698,740 $ 1,242212 § 3,764,779
Debt Service Funds . ........... 2,388,599 3,651,914 2,431,244 2,811,524 1,748,803 8,196,115 {1,762,601) 1,048,923
Capitat Projec! Funds(10). .. ... .. 25911,196 84410215 _107.673.236 _158.292122 -0 - 32,649,214 (45454009} 112,838,113
Total Govemimental Funds . .. § 41,081,701 $102,042,395 $124,530,801 $177,564,926 $10,961,314 588,327,876 $(44,014,269) & 133,550,657
Proprietary Fund Type(3):
Enterprise Funds: .
Waterworks(4) , . ... ... e $ 15.197,166 $§ 16,628,339 $ 16,666,968 $ 17,638,968 $ -0 - § 7378141 § 800,107 § 18,439,075 ‘
Sewerage(d) . .............. 2,975,588 3,888,659 3,796,276 3,630,150 -0 - 1,031,229 249,194 3,879,344
Wholesale Water(4) ... ... .... 783,437 759,400 733,552 564,303 -0 - 1,419,995 (112,728} 451,575
Noerth Maine Water and Sewer(4) {266,559) (110,109) {421,839) (274,344) -0 - 5,757,471 38,368 {235,9786)
Commuter Parking Lot ., .. ..... 128,026 184,545 240,595 275,773 -0- 280,692 59,989 335,762
Total Enlerprise Funds ., . . . .. $ 18,817,658 § 21,360,834 § 21,015,552 § 21,834,850 § -0- $15867,528 5 1,034,930 § 22,869,780
internal Service Funds;
Municipal Equipment Repair(5) . . $ (38.354) % 144,454 § 225598 § 2M 417 § -0- 8% 1013644 % (145610) S 88,807
Insurance . ......... FIR 3,407,267 3,847,080 3,733,331 3,552,484 -0- 3,980,284 (14,413} 3,538,071
Tolal Intemal Service Funds .. $ 3368913 $ 3991534 § 3958928 § 3786901 $§ -0.- § 5003928 $§ (160,023} § 3,626,878
Tolal Proprietary Funds ... .. $ 22,186,571 & 25,352,368 $ 24,974,481 $ 25,621,751 $ -0- $20871456 $ 874,907 $ 26,496,658
Fiduciary Fund Types{6):
Escrow Depasiyf7) . ... ... ... .. $ 120,583 $ 124782 § 149,961 § 149,161 $§ -0- $ 116237 $ (3,763) § 145,398
Deposit . ... v 29,880 36,080 46,407 53,706 -0 - 2121 2,12 55,827 ,
Pallce Depariment Special Account 13,824 14,847 25,665 26,088 -0 - 9,871 97 28,185
Police Pension . .............. 27211246 25629270 29,157,175 28,380,377 -0- 2,869,668 1,680,058 31,060,435
Firefighlers' Pension ........... 37,B8B7.879 _ 36,747.303 _ 40,166,889 _ 41.979.483 -0- 3,936,899 2,347,369 44 326.852
Total Fiduciary Funds . . ... .. $ 65,263,422 $ 62,552,282 $ 69,545,297 $ 71,588,815 § -0- $ 5934796 $ 4025882 5 75,614,697
Component Unif:
LibraryFund(8 . .............. .3 2001851 % 1875071 § 1690683 § 1339278 § 3399700 3 3778563 § (354,737} 984.541
Toia! Afl Funds{Memo Only) . . $730,533,545 $191,622,116 $220,750,262 $276,114,770 $§14,361,014 §719,512,691 $(39,468,217}) §$236,646,553
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Cash and Investments at Dec. 31: 1928 1999 2000 2001 2002
GeneralFund .. ......... e $ B,450,797 § 10,356,035 § 12,206,729 § 14,756,756 $ 15,032,003
Special Revenue Funds . , .. .. ... 1,985,393 1,877,420 2,160,449 2,535,726 3,558,758
Debt Service Funds ... ......... 2,478,605 3,653,017 2,427 557 2,813,024 1,053,892

Capilal Project Funds:
Capital Equipment Replacement , § 7605563 $ 7646046 § B,796785 $ B715538 § 9,771,515

GNAS Projecd . ............. 15,905,125 59,629,350 66,510,250 106,108,151  B1,584,185
Village Permanent . .. .. e -0 - 17,015,899 26,651,077 36,253,716 26,147,121
Capital Projects .. ........... 6,120,760 6,595,418 8,864,515 11,128,658 10,679,464
AlCther .. ............ ... 2,304,156 _2.385.735 6,517,597 _ 6862198 5039.754
Total Capital Projects .. ..... § 31,935,604 § 93,182,248 $117,340,224 $169,069,262 $133,222,039
ProprietaryFunds . ............ 5,763,531 9,563,407 8,943,705 8,603,237 9,292,124
Fiduciary Funds{&)............ . 69,765,291 66,375,530 73,801,575 75,493,448 80,288,132
Component Unit - Library Fund{(8) . . 2,166,954 1,988,069 1.669,164 1,525,360 1,168,433

Total Cash and Investments(9) $126,546,175 §186,995,726 $216,435,403 $274,886,813 $244,016,481

Notes: 1.

N,

10.

These condensed financial statements for the years ending December 31, 1988-2002 have been prepared from the full Comprehensive
Annual Financial Reports of the Village of Glenview and do not purport (o be complete audits, The full financial stalements, together
with the report of the Village's independent accountants, are available upon request. The accounting policies of the Village conform to
generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to govemmental units. The accounts of the Village are organized on the basis of
funds and account groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The vanous funds are grouped inlo the three
broad calegorfes of Govemmental Funds, Fiduciary Funds and Proprietary Funds. Within the Governmental Funds are the General
Fund (the general operation fund) which is used to account for all financial resources except those required fo be eccounted for in
another fund; Special Revenue Funds which are used fo account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources thal are legally restricted
lo expendilures for specified purposes; Debt Service Funds, and Capital Project Funds. All governmenlal funds and expendable trust
funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measuremen! focus which has only cumrent assets and current liabities on
tha balance sheel and operating slatements present increases and decreases in net current assefs. All proprietary funds and pension
trust funds are accounted for pn a flow of economic resources measurement focus with all assels and labilities associaled with the
operation of these funds included on the balance sheels and fund equity segregated info contributed capital and refained earnings—
operaling statements present increases and decreases in net lotal assels. The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed for alf
Govemmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds {in the Fiduciary Funds category). All remaining Flkduciary Funds (Pension
Trust Funds) and Proprietary Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. The "Raeport of independent Auditors” in
the Village's general purpose financial statements for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 included the following language
(comparable "clean” opinions were included in the Village's 1996-2001 audits shown in this table):
"n our opinion, the general puspose financial statements referred to above presant fairly, in all malerial respects, the financlal
position of the Village of Glenview, iftinois, as of December 31, 2002, and the results of its operatlons and the cash flows of its
propriefary fund types for the year then ended in conformily with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also, In our opinion, the combining, individual fund, and account group finaricial stafements referred lo above present
fairly, in ail malerial respects, the financial position of each of the individual funds and account groups of the Village of Glenview,
Iffinols, as of December 31, 2002, and the results of operations of such funds and the cash flpws of individual proprietary funds for
the year then ended in conformily with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stafes of America.”
The Glenview Naval Air Station Redevelopment Fund was created lo eccount for the resources and expenditures incurred in the
development of the Gienview Naval Air Base fand which was vacated by the Navy on September 9, 71935,
The amounts shown as fund balances for the Proprietary Funds are relained eamings (axcludes contribuled capital) and the amounfs
shown as "excess revenues” represent the change in retained earnings. “Total revenues” represent operaling revenues.
Prior to fiscal year 1993, the Village maintalned fwo Waterworks Funds to provide accounting for the eastern portion of the Village
(Walerworks Easl) and the western portion and the applicable unincorporated area adfacent to the westem border of the Village
(Waterworks Wesl) that is served by the water system (retained earnings al December 31, 1982 were $3,908,087 for Walerworks East
and $5,537,828 for Walerworks West). The two accounting funds were set up in 1877 when the two privale water companies serving
the applicable westem portion and unincarporated areas were, at the request of the residents, acquired by the Village for the purpose of
up-grading the waler quality in that aree by replacing well waler supply with Lake Michigan waler supply that had been available fo east
Glenview since 1937. It was detarmined tha! tha cost ol amorlizing the deb! applicable fo the acquisition of the iwo private waler
campanies and construcling the necessary lransmission mein, slorage and west system up-grading would be paid for by the customers
of the wes!t system. The use of differing rales continued until 1992 when a unlfied rale structure was puf in place and the use of a
mimimum charge Ffor water usage was eliminated. The two funds were combined In fiscal year 1893. A separate Seweraga Fund was
created in fiscal year 1986 fo account for the funds necessary fo provide sanitary sewer service to bolh the incorporated and
unincorporated areas served by the Village. Prior fo 1986, these funds were accounted for in the fwo Weterworks Funds. The
Wholesale Water Fund accounts for the sala of water to Citizens Utility Companly for its service erea oulside the Village of Glenview.
The North Maine Waler and Sewer Fund accounts for all firancial aclivity related to the Village providing water and sewer service lo an
unincarporated area southwes! of the. Village (formerfy served by [he North Suburban Public Utitities Company). -
The Municipal Equipment Repair Fund js used to accaunt for the costs of repairing and maintalning all Village vehicles.
Excludes the Village's Agency Funds.
The Escrow Deposit Fund is used to account for monies on deposit with the Vitlage—~the cost of public improvements fo be dedicaled to
the Village must ba escrowed with the Village ahd as payments are requirad for satisfactory work completed, monfes are released lo
contractors. Interast eamed on the escrowed deposits is retained by the Vitlage and annually transferred to the General Fund.
Beginning in fiscal year 1993, the Librery Fund was presented in the audit as @ component unil of the Village because the Library
possesses the characteristics of a legally separale govemment {separetely elecled 7-member board which ennually delérmines its
budget and tax fevy).
The Viilage's Cash Control and Investment Policy was odginally adopted on February 21, 1983 and was revised on March 15, 1985,
January 16, 1880, March 19, 1886 and January 8, 2000.
inclydes fwo new funds created in fiscal year 1999: The Glen Land Sales Fund (December 31, 2002 fund balance $61,109,507 and the
Village Permanen! Fund (December 31, 2002 fund balance $37,309,450). The Glen Land Sales Fund is used fo account for gross fand
sales refated fo the Glenview Naval Air Base and the Village Permanent Fund receives from The Glen Land Sales Fund 20% of the
gross land sales o be used for projects not related to the Glenview Naval Air Base.
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FIXED ASSETS AT DECEMBER 31, 2002

General Fixed - Proprietary Fund

Assets(T} Fixed Assets{2f
Land and Improvements . ... ......._ ............ % 6,143,853 $ 302,851
Buildings and Improvements . . ................... 14,404,936 448,954
Waler and Sewer Systems ... ...... ... .. .00 0.... -0 - 45,078,605
Equipment ... ... ... ... .. . . ... 9,983,124 2,894 683
Office Furniture and Equipment . . . . .. e 2207222 18,672
Sublotal .. ..... ... ... . $32,739,135 348,741,765
Less: Accumulated Depreciation. .. ............... -0 - 14,015,023
L . 332738135 £34.726,742

Notes: 1. Fixed assefs used in govemmental fund type operations are accounted for in the General Fixed Assels
Account Group rather than in governmental funds. All fixed assels are valued at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if actual is not known, Contributed fixed assets are recorded af their fair market value on the
date donated, Fublic domain (infrastructure) fixed assefs including roads, bridges, curbs and gulters,
streels and sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems have not been capitalized, No depreciation is
recorded on General Fixed Assets. This table inciudes the general fixed assels of the Glenview Public
Library.

2. Fixed Assels in the Proprietary Funds are valued at historical cost or estimaled historical cost. Depreciation
an all exhaustible fixed assels is charged as an expense against operations. Depreciation is provided over
the estimated useful fives using the straighf-line method.
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